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Notes (1) 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 Notes (1) 31.12.2020 31.12.2019

NON CURRENT ASSETS 234.323.599 102.876.234 SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 244.193.441 102.637.052 

Plant, property and equipment 51.946 - CAPITAL AND RESERVES- 244.193.441 102.637.052 

Non-current investments in group companies 5-a 227.876.234 102.876.234 Share capital 7-a 22.846.679 15.060.000 

Equity instruments in group companies 227.876.234 102.876.234 Share premium 7-b 230.089.554 87.802.052 

Deferred tax assets 8-d 6.395.419 - Reserves (7.960.400) - 

Prior period's profit and loss (225.000) - 

Profit/(loss) for the period (557.392) (225.000) 

CURRENT ASSETS 15.354.513 60.000 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 3.556.155 - 

Trade receivables 1.629.541 60.000 Non-current debt with group companies 9-b 3.556.155 - 

Clients, group companies 9-b 133.906 - 

Receivables on called-up capital - 60.000 CURRENT LIABILITIES 1.928.516 299.182 

Current tax assets 8-a 682.191 - Trade payables 1.928.516 299.182 

Other receivables with the public administration 8-a 813.444 - Suppliers 883.336 - 

Current investments in group companies 5-b and 9-b 11.542.312 - Suppliers, group companies 9-b 934.179 200.000 

Prepaid expenses, current 170.905 - Personnel 22.106 99.182 

Cash and cash-equivalents 2.011.755 - Other payables with the public administration 8-a 88.895 - 

TOTAL ASSETS 249.678.112 102.936.234 TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 249.678.112 102.936.234 

SOLTEC POWER HOLDINGS, S.A.

BALANCE SHEET AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020

(Euros)

(1) Notes 1 to 12, together with Annexes I and II, are an integral part of the Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2020  
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Revenue 10-a 211.639 - 

Personnel expenses 10-b (546.278) - 

Other operating expenses 10-c (405.354) (225.000) 

Depreciation of fixed assets (451) - 

OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS (740.444) (225.000) 

Financial revenue 163 - 

Financial expenses (2.908) - 

FINANCIAL PROFIT/LOSS (2.745) - 

PRE-TAX PROFIT/LOSS (743.189) (225.000) 

Income tax expense 8-c 185.797 - 

PROFIT/LOSS FOR THE PERIOD (557.392) (225.000) 

2019Notes (1)

(1) Notes 1 to 12, together with Annexes I and II, are an integral part of the 

profit & loss account for the year ended on December 31, 2020

PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON DECEMBER 31, 2020

SOLTEC POWER HOLDINGS, S.A.

(Euros)

2020
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OPENING BALANCE AS OF DECEMBER 2, 2019  60.000  -  -  -  -  60.000  

Total comprehensive profit/loss -  -  -  -  (225.000)  (225.000)  
Transactions with shareholders- 15.000.000  87.876.234  -  -  -  102.876.234  

Non-monetary contributions (note 7-a) 15.000.000  281.250.000  -  -  -  296.250.000  
Non-monetary contributions value adjustments (note 7-a) -  (193.373.766)  -  -  -  (193.373.766)  

Other changes to shareholders' equity- -  (74.182)  -  -  -  (74.182)  
  Expenses for the issuance of equity instruments (note 7-a) -  (74.182)  -  -  -  (74.182)  

CLOSING BALANCE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2019  15.060.000  87.802.052  -  -  (225.000)  102.637.052  

OPENING BALANCE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 15.060.000  87.802.052  -  -  (225.000)  102.637.052  

Total comprehensive profit/loss -  -  -  -  (557.392)  (557.392)  
Transactions with shareholders- 7.786.679  142.213.320  -  -  -  149.999.999  

Share capital increase (note 7-a) 7.786.679  142.213.320  -  -  -  149.999.999  
Other changes to shareholders' equity- -  74.182  (7.960.400)  (225.000)  225.000  (7.886.218)  

Distribución of results -  -  -  (225.000)  225.000  -  
Other movements -  74.182  (74.182)  -  -  -  

Expenses for the issuance of equity instruments (note 7-a), net of taxes 
-  -  (7.886.218)  -  -  (7.886.218)  

CLOSING BALANCE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 22.846.679  230.089.554  (7.960.400)  (225.000)  (557.392)  244.193.441  

(1) Notes 1 to 12, together with Annexes I and II, are an integral part of the statement of changes in equity as of December 31, 2020 

B) STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

Euros 

Share capital Share premium 

Profit/loss for the  

period TOTAL 

A) COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT 

There are no differences between "Profit/loss for the period" and "Total comprehensive profit/loss". 

 

Prior period's profit  

and loss 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON DECEMBER 31, 2020 

(euros) 

Reserves 

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: J
O

S
E

 F
R

A
N

C
IS

C
O

 M
O

R
A

LE
S

 T
O

R
R

E
S

 (
N

IF
: 2

24
35

19
0R

)
F

IR
M

A
D

O
 p

or
: F

E
R

N
A

N
D

O
 C

A
B

A
LL

E
R

O
 D

E
 L

A
 S

E
N

 (
N

IF
: 1

18
13

93
1G

)
F

IR
M

A
D

O
 p

or
: M

A
R

IN
A

 M
O

R
E

N
O

 D
O

LE
R

A
 (

N
IF

: 4
84

53
57

8F
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: M
A

R
IA

 S
IC

IL
IA

 S
A

LV
A

D
O

R
E

S
 (

N
IF

: 0
74

96
77

6H
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: S
IL

V
IA

 A
M

A
T

E
R

A
T

S
U

 D
IA

Z
 D

E
 L

A
S

P
R

A
 M

O
R

A
LE

S
 (

N
IF

: 4
86

98
10

4C
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: M
A

R
C

O
S

 S
A

E
Z

 N
IC

O
LA

S
 (

N
IF

: 3
48

15
03

9P
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: N
U

R
IA

 A
LI

Ñ
O

 P
E

R
E

Z
 (

N
IF

: 0
31

03
66

8W
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: R
A

U
L 

M
O

R
A

LE
S

 T
O

R
R

E
S

 (
N

IF
: 3

47
85

10
6K

)
V

er
si

ón
 im

pr
im

ib
le

 c
on

 in
fo

rm
ac

ió
n 

de
 fi

rm
a 

ge
ne

ra
do

 d
es

de
 V

A
LI

D
e 

(h
ttp

://
va

lid
e.

re
ds

ar
a.

es
)

F
ir

m
a 

vá
lid

a.



 

 

 

 

Notes (1) 2020 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (779.668) - 

Pre-tax profit/loss for the financial year (743.189) (225.000) 

Adjustments to profit/loss 3.196 (74.182) 

   Depreciation of fixed assets 451 - 

   Financial revenue (163) - 

   Financial expenses 2.908 - 

   Other expenses 7-a - (74.182) 

Changes in working capital 645.260 299.182 

   Trade and other accounts receivable (887.350) - 

   Trade and other accounts payable 1.703.515 299.182 

   Other current assets (170.905) - 

Other cash flows from operating activities (684.935) - 

Interest paid (2.908) - 

Interest received 163 - 

Income tax received/(paid) (682.190) - 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES (II) (136.594.709) - 

Payments relating to investments (136.594.709) - 

Plant, property and equipment and intangible assets (52.397) - 

Group companies (136.542.312) - 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (III) 139.386.132 - 

Collections and (payments) for equity instruments 139.386.132 - 

Issuance of equity instruments 7-a 139.386.132 - 

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (I+II+III+IV) 2.011.755 - 

Cash and cash equivalents at start of period - - 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 2.011.755 - 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON DECEMBER 31, 2020

(Euros)

(1) Notes 1 to 12, together with Annexes I and II, are an integral part of the cash flow statement for the year ended on December 31, 2020
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Soltec Power Holdings, S.A. 

Annual Report for the year 
ended December 31, 2020 
 
 

1. General information 

Soltec Power Holdings, S.A. (hereinafter, the "Company") was incorporated in Murcia (Spain) on December 2, 2019 in 
accordance with the Capital Companies Act. Its registered office is located at Gabriel Campillo Street, Polígono Industrial 
La Serreta, s/n 30500, Molina de Segura (Murcia), where its main facilities are located.  

According to its bylaws, the Company's corporate purpose is to: 

a) The execution of all kinds of activities, works and services related to the business of promotion, development, 
construction and maintenance of electric power plants, including the manufacture, supply, installation and assembly 
of industrial equipment and other facilities for such plants. 

b) The provision of assistance or support services to investees or companies within the scope of the business group, for 
which purpose it may provide, on their behalf, the financing, guarantees and sureties that may be appropriate. 

c) The management and administration of securities representing the equity of resident and non-resident entities in 
Spanish territory by means of the corresponding organization of material and personal resources, provided that it 
does not affect the legislation on collective investments. 

The main activity of the Company in 2020 consisted in holding all the shares of the companies Soltec Energías Renovables, 
S.L.U. and the shares of Powertis, S.A.U. Consequently, it is the head of a group of companies that together with the 
Company constitute the Soltec Group. The consolidated financial statements of the Soltec Group for 2020 were prepared 
by the Company's directors on March 24, 2021. The consolidated financial statements of the Soltec Group for the year 
2019 were prepared under International Financial Reporting Standards and have been filed with the Mercantile Registry 
of Murcia. 

As of December 31, 2020, the Soltec Group consists of two subgroups whose parent companies, Soltec Energías 
Renovables, S.L.U. and Powertis, S.A.U., of which are dependent on several subsidiaries that form the scope of the Soltec 
Group The information relating to the subsidiaries is described in Appendix I to these financial statements. 

On October 26, 2020, the Company's shares were listed on the Bilbao, Madrid, Barcelona and Valencia Stock Exchanges, 
as explained in note 7. 

2. Basis of presentation of the financial statements 

a) Regulatory financial reporting framework applicable to the Company 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the regulatory financial reporting framework 
applicable to the Company, which is set forth in: 

- Code of Commerce and other commercial legislation. 
 

- General Accounting Plan approved by Royal Decree 1514/2007, as well as the amendments introduced by Royal 
Decree 1159/2010 and Royal Decree 602/2016. 
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- The mandatory standards approved by the Instituto de Contabilidad y Auditoría de Cuentas in development of 

the General Accounting Plan and its complementary standards. 
 

- The rest of the applicable Spanish accounting regulations. 

b) True and fair view 

These financial statements have been obtained from the Company's accounting records and are presented in accordance 
with the regulatory financial reporting framework applicable to the Company and, in particular, the accounting principles 
and criteria contained therein, so as to present fairly the Company's net worth, financial position, results of operations 
and cash flows for the year.  

These financial statements were prepared and approved by the Company's directors on March 24, 2021. 

c) Non-mandatory accounting principles applied 

No non-mandatory accounting principles have been applied. In addition, the Company's directors have prepared these 
financial statements taking into consideration all the accounting principles, as well as the generally accepted and 
mandatory valuation and recording standards that have a significant effect on these financial statements, which are 
described in note 4 of these notes to the consolidated financial statements. There is no accounting principle that, being 
mandatory, has ceased to be applied. 

d) Critical aspects of the valuation and estimation of uncertainty 

In preparing these financial statements, estimates were made by the Company's directors in order to value certain of the 
assets, liabilities, income, expenses and commitments reported herein. These estimates relate basically to the evaluation 
of possible impairment losses on certain assets (see note 4). 

Although these estimates have been made on the basis of the best information available, it is possible that future events 
may make it necessary to modify these estimates (upwards or downwards) in the coming years, which would be done 
prospectively, recognizing the effects of the change in estimate in the corresponding future profit & loss accounts. 

During the 2020 financial year the Company has obtained losses in the amount of 557 thousand euros (losses of 225 
thousand euros in the 2019 financial year), however, the Company's directors consider that in the following financial years 
they will obtain positive results as a result of the business plan of the companies held in the portfolio. 

Consequently, the directors consider that there are no reasonable doubts as to the normal operation of the Company, 
which is why they have prepared these financial statements on a going concern basis. 

e) Comparison of information 

The information contained in these annual accounts referring to the fiscal year 2019 is presented, exclusively, for 
comparative purposes with the information for the fiscal year 2020. In this sense, and given that the Company was 
incorporated on December 2, 2019, the information corresponding to fiscal year 2019 corresponds to the period from 
December 2, 2019 to December 31, 2019. 
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f) Grouping of items 

Certain items of the balance sheet, profit & loss account and statement of changes in equity are presented in a grouped 
form to facilitate their understanding, although, to the extent significant, disaggregated information has been included in 
the corresponding notes to the financial statements. 

3. Application of the result 

The proposal for the distribution of the profit for the year 2020 formulated by the Company's directors and to be 
submitted for approval at the General Shareholders' Meeting consists of transferring the entire profit to "Prior years' 
negative results". 

4.  Recording and valuation standards 

As indicated in note 2 above, the Company has applied the accounting policies in accordance with the accounting 
principles and standards set out in the Commercial Code, which are developed in the General Accounting Plan in force, as 
well as the rest of the mercantile legislation in force at the closing date of these financial statements. In this regard, the 
main recording and valuation standards used by the Company in the preparation of its annual accounts for the year 2020 
were as follows: 

a) Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are initially stated at acquisition or production cost and are subsequently reduced by the 
related accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, as described in section c) of this note. 

Upkeep and maintenance expenses of the various items comprising property, plant and equipment are charged to the 
profit & loss account for the year in which they are incurred. On the other hand, amounts invested in improvements that 
contribute to increasing the capacity or efficiency or to extending the useful life of such assets are recorded as an increase 
in their cost. 

The Company depreciates its property, plant and equipment using the straight-line method, distributing the cost of the 
assets over the shorter of the estimated useful life or the lease term. The Company estimates the useful life of its property, 
plant and equipment as follows: 

 

Years of 
estimated useful 

life 

  
Transport elements 10 

 

b) Financial instruments 

Financial assets 

Ranking 

The financial assets held by the Company are classified in the following categories: 

- Loans and receivables: financial assets arising from the sale of goods or the rendering of services in the ordinary course 
of the Company's business, or those which, not having a commercial origin, are not equity instruments or derivatives 
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and whose collections are of a fixed or determinable amount and are not traded in an active market. They are 
subsequently valued at amortized cost. Interest accrued during the period is calculated by applying the effective 
interest rate method. 

- Investments in the equity of group companies: group companies are considered to be those related to the Company 
by a relationship of control.  

Initial valuation 

Financial assets are generally recognized initially at the fair value of the consideration given plus directly attributable 
transaction costs. 

In the case of investments in the equity of Group companies that give control over the subsidiary, the fees paid to legal 
advisors or other professionals related to the acquisition of the investment are charged directly to the profit & loss 
account. 

Subsequent valuation 

Loans, receivables and held-to-maturity investments are valued at amortized cost. Interest accrued during the period is 
calculated by applying the effective interest rate method. 

Investments in group and associated companies are valued at cost, less, if applicable, the accumulated amount of 
impairment losses. These corrections are calculated as the difference between their book value and the recoverable 
amount, understood as the higher of their fair value less costs to sell and the present value of future cash flows derived 
from the investment. Unless there is better evidence of the recoverable amount, the equity of the investee is taken into 
consideration, adjusted by the unrealized gains existing at the valuation date (including goodwill, if any). 

At least at year-end the Company performs an impairment test for financial assets that are not carried at fair value. 
Objective evidence of impairment is considered to exist if the recoverable amount of the financial asset is less than its 
carrying amount. When such impairment occurs, it is recorded in the profit & loss account. 

Impairment losses and, if applicable, their reversal, are recorded as an expense or income, respectively, in the profit & 
loss account. The reversal of impairment is limited to the original book value of the investment. 

In particular, and with respect to the valuation adjustments relating to trade and other receivables, the criterion used by 
the Company to calculate the corresponding valuation adjustments, if any, is to provision those items, based on a detail 
of the ageing of debts and a prior stratification of the type of debt (group companies, public administrations, etc.) whose 
collection delay exceeds six months. 

The Company derecognizes financial assets when the rights to the cash flows from the related financial asset expire or 
have been transferred and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred. Conversely, the 
Company does not derecognize financial assets and recognizes a financial liability for an amount equal to the consideration 
received for transfers of financial assets in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are retained. 

Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are classified according to the content of the agreed contractual agreements and taking into account 
the economic substance. Financial liabilities are those debits and payables of the Company arising from the purchase of 
goods and services for the Company's business operations, or also those which, without having a commercial origin, 
cannot be considered as derivative financial instruments. 
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Payables and payables are initially measured at the fair value of the consideration received, adjusted for directly 
attributable transaction costs. Subsequently, the Company values these liabilities at their nominal value. The Company's 
directors consider that the effect of applying this criterion does not differ significantly from that which would have resulted 
from valuing them at amortized cost. 

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when the obligations that generated them are extinguished. 

Equity instruments 

An equity instrument represents a residual interest in the Company's equity after deducting all of its liabilities. 

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded in shareholders' equity at the amount received, net of issuance 
costs. 

c) Income tax 

Income tax expense or income comprises the portion relating to current tax expense or income and the portion relating 
to deferred tax expense or income. 

Current tax is the amount paid by the Company as a result of the income tax assessments relating to a fiscal year. 
Deductions and other tax benefits on the tax liability, excluding withholdings and payments on account, as well as tax 
losses carried forward from previous years and effectively applied in this year, give rise to a lower amount of current tax. 

The deferred tax expense or income corresponds to the recognition and cancellation of deferred tax assets and liabilities. 
These include temporary differences, which are identified as those amounts expected to be payable or recoverable arising 
from differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax value, as well as tax loss carryforwards 
and credits for tax deductions not applied for tax purposes. These amounts are recorded by applying to the corresponding 
temporary difference or credit the tax rate at which they are expected to be recovered or settled. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except those arising from the initial 
recognition of goodwill or other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable profit nor accounting 
profit and is not a business combination. 

Deferred tax assets are only recognized to the extent that it is considered probable that future taxable profits will be 
available against which they can be utilized.  

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from transactions charged or credited directly to equity accounts are also 
recorded with a balancing entry in equity. 

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and the appropriate adjustments are made to the extent that 
there are doubts as to their future recoverability. Likewise, deferred tax assets not recorded in the balance sheet are 
assessed at each balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent that it becomes probable that they will be recovered 
with future tax benefits. 

The Company files consolidated corporate income tax returns within the consolidated tax group of which it is the head. It 
is, therefore, the Company that records, where applicable, the group's debt with the tax authorities. In return, each of the 
companies included in the consolidated tax return system will record the corresponding account receivable or payable 
with the other companies included in the corporate tax group based on the taxable income contributed by each company 
to the consolidated taxable income and the share of each of them in the net balance in the event that tax is payable. 
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d) Revenues and expenses 

Revenues and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis, i.e., when the actual flow of the related goods and services 
occurs, regardless of when the resulting monetary or financial flow arises. Such revenues are measured at the fair value 
of the consideration received, net of discounts and taxes. 

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognized by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the 
balance sheet date, provided that the outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably. 

Interest received on financial assets is recognized using the nominal interest rate. The Company's directors consider that 
the effect of applying this criterion does not differ significantly from that which would have occurred if the effective 
interest rate method had been applied. 

Dividends received are recognized when the member's right to receive them is declared. In any case, interest and 
dividends on financial assets accrued after the time of acquisition are recognized as income in the profit & loss account. 
On the other hand, if the dividends distributed unequivocally derive from results generated prior to the date of acquisition 
because amounts in excess of the profits generated by the investee since the acquisition have been distributed, they are 
not recognized as income and will reduce the carrying amount of the investment. 

e) Provisions and contingencies 

When preparing the financial statements, the Company's directors differentiate between: 

a. Provisions: credit balances covering current obligations arising from past events, the settlement of which is probable 
to result in an outflow of resources, but which are uncertain as to their amount and/or timing. 

b. Contingent liabilities: possible obligations arising from past events, the future materialization of which is conditional 
upon the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events beyond the Company's control. 

The financial statements include all provisions for which it is considered more likely than not that the obligation will have 
to be settled. Unless they are considered remote, contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements, but 
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.  

Provisions are measured at the present value of the best possible estimate of the amount required to settle or transfer 
the obligation, taking into account the information available on the event and its consequences, and any adjustments 
arising from the restatement of such provisions are recorded as a financial expense as accrued. 

The compensation to be received from a third party at the time of settling the obligation, provided that there are no 
doubts that such reimbursement will be received, is recorded as an asset, except in the event that there is a legal link 
whereby part of the risk has been externalized and by virtue of which the Company is not liable; in this situation, the 
compensation will be taken into account to estimate the amount for which, if any, the corresponding provision will be 
recorded. 

f) Environmental assets 

Assets of an environmental nature are considered to be assets that are used on a lasting basis in the Company's activity, 
the main purpose of which is to minimize environmental impact and protect and improve the environment, including the 
reduction or elimination of future pollution. 

The Company's activities, by their nature, do not have a significant environmental impact. 
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g) Related party transactions 

The Company carries out all transactions with related parties at market values. In addition, the Company, together with 
its group companies, is taxed under the consolidated tax regime for corporate income tax purposes, which significantly 
reduces the formal requirements for documentation of transfer prices. For this reason, the Company's directors consider 
that there are no significant risks in this respect that could give rise to significant liabilities in the future. 

h) Current and non-current items 

Current assets are considered to be those related to the normal operating cycle, which is generally considered to be one 
year, as well as other assets whose maturity, disposal or realization is expected to occur in the short term from the year-
end date, financial assets held for trading and cash and cash equivalents. Assets that do not meet these requirements are 
classified as non-current.  

Similarly, current liabilities are those related to the normal operating cycle, financial liabilities held for trading and, in 
general, all obligations whose maturity or extinction will occur in the short term. Otherwise, they are classified as non-
current. 

i) Share-based payments 

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and other persons rendering similar services are recorded at the fair 
value of the equity instruments granted on the grant date. In estimating the fair value, the conditions necessary for the 
vesting of the grant, other than market conditions, are taken into account by adjusting the number of equity instruments 
included in the fair value measurement of the equity instruments.  

Details of the determination of the fair value of the employee share-based payment plans are disclosed in note 11.b. 

The fair value of the equity instruments granted, determined on the grant date of the equity-settled share-based 
payments, is recognized as a personnel expense over the vesting period, with a simultaneous recognition of a reserve 
relating to the incentive plans for the same amount in equity, based on the estimate of the final number of equity 
instruments to be granted as a result of the fulfillment of the necessary conditions other than market conditions. 

At year-end, the Group revises the estimate of the number of equity instruments it expects to grant based on changes in 
the required conditions other than market conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimate, if any, is 
recognized in income so that the cumulative expense reflects the amount accrued at the date of the revised estimate 
based on the new fair value of the equity instruments granted, with a corresponding adjustment to reserves. 

For cash-settled share-based payments, the Group recognizes a liability for the goods or services acquired, initially 
measured at the fair value of the liability. At year-end, until the liability is settled and also at the settlement date, the fair 
value of the liability is re-estimated, recording any change against the profit & loss account for the year.  

5. Investments in group companies 

a) Non-current investments in group companies 

The movement during the year 2020 in the caption "Long-term investments in group companies - Equity instruments in 
group companies" is as follows:  

  

Euros  

2019 
Share capital 

increases 2020 

        

Soltec Energías Renovables S.L. U. 83,027,483 65,000,000 148,027,483 
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Powertis, S.A. U. 19,848,751 60,000,000 79,848,751 

  102,876,234 125,000,000 227,876,234 

On December 15, 2020, the share capital increase of Soltec Energías Renovables, S.L.U. was made public. This capital 
increase was carried out by means of a cash contribution with a value of 65,000 thousand euros, through the creation of 
406,250 shares with a nominal value of 1 euro and an individual share premium of 159 euros. 

On December 23, 2020, the share capital increase of Powertis, S.A.U. was made public, this capital increase was carried 
out by means of a monetary contribution with a value of 60,000 thousand euros, through the creation of 20,000 shares 
with an individual par value of 100 euros and an individual share premium amounting to 2,700 euros and the creation of 
16,000 shares, with a par value of 100 euros and an individual share premium amounting to 150 euros. 

In fiscal year 2019, financial investments during the year were recorded as a result of the non-cash contributions described 
in note 7 below. 

Due to the fact that only approximately 30% of the cash contributions in 2019 were recorded at fair value, the remaining 
contributions were recorded at the consolidated net book value at which they were included in a higher group (Grupo 
Corporativo Sefrán, S.L. and subsidiaries), as well as, based on the Company's IPO transaction and the impairment test 
performed in 2020, the Company's directors consider that their fair value is higher than their net book value at year-end 
2020 and, therefore, there are no indications of impairment in their value. 

b) Current investments in group companies 

At December 31, 2020, there are short-term cash repurchase agreements with the subsidiaries Soltec Energías Renovables 
S.L.U. and Powertis, S.A.U. amounting to 11,077 thousand euros and 465 thousand euros, respectively. These cash 
repurchase agreements do not accrue a specific interest rate as they have been assigned during the month of December 
2020 and the Company's directors estimate that they will be repaid in the short term; therefore, their effect has been 
estimated as not significant for these financial statements. 

6. Information on the nature and risk of financial instruments 

The Company's financial risk management is centralized in the financial management of the group of companies of which 
it is the parent company, which has established the necessary mechanisms to control exposure to changes in interest rates 
and exchange rates, as well as credit and liquidity risks.  

Principal risks and uncertainties for the Soltec Group in fiscal year 2020: COVID-19. 

Despite advances in virus prevention techniques, in particular with the success demonstrated by the vaccine, due to the 
uncertainties regarding the potential effects of this extraordinary health emergency situation in the future, the 
consequences of COVID-19 for the Soltec Group's operations are uncertain and will largely depend on the evolution of the 
vaccination plan established by the various governments worldwide and the evolution of the pandemic in the coming 
months. Thus, at the date of preparation of these financial statements, the potential impact on the Company in the coming 
months is uncertain and it is not possible to reliably assess the consequences on the future operations of the Soltec Group 
and its ability to recover the value of its assets in the short term. 

However, the Company's management has made an assessment with the best available information of the economic, 
social and labor impacts that the pandemic caused by COVID-19 is having on the Soltec Group to date, analyzing the effects 
and possible consequences in the fiscal year 2021, despite the current uncertainty about its consequences. 

a. Operational risk 

Based on the evaluation of the development of the activity carried out by the management in 2020 after the 
emergence of COVID-19, to date, the Soltec Group, of which the Company is the parent company, has been able to 
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maintain the development of the projects committed with customers without significant delays in the collection of 
trade accounts that could affect the liquidity of the Soltec Group, its operating cycle and therefore the Company's 
ability to recover its debtor balances and the investment in its subsidiaries. Likewise, there have been no significant 
delays in the process of supplying materials by suppliers, and all contracts in force have been carried out in 
accordance with the previously established conditions. 

Although the business continuity risk has not been affected, the Soltec Group has experienced certain impacts 
depending on the business segment: 

- Industrial segment (subsidiary Soltec Energías Renovables, S.L.U.): there have been certain delays in the 
commencement of project works by third party clients; during the first half of the year 2020 these have been 
mainly due to delays in the processing processes as a result of the pandemic, and in the last quarter of the year 
there has also been a substantial increase in the acquisition price of photovoltaic solar modules which has caused 
some clients to decide to postpone the commencement of the same. The Soltec Group's management expects 
that these orders will commence as the prices of this component return to more normal values. 

Although these issues do not represent a problem of operations, they have affected the turnover and the result 
for the year 2020, although the Company's directors consider that this revenue amount will be recovered in the 
following year and therefore will not affect the Company's ability to recover the value of its investee. 

- Project development segment (subsidiary Powertis, S.A.U.): during 2020, the subsidiaries of Powertis, S.A.U. have 
continued with the development of the solar projects, although they have been delayed due to the stoppage 
suffered by the administration as a result of COVID-19 in the main countries in which they operate. 

The delays suffered, in the opinion of the directors, are of a merely transitory nature and do not significantly alter 
the fulfillment of the long-term business plan of the Company's subsidiaries. 

b. Credit risk 

Credit risk consists of the risk that a debtor will become insolvent in relation to the applicable contractual obligations 
and that the Company will incur a capital loss. 

In general, the Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents in financial institutions with high credit ratings. In 
addition, the subsidiaries have sufficient liquidity to meet their receivables and debit balances with the Company. 

c. Liquidity risk 

This refers to the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in divesting a financial instrument sufficiently 
quickly without incurring significant additional costs or the risk associated with not having liquidity at the time when 
payment obligations are due. 

In order to ensure liquidity and to be able to meet all payment commitments arising from its activity, the Company 
has the cash shown in its balance sheet. During the 2020 financial year, the Company carried out a capital increase 
(see note 7), which resulted in a significant increase in available short-term resources and a cash inflow of 139 million 
euros (net of issuance costs).  

d. Impairment of assets 

Taking into account all the aforementioned factors and the information currently available, the Company's 
management and directors have not made a substantial modification to the business plan of its subsidiaries and 
therefore do not expect them to have a relevant impact on the impairment of investments in group companies, nor 
on the deferred tax assets recorded in the current year. 
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Finally, it should be noted that the Group's directors and management are constantly monitoring the evolution of the 
situation in order to successfully deal with any financial and non-financial impacts that may arise as a result of COVID-19. 

7. Equity 

a) Share capital  

The Company was created in 2019 as the head of two existing subgroups, with no change with economic substance or 
actual alteration of the ownership composition of the Soltec Group. As of December 2, 2019, Grupo Corporativo Sefrán, 
S.L. (formerly Bari Inversiones y Desarrollos, S.L., hereinafter, Sefrán) and Valueteam, S.L. (hereinafter, Valueteam) 
incorporated the Company by means of a monetary contribution as follows: 

 

 

Shareholder No. of shares Euros Participation 

    

Valueteam 18,000 18,000  30% 

Sefrán 42,000  42,000  70% 

Total 60,000  60,000  100% 

 

The disbursement of this amount had been made by the shareholders as of December 31, 2019, although it had not yet 
been received by the Company, which is why it was classified under "Trade and other receivables". This amount has been 
collected in full during the year 2020. 

Additionally, on December 23, 2019, Valueteam and Sefrán (shareholders of the company Soltec Energías Renovables, 
S.L.U. ) and the shareholders of the company Powertis, S.A.U. (Valueteam, Sefrán and an individual) made a non-monetary 
contribution to the Company corresponding to 100% of the shares of Soltec Energías Renovables, S.L. U. and 100% of the 
shares of Powertis, S.A. U. This contribution was registered in the Mercantile Registry of Murcia on December 31, 2019. 

The contributions to the Company were made at fair value, in this sense, the fair value was calculated based on the latest 
estimates and projections available to the former Sole Director of the Company. Specifically, the calculation made to 
determine the fair value was carried out as follows: 

- To determine the fair value of Soltec Energías Renovables, S.L. U. and subsidiaries, five-year financial projections 
were considered, as well as a constant perpetual income in the fifth year, discounted at a discount rate of 6.67%; 

- In order to determine the fair value of Powertis, S.A. U. and subsidiaries, seven-year financial projections were 
considered (based on the expected future evolution of the projects currently in the portfolio), discounted at a 
discount rate of 10.73%. 

Likewise, such transaction was carried out between independent parties (Sefrán, Valueteam and an individual), and 
therefore the former Sole Director of the Company considered that the price at which the transaction was carried out is 
the best evidence of such fair value. Likewise, and as established by mercantile legislation, a report was obtained from an 
independent expert of recognized prestige, previously appointed by the Mercantile Registry of Murcia, on that fair value.  

Thus, the valuation of the contributions of Soltec Energías Renovables, S.L. U. and Powertis, S.A. U. was set at 237,000,000 
and 59,250,000 euros, respectively. The detail of the shares issued by both companies, the amount at which they are 
issued and their distribution according to the percentage of participation of each of the shareholders, is as follows: 
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Shareholder 

No. of shares 
issued for 

contribution 
Soltec Energías 
Renovables, S.L. 

No. of shares 
issued for 

contribution 
Powertis, S.A. 

Amount at 
which shares 

are issued 
(Euros) 

Soltec Energías 
Renovables, 

S.L.U. (Euros) 
Powertis, 

S.A.U. (Euros) Total (Euros) 

       
Valueteam 3,600,000 855,000 19.75 71,100,000 16,886,250 87,986,250 

Sefrán 8,400,000 1,995,000 19.75 165,900,000 39,401,250 205,301,250 

Individual - 150,000 19.75 - 2,962,500 2,962,500 

Total 12,000,000 3,000,000 19.75 237,000,000 59,250,000 296,250,000 

Additionally, the distribution between capital stock and additional paid-in capital was as follows: 

 

 

Shareholder 

Euros 

Share Capital  Share premium Total 

    
Valueteam 4,455,000 83,531,250 87,986,250 

Sefrán 10,395,000 194,906,250 205,301,250 
Individual 150,000 2,812,500 2,962,500 

Total 15,000,000 281,250,000 296,250,000 

Following this transaction, the Company's share capital at December 31, 2019 amounted to €15,060,000, represented by 
15,060,000 shares of €1 par value each. 

On October 6, 2020, the Company's General Shareholders' Meeting approved the split of the number of the Company's 
shares by reducing their par value from EUR 1 to EUR 0.25 per share, at a ratio of 4 new shares for each old share, with 
no change in the share capital figure. 

On October 27, 2020, the resolution adopted on October 13, 2020 by the General Shareholders' Meeting, consisting of a 
capital increase of 150 million euros by means of cash contributions, with waiver of pre-emptive subscription rights, 
through an offer for subscription of Company shares and a request for admission to trading on the stock exchange, was 
made public. 

On October 28, the Company's IPO took place, prior to which the share capital was increased by issuing and placing into 
circulation 31,146,717 new ordinary shares of the Company of the same class and series with a par value of 0.25 euros 
per share and a share premium of 4.57 euros applicable to the 30,881.767 newly issued ordinary shares subscribed for in 
the qualified investor tranche and in the non-qualified investor tranche (excluding the employee and commercial sub-
tranches) and a par value of 0.25 euros per share and a share premium of 4.09 euros applicable to the 264,950 newly 
issued ordinary shares subscribed for in the employee and commercial sub-tranche. Consequently, the total nominal 
amount of the issue amounts to 7,786,679 euros and the share premium is increased by 142,213,321 euros. All the shares 
have been fully paid up. 

In addition, the reference shareholder (Grupo Corporativo Sefrán, S.L.) has exercised its right to sell or green shoe the 
shares it held by placing 3,115 thousand euros additional shares in circulation in the market, equivalent to 3.41% of the 
total volume of the company's shares.  
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In connection with these capital increases, the Company has recorded the incremental expenses associated therewith 
with a credit to reserves, net of their tax effect and including the reclassification of the expenses accrued for the non-cash 
contributions in 2019, amounting to 7,960 thousand euros. 

Following this transaction, the Company's capital stock at December 31, 2020 amounts to 22,847 thousand euros, 
represented by 91,387 thousand shares with a par value of 0.25 euros each, fully subscribed. 

As of December 31, 2020, and December 31, 2019, the legal entities holding an interest equal to or greater than 10% of 
the Company's capital stock are as follows: 

 Share Capital (%) 

 2020 2019 

   

Sefrán Corporate Group, S.L. 42.3% 69.30 

Valueteam, S.L. 19.6% 29.70 

As of December 31, 2020, there are no shareholders' agreements between the Company's shareholders, except for the 
shareholders' agreement and the long-term employee incentive plan (see note 11-b). 

b) Share premium 

As indicated in section a) above, during the current year, due to the capital increase carried out on October 28, there was 
an increase in the share premium in the amount of 142,213 thousand euros.  

In 2019, as a result of the creation of the Company by means of a non-monetary contribution, and associated with the 
accounting treatment of the non-monetary contribution made by Grupo Corporativo Sefrán, S.L., a difference arose 
between the commercial share premium and the share premium recorded by the Company in that year, affecting the 
closing as of December 31, 2020 and 2019. In such a way that the capital increase carried out, which commercially implied 
an increase in the share premium of 281,250,000 euros, was adjusted by 193,373,766 euros due to the accounting 
treatment of the same due to the valuation of the contributions made by Sefrán, the parent company of the group at that 
date.  

The participations and shares received were valued as follows: 

Valuation of the contributions of Sefrán (parent company of the group) 

As this is a transaction between group companies, the Company valued the non-monetary contributions received at the 
value of the consolidated net assets of the shares of Soltec Energías Renovables, S.L.U. and the shares of Powertis, S.A.U. 
to be included in the consolidated financial statements of Sefrán (prepared under the Standards for the Preparation of 
Consolidated Financial Statements) on the date on which the transaction is carried out, for these purposes December 31, 
2019 was considered as the date on which the transaction was carried out.  

Valuation of Valueteam's contributions and individuals 

Since it is not part of the previous group, the Company valued the investment at the fair value of the shares received, 
having received the pertinent independent expert's report validating such contribution. 

In connection with the accounting for the share capital increase, the difference between the value of the contribution and 
the value of the financial investments recorded as of December 31, 2019 (see note 5 above) was recorded under "Share 
premium".  
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Likewise, the Company has recorded in the "Share premium" account the expenses incurred as a result of the 
incorporation of the Company during the fiscal year 2019 as well as the recording of the non-cash contributions. These 
expenses have been reclassified against reserves during 2020.  

Accordingly, the reconciliation between initial share premium amount and final share premium amount as of December 
31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 is as follows: 

 

 

 

  

Euros 

2020 2019 

      
Initial Share premium 281,250,000  281,250,000  
Share Capital increase 142,213,320  -  
Adjustment for the valuation of the contributions of Sefrán (193,373,766)  (193,373,766)  
Issuance costs of share capital 2019 -  (74,182)  
Final Share premium 230,089,554  87,802,052  

The Capital Companies Law expressly permits the use of the share premium balance to increase capital and does not 
establish any specific restriction as to the availability of such balance. 

c) Legal reserve 

In accordance with the Spanish Corporations Law, a corporation must transfer 10% of its net income for each year to the 
legal reserve until the reserve reaches at least 20% of capital stock. The legal reserve may only be used to increase capital 
stock. Except for the aforementioned purpose, until the legal reserve exceeds 20% of capital stock, it may only be used to 
offset losses, provided that sufficient other reserves are not available for this purpose. 

As of December 31, 2020, the legal reserve was not fully funded. 

8.     Public administrations and fiscal situation 

a) Current tax assets 

The composition of current balances with public administrations, except current tax, of the assets and liabilities of the 
accompanying balance sheet at the end of fiscal years 2020 and 2019 is as follows: 

Balances receivable 

As of December 31, 2020, the Company has a receivable from the tax authorities for VAT on the expenses incurred in the 
IPO process amounting to 813 thousand euros.  

Credit balances 

As of December 31, 2020, the Company has an outstanding balance with the tax authorities in respect of income tax 
withholdings for the last months of the year-end amounting to 89 thousand euros.  

As of December 31, 2020, and December 31, 2019, the amount of current tax assets presents the following breakdown: 
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  Euros 

  2020 2019 

      
Current tax assets 682,191  - 

Total 682,191  - 

As a result of the consolidated corporate income tax return, where it acts as the head taxpayer, it is the Company that 
must record the tax group's receivable from the tax authorities. As of December 31, 2020, the accompanying balance 
sheet includes an asset with the tax authorities for this reason amounting to 682 thousand euros under the heading 
"Current tax assets". 
  

b) Reconciliation of accounting income and taxable income 

The reconciliation of the Company's accounting profit to the taxable income for income tax purposes for 2020 and 2019 
is as follows: 

 

Fiscal year 2020 

  
Euros 

Profit and loss statement Total 

      
Balance of income and expenses for the year   (557,392)  (557,392)  

  Increase Decrease  

        
Corporate income tax - (185,797)  (185,797)  
    
Permanent differences       
 Underwritten public offering expenses recorded against 
equity  

-  (10,613,867)  (10,613,867)  

    

Previous tax base (11,357,056)  

    
Tax loss carryforwards capitalized against shareholders' equity -  -  10,613,867  
Capitalized tax loss carryforwards -  -  743,189 
    

Final tax base -  

Tax rate of 25% - 

Withholdings and payments on account (682,191)  

Amount payable (receivable) (682,191)  

Fiscal year 2019 

  
Euros 

Profit and loss statement Total 

      
Balance of income and expenses for the year   (225,000) (225,000) 

  Increase Decrease Total 

        
Corporate income tax - - - 
    
Permanent differences       
Other adjustments to accounting income   (74,182) (74,182) 

Final tax base - 

Tax rate of 25% - 

Deductions - 
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Withholdings and payments on account - 

Amount payable (receivable) - 

The permanent differences considered in 2020 refer to the expenses derived from the IPO described in note 7 above, 
which have been recorded directly against equity. 

Based on the tax regulations that came into force in Spain on January 1, 2015 (Law 27/2014), tax loss carryforwards may 
be offset against the profits of future years, and there is no limit for offsetting them.  

At the end of 2019, the Company generated a tax loss carryforward amounting to 299,182 euros, and the corresponding 
tax credit has not been capitalized as this tax loss carryforward was generated before forming part of the consolidated tax 
group of which it has been the parent company since 2020. 

c) Reconciliation of pre-tax profit/loss and income tax expense 

The reconciliation between the accounting income before income taxes and the income tax expense for the year, for the 
year 2020, is as follows: 

  Euros 

    
Pre-tax profit/loss  (743,189)  
Capitalized tax loss carryforwards 743,189  
Corporate tax rate at 25%. - 
Total current tax income - 
Total deferred tax income 185,797  

Total tax income recognized in profit & loss account 185,797  

The loss carryforwards capitalized as a result of the expenses associated with the Company's IPO have been capitalized 
against the "Reserves" caption and, therefore, have not had any impact on income tax income. 

d) Deferred tax assets 

All deferred tax assets at December 31, 2020 relate to loss carryforwards generated during the year 2020.  

As described in note 4-c, the Company is the parent of the tax consolidation group to which it belongs. During 2020, that 
tax consolidation group has generated tax loss carryforwards in the amount of 25,582 thousand euros (6,395 thousand 
euros in credits for losses to be offset), of which 14,225 thousand euros have been generated by the subsidiaries (3,555 
thousand euros in installments) and therefore have been recorded under the heading "Long-term payables to group 
companies" in the balance sheet as of December 31, 2020. As these amounts will be paid by the Company to its 
subsidiaries in accordance with the offset of these tax losses by the consolidated tax group, the Company's directors have 
considered that the time horizon is longer than 12 months and therefore it has been classified in the long term. 

As regards the assessment of the recoverability of the capitalized tax loss carryforwards, the Company's directors have 
performed the corresponding impairment test. In this regard, according to the estimates and projections available to 
them, the taxable income projections of the consolidated tax group allow the offsetting of these tax loss carryforwards in 
a reasonable period of time, in all cases, less than ten years. 

Specifically, the calculation performed for the evaluation of the time horizon for offsetting the tax loss carryforwards 
capitalized by the tax consolidated group in Spain has been carried out through financial projections of the legal entities 
included in the Spanish tax consolidated group, such projections are established for the next six years, considering a 
constant taxable tax base as of the last period. In this regard, the key assumptions of these projections are based on the 
evolution of future net sales (backlog and pipeline) of the industrial segment (in this regard, the revenues of the 
development segment from the sale of SPVs have been excluded as they are not expected to be taxable for tax purposes), 
gross margin, structure costs and the effect of the tax policy on transfer pricing of the group to which they belong, 
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established based on the historical experience of the directors and forecasts of independent experts on market growth, 
which are summarized as follows: 

- Average annual sales growth rate of 22% based on backlog and pipeline with high probabilities for fiscal year 2021 
and industry growth expectations;  

- Evolution of the constant gross margin for installation and EPC services, average annual decrease of 0.5 percentage 
points in the margin for the supply of solar trackers; 

- Average annualized growth in structural costs of 2% for the entire forecast period; and, 

- Effect of the constant transfer pricing policy throughout the period, based on the estimate included in the 2021 
budget. 

In this context, and in the opinion of the Company's directors, any reasonable change in the key assumptions used to 
determine the recoverability of the tax loss carryforwards would not result in the carrying amount of the asset exceeding 
the recoverable amount. 

In any case, in the opinion of the Company's directors, the evaluations of the recoverability of taxable income have been 
made from a prudent and conservative approach, and no indications of non-recoverability have emerged in the sensitivity 
tests performed on the projections. 

In short, the deferred tax assets indicated above have been recorded because the Group considers that, based on the best 
estimate of its future results, including certain tax planning actions, it is probable that these assets will be recovered. 

e) Fiscal years pending verification and inspection activities 

In accordance with current legislation, taxes cannot be considered definitively settled until the returns filed have been 
inspected by the tax authorities or the statute of limitations period of five years has elapsed for corporate income tax and 
four years for other applicable taxes. At the end of fiscal year 2020, the Company has the current and last fiscal year open 
for inspection for all taxes applicable to it. 

It should also be noted that as a result of the tax measures adopted during the State of Alarm decreed on March 14, 2020 
on the occasion of COVID-19, the statute of limitations and expiration periods of these inspection actions were 
interrupted, considering it as a "non-computable" period, so that the aforementioned periods have been increased by 78 
days for the days elapsed between March 14, 2020 and May 30, 2020. 

The Company's directors consider that all applicable taxes have been properly settled and, therefore, even in the event 
that discrepancies arise in the interpretation of current legislation due to the tax treatment granted to the transactions, 
any resulting liabilities, should they materialize, would not have a significant effect on these financial statements. 

9. Transactions and balances with group and related parties 

a) Related party transactions 

Details of transactions with related parties during 2020 and 2019 (in addition to the capital increase in 2020 and non-cash 
contributions received during 2019, see note 7) are as follows: 

Fiscal year 2020 

  
  

Euros 

Group 
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Soltec Energías 
Renovables, S.L.U.  

Powertis, S.A.U.  

   
Revenues (note 10-a) 198,034 13,605 
Other operating expenses 157,056 - 
Financial expenses  2,708 - 
   
Financing granted 13,327,250 482,298 
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Fiscal year 2019 

  
  

Euros 

Group 

Soltec Energías 
Renovables, S.L.U. 

Powertis, S.A.U.  

   
Other operating expenses 200,000 - 

The amount recorded in 2020 and 2019 under "Other operating expenses" corresponds to the amount of expenses re-
invoiced by the subsidiary Soltec Energías Renovables as a result of expenses incurred on behalf of the Company as part 
of the process of issuing shares on the stock market described in note 7. 

b) Balances with related parties 

Details of balances with related parties during 2020 and 2019 (in addition to the capital increase in 2020 and non-cash 
contributions received during 2019, see note 7) are as follows: 

Fiscal year 2020 

  Euros 

  Group 

  
Soltec Energías 

Renovables, S.L.U. 
Powertis, S.A.U. 

Other 
subsidiaries 

        
        

Current investments in group companies -        
Other financial assets (note 5-b) 11,077,457 464,855 -  
Clients, group companies 117,443 16,463 -  

Non-current debt with group companies-       
Corporate income tax consolidation payables (see note 
8-c) 

3,276,384  - 279,771  

Suppliers, group companies 934,179 - - 

Fiscal year 2019 

  Euros 

  Group 

  
Soltec Energías 

Renovables, S.L.U. Powertis, S.A.U. 

      
Suppliers, group companies 200,000 - 

c) Remuneration of the former Sole Director, the current directors of the Company and senior management 

During the 2020 fiscal year, there has been a change in the Company's administrative body, which now consists of a board 
of directors composed of seven members (3 women and 4 men), of which the former Sole Director is a member, and of 
which the chairman of the board has acted as chief executive officer. 
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During the 2020 fiscal year, the Company's directors and senior management have earned the following monetary income: 

  Euros (*) 

  2020 2019 

      
Remuneration belonging to the Board and/or Board Committees 75,514 - 
Salaries (**) 327,948 - 
Variable cash compensation - - 
Share-based compensation - - 
Indemnifications - - 
Other concepts - - 

  403,462 - 

(*) During the 2020 fiscal year, all "Chiefs" are considered senior management. 
(**) Includes the salary of the Company's Chief Executive Officer, who is also a member of the Board of 
Directors. 

In addition, they have not accrued amounts classified as income in kind for their work as senior management or directors 
in addition to those indicated above in any of the periods. 

There have been no severance payments for termination or dismissal of senior management or directors during the fiscal 
year 2020 or 2019. No advances or loans have been granted to the former Sole Director or current directors of the 
Company in 2020 or 2019. 

The Company has not assumed any obligation on behalf of the former Sole Director of the Company or current directors. 
Likewise, at the close of the 2020 fiscal year, the Company has not assumed any pension or life insurance premium 
obligations with respect to the former Sole Director of the Company or current directors (same situation at the close of 
the 2019 fiscal year). 

The total amount accrued as an expense for the year for the civil liability insurance premium of the current directors, as 
well as, of the former Sole Director of the Company for damages caused by their acts or omissions amounts in 2020 to 27 
thousand euros (no amount for civil liability premiums of the Sole Director in 2019). 

d) Information regarding conflict of interest situations on the part of the directors and the former Sole Director of 
the Company 

In relation to the provisions of Article 229 of the Consolidated Text of the Spanish Companies Act, the former Sole Director 
and the current directors consider that during the 2020 financial year and up to the date of preparation of these financial 
statements, both they and the individuals or legal entities related to them, as defined in Article 231 of the aforementioned 
legal text, have not been immersed in situations of conflict of interest as provided in the aforementioned Article 229. 

10. Revenues and expenses 

a) Revenue 

The balance recorded under "Revenue" in the profit & loss account for 2020 corresponds to the re-invoicing of 
management and administration services to the other subsidiaries. 
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b) Personnel expenses 

The detail of "Personnel expenses" heading in the profit & loss account for the year 2020 and 2019 is as follows: 

  
Euros 

 2019 

      
Wages and salaries 497,193  - 
Social Security at the company's expense 49,085  - 

Total 546,278 - 

c) Other operating expenses 

The composition of "Other operating expenses" heading for the year 2020 and 2019 is as follows: 

 

Euros 

2020 2019 

   
Repairs and maintenance 5,400 - 
Independent professional services 322,956 225,000 
Insurance 70,107 - 
Bank services and similar items 215 - 
Other services 6,676 - 

Total 405,354 225,000 

11. Other information 

a) Employees 

The average number of personnel employed during fiscal years 2020 and 2019 distributed by category was as follows: 

  
Average number of personnel employed 

2020 2019 

      
Department Director 4 - 

Total 4 - 

 

The distribution by gender at the end of fiscal year 2020 and 2019, broken down by category, is as follows:  

  

Personnel at closing 

2020 2019 

Men Women Total Men Women Total 

              
Department Director 4 3 7 - - - 

Total 4 3 7 - - - 
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b) Share-based payments 

On October 14, 2020, an agreement was signed whereby Powertis, S.A.U. undertakes to grant its Chief Executive Officer 
a number of shares of the Company equivalent to 1% pre-money of the Company as of the date of the agreement upon 
the effective fulfillment of certain requirements. 

This agreement is a substitution amending the agreement signed on September 28, 2018 whereby the CEO was granted 
the right to purchase 5% of shares in Powertis following the fulfillment of service obligations for 2 years and which was 
valued at 215 thousand euros. Since this was remuneration that would be paid in shares, it accrued entirely to Powertis, 
S.A.U. and did not affect the Company. 

As this is a modification between two equity-settled share-based payment plans, its valuation is limited to the incremental 
fair value of the transaction at the time of the agreement and as such payment will be assumed by Powertis, S.A.U. with 
shares of the Company that it will purchase in the stock market, it has not affected the Company, nor is it foreseeable that 
it will do so, as of December 31, 2020. 

Similarly, the Company, together with its subsidiaries, has agreed to approve a long-term incentive plan for a maximum 
of 36 individuals, including the Company's management and certain employees of its subsidiaries. The purpose of this plan 
is to motivate and reward certain employees and senior managers designated by the Company's directors, enabling them 
to form part of the Soltec Group's long-term value creation.  

In this regard, the plan consists of the delivery to such employees of a number of shares to be determined by the board 
of directors. The main features of the plan are as follows: 

- Effective January 1, 2021; 

- Plan shares will vest at the end of the following periods: 

• First accrual period: January 1, 2021 to January 2, 2023; and, 

• Second accrual period: January 3, 2023 to January 4, 2025; 

- The shares will vest upon the fulfillment, at the expiration of each vesting period, of the following conditions:  

• Necessary condition of permanence in the participant's employment; 

• Performance conditions. The number of shares to be delivered to each of the participants will be determined 

based on the performance of each of them, as well as the gradual achievement of certain performance ratios 

of the Group, associated with the Rate of Return to Shareholders, EBITDA and Free Cash Flow. 

These performance ratios will be calculated over the period from January 1 to December 31 of each of the 
accrual periods. 

- Delivery of the shares will occur at the end of the deferral period of 365 days after the end of each vesting period. 

This incentive plan, in accordance with the provisions of Accounting and Valuation Standard 17 "Share-Based Payment", 
will be considered an equity-settled plan and therefore its recording will affect the caption "Personnel expenses" with a 
balancing entry in the Company's equity for the corresponding portion of the Company's beneficiaries, considering all the 
"Chiefs" and the Company's Chief Executive Officer, who is also a member of the Board of Directors. 

Likewise, part of the rest of the group's subsidiaries that ultimately depend on the Company are also affected by this long-
term incentive plan with certain key employees. Their recording for individual purposes is likewise equity-settled, since all 
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of them are receiving the service of their employees in consideration for the shares of the parent company that the latter 
has undertaken to deliver, accruing a personnel expense whose counterpart is a higher equity.  

In this regard, the Company will record an increase in equity for the amount corresponding to the increase in equity 
recorded by each of the Group's subsidiaries with a balancing entry in the cost of the shareholdings of the subsidiaries 
Soltec Energías Renovables, S.L.U. and Powertis, S.A.U.  

The employees subject to the plan have accepted the conditions and terms of the plan during the month of January 2021, 
and therefore the directors have considered it appropriate not to record any amount at December 31, 2020 as long as the 
acceptance of the plan and consequently its accrual had not taken place. 

The directors, based on the work performed by an independent expert, have estimated that the fair value of the plan at 
December 31, 2020 amounts to 12,346 thousand euros for the Soltec Group as a whole, of which 3,220 thousand euros 
correspond to employees of the Company. This valuation has been made on the basis of the assumptions made by the 
Company's directors whereby it is expected that there will not be any departures among the employees benefiting from 
the plan and that all employees will reach the required qualification and target compliance rate. Likewise, the valuation 
has taken into account the estimate of the degree of achievement of the Group's performance based on the Group's 
financial projections and objectives, the estimate of the price per share based on the binomial model and Brownian 
movement, the discount periods based on the accrual periods and a risk-free rate weighted by sales in each country of 
the Group. 

c) Guarantees and pledged assets 

On September 28, 2018, the subsidiary Soltec Energías Renovables, S.L.U. formalized a syndicated credit facility and a 
guarantee line for a global amount of 100 million euros with the aim of financing its specific supply and installation 
projects, as well as adapting the conditions of its debt to the conditions of the market in which it operates. In order to 
obtain such financing, bank accounts, financial assets and the shares of the subgroup headed by Soltec Energías 
Renovables, S.L.U. were established as collateral to ensure compliance with the required coverage.  

At the date of preparation of these financial statements and as a result of the capital increase operation carried out in 
2020 (see note 7), the Company is a member of the syndicated credit facility described above. 

As a result of the foregoing, the Company has pledged the shares of Soltec Energías Renovables S.L.U. and its subsidiaries. 
In addition, the Company, as a partner in the syndicated credit facility, is obliged to maintain its interest in the capital 
stock of Soltec Energías Renovables S.L.U., and the total amount of the credit tranches drawn down is immediately payable 
in the event of default. 

At year-end 2020, the Company does not act as guarantor nor does it have any obligation derived from this or other loans 
granted to the Company or any of its subsidiaries, except for the aforementioned obligation. 

d) Audit fees 

During the fiscal years 2020 and 2019, the amounts of fees charged for auditing services, both individual and consolidated, 
and other services provided by the auditor of the Company's financial statements, Deloitte, S.L., were as follows: 

Description 

Thousands of euros 

2020 2019 

   
Audit services 232 25 
Other verification services 14 - 
Other services 308  - 

Total  554 25 
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e) Information on average supplier payment period 

The information required by the Third Additional Provision of Law 15/2010, of July 5 (amended by the Second Final 
Provision of Law 31/2014, of December 3) prepared in accordance with the ICAC Resolution of January 29, 2016, on the 
information to be included in the notes to the financial statements in relation to the average period of payment to 
suppliers in commercial transactions of companies resident in Spain, is detailed below. 

 Days 

 2020 2019 

   
Average supplier payment period 48 - 
Paid operations ratio 37 - 
Ratio of transactions pending payment 56 - 
   
Total payments made 1,212,161 - 
Total outstanding payments 1,817,515 299,182 
   

In the past fiscal year, given the date of incorporation of the company (December 2, 2019) and that the services provided 
by the creditors had been received on the last day of the 2020 fiscal year, the average payment period to suppliers was 
not representative. 

The maximum legal payment term applicable to the Company, in accordance with Law 11/2013 of July 26 establishing 
measures to combat late payment in commercial transactions, is 30 days unless there is an agreement between the parties 
with a maximum term of 60 days. 

12. Subsequent events 

Finally, it is important to stand out that during 2021 the Parent company has purchased 393,000 own shares up to the 
date of formulation of the financial statements amounting to 3,611 thousand euros. 

No additional significant subsequent events have occurred since December 31, 2020 until the date of preparation of these 
financial statements. 
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Annex I - Subsidiaries (thousands of euros)  

December 31, 2020 1 

Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total 
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

Soltec Energías 
Renovables, S.L.U. 

C/ Gabriel Campillo 
S/n P.i. La Serreta 
30500 - Molina De 

Segura - Murcia 
(Spain) 

Sale of solar trackers and their 
installation and maintenance in those 
cases in which the customer requires 

it. 

Soltec Power 
Holdings,S.A. 

100% - 
Deloitte, 

S.L. 
 

1,101 81,460 (17,104) 65,457 Euros 

Powertis, S.A.U. 

C/ Príncipe De 
Vergara 43 - 6th 
Floor - Madrid 

(Spain) 

The promotion and execution of 
projects of electric energy production 

facilities using photovoltaic solar 
energy, purchase and sale, transfer 

and/or acquisition for its own account 
of shares and/or participations in 

entities of all kinds, whether or not 
they have legal personality 

Soltec Power 
Holdings,S.A. 

100% - 
Deloitte, 

S.L. 
5,600 56,400 10,162 72,162 Euros 

Soltec Energie 
Rinnovabili S.r.L. 

Viale A. Gramsci, 20. 
Firenze (Italy) 

Commercialization and management 
of renewable energy equipment based 

on supply and installation works. 

Soltec 
Energías 

Renovables, 
S.L.U. 

- 100.00% 
 

Unaudited 
 

10 81 (65) 26 Euros 

Soltec America L.L.C. 
3050 Osgood Court. 
Fremont (California 

- United States) 

Commercialization and management 
of renewable energy equipment based 

on supply, installation and 
maintenance works. 

Soltec 
Energías 

Renovables, 
S.L.U. 

- 100.00% 
Deloitte 

USA 
3 - (2,666) (2,663) U.S. dollar 

 
1 In the case of subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the euro, the information has been translated into euros using the accounting principles for the translation of 

financial statements in foreign currencies. 

2 Retained earnings" includes the aggregate impact of the items "Shareholder contributions", "Prior years' losses", "Profit for the year" and "Adjustments for changes in value". 
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Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total 
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

Soltec Chile S.p.A. 

Av. Bosque Norte 
0134 7th Floor. 
Comuna de las 

Condes (Santiago de 
Chile - Chile) 

Commercialization and management 
of renewable energy equipment based 

on supply, installation and 
maintenance works. 

Soltec 
Energías 

Renovables, 
S.L.U. 

- 100.00% 
Deloitte 

Chile 
3,881 992 (2,661) 2,212 Chilean peso 

Soltec Brasil 
Industria, Comercio 

e Servicos de 
Energías Renovaveis 
LTDA (Soltec Brasil) 

Rua Dr. Barreto, 
483, Lauro de 

Freitas, Bahia State 
(Brazil) 

Commercialization and management 
of renewable energy equipment based 

on supply, installation and 
maintenance works. 

Soltec 
Energías 

Renovables, 
S.L.U. 

- 100.00% 
Deloitte 

Brazil 
20,220 4,299 (9,441) 15,078 Brazilian real 

Soltec Energías 
Renovables, S.A.C. 

Avenida República 
de Panamá Nº 3576, 

Lima (Peru) 

Commercialization and management 
of renewable energy equipment based 

on supply, installation and 
maintenance works. 

Soltec 
Energías 

Renovables, 
S.L.U. 

- 99.67% 
Deloitte 

Peru 
250 - (160) 90 Sol 

Solar Trackers Soltec 
SA de CV 

Oxford 30. Juarez 
(Mexico) 

Commercialization and management 
of renewable energy equipment based 

on supply, installation and 
maintenance works. 

Soltec 
Energías 

Renovables, 
S.L.U. 

- 100.00% 
Deloitte 
Mexico 

3 1,459 (1,942) (480) Mexican peso 

Soltec Australia, PTY 
LTD. 

300 Barangaroo 
Avenue, Level 24, 

Three International 
Towers, Barangaroo 

NSW 2000 
(Australia) 

Marketing and management of 
renewable energy equipment. 

Soltec 
Energías 

Renovables, 
S.L.U. 

- 100.00% 
Deloitte 
Australia 

1 17 152 170 
Australian 

dollar 

Soltec Argentina, 
S.R.L. 

Avenida del 
Libertador 498, 3rd 

Floor, 1001. 
Autonomous City of 

Buenos Aires 
(Argentina) 

Marketing and management of 
renewable energy equipment. 

Soltec 
Energías 

Renovables, 
S.L.U. 

- 95.00% 
Deloitte 

Argentina 
2 22 (195) (171) Argentine peso 
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Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total 
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

Soltec Innovations, 
S.L.U. 

C/ Gabriel Campillo, 
s/n Polígono 
Industrial La 

Serreta, Molina de 
Segura (Spain) 

Technical engineering services and 
activities related to technical advice. 

Soltec 
Energías 

Renovables, 
S.L.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (109) 1,487 1,381 Euro 

Soltec Trackers PVT 
LTD. 

303, 3rd Floor, 
Tower 1 DLF 

Corporate Park, DLF 
Phase - 3, Gurgaon, 

Haryana 122002 
(India) 

Commercialization and management 
of renewable energy equipment based 

on supply and installation works. 

Soltec 
Energías 

Renovables, 
S.L.U. 

- 100.00% 
Deloitte 

India 
479 30 (86) 423 Indian Rupee 

Soltec France, S.L. 
6, place de la 

madeleine, 75008, 
Paris (France) 

Marketing and management of 
renewable energy equipment. 

Soltec 
Energías 

Renovables, 
S.L.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 2,172 372 2,547 Euro 

Soltec Trackers 
Colombia SAS 

Calle 93 B, NO 19-35 
Office 201, Bogotá 

(Colombia) 
Marketing and management of 
renewable energy equipment. 

Soltec 
Energías 

Renovables, 
S.L.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 1 16 (54) (37) 
Colombian 

peso 

Soltec Commercial 
Consulting 

(Shanghai) Co. Ltd 

Room 606, No. 118 
Pudong South Road, 

Shanghai (China) 
Marketing and management of 
renewable energy equipment. 

Soltec 
Energías 

Renovables, 
S.L.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 122 - - 122 Yuan 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 - 2 5 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER DOS SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 - 49 52 Euro 
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Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total 
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER SEIS SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 - 2 5 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER SIETE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 - - 3 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER OCHO SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 - 2 5 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER ONCE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) 22 24 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER DOCE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) 5 7 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER TRECE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) 21 23 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER CATORCE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) 9 11 Euro 
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Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total 
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER DIECISIETE 

SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 - 28 31 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER DIECIOCHO 

SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 - 6 9 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER DIECINUEVE 

SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 - 3 6 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER VEINTE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 - 8 11 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER VEINTIUNO 

SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 51.00% Unaudited 3 - (2) 1 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER VEINTIDOS, 

SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 - - 3 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER VEINTITRES 

SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) 4 6 Euro 
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Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total 
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER 

VEINTICUATRO SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) - 2 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER 

VEINTICINCO SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) 9 11 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER VEINTISEIS 

SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) 12 14 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER VEINTISIETE 

SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 - 1 4 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER VEINTIOCHO 

SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 - 1 4 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER 

VEINTINUEVE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 - 35 38 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER TREINTA SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) 6 8 Euro 

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: J
O

S
E

 F
R

A
N

C
IS

C
O

 M
O

R
A

LE
S

 T
O

R
R

E
S

 (
N

IF
: 2

24
35

19
0R

)
F

IR
M

A
D

O
 p

or
: F

E
R

N
A

N
D

O
 C

A
B

A
LL

E
R

O
 D

E
 L

A
 S

E
N

 (
N

IF
: 1

18
13

93
1G

)
F

IR
M

A
D

O
 p

or
: M

A
R

IN
A

 M
O

R
E

N
O

 D
O

LE
R

A
 (

N
IF

: 4
84

53
57

8F
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: M
A

R
IA

 S
IC

IL
IA

 S
A

LV
A

D
O

R
E

S
 (

N
IF

: 0
74

96
77

6H
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: S
IL

V
IA

 A
M

A
T

E
R

A
T

S
U

 D
IA

Z
 D

E
 L

A
S

P
R

A
 M

O
R

A
LE

S
 (

N
IF

: 4
86

98
10

4C
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: M
A

R
C

O
S

 S
A

E
Z

 N
IC

O
LA

S
 (

N
IF

: 3
48

15
03

9P
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: N
U

R
IA

 A
LI

Ñ
O

 P
E

R
E

Z
 (

N
IF

: 0
31

03
66

8W
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: R
A

U
L 

M
O

R
A

LE
S

 T
O

R
R

E
S

 (
N

IF
: 3

47
85

10
6K

)
V

er
si

ón
 im

pr
im

ib
le

 c
on

 in
fo

rm
ac

ió
n 

de
 fi

rm
a 

ge
ne

ra
do

 d
es

de
 V

A
LI

D
e 

(h
ttp

://
va

lid
e.

re
ds

ar
a.

es
)

F
ir

m
a 

vá
lid

a.



 

34 
 

Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total 
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER TREINTA Y 

UNO SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) - 2 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER TREINTA Y 

DOS SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) 3 5 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER TREINTA Y 

TRES SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) 3 5 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER TREINTA Y 

CUATRO SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) - 2 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER TREINTA Y 

CINCO SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) - 2 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER TREINTA Y 

SEIS SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) - 2 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER TREINTA Y 

SIETE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) - 2 Euro 
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Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total 
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER TREINTA Y 

OCHO SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) - 2 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER TREINTA Y 

NUEVE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) - 2 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER CUARENTA 

SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) - 2 Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 - 25 28 Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
UNO SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 - 39 41 Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
CINCO SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) 58 60 Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
SEIS SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 51.00% Unaudited 3 (1) (2) - Euro 
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Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total 
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
SIETE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) 4 6 Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
OCHO SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 - - 3 Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
NUEVE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) - 2 Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
DIEZ SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

  100.00% Unaudited 3 - - 3 Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
ONCE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) - 2 Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
DOCE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) 304 306 Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
TRECE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) 12 14 Euro 
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Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total 
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
CATORCE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) 12 14 Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
QUINCE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) 12 14 Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
DIECISEIS SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) 12 14 Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
DIECISIETE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) - 2 Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
DIECIOCHO SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) - 2 Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
DIECINUEVE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) - 2 Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
VEINTE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 3 (1) - 2 Euro 
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Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total 
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

Usina de energia 
fotovoltaica Leo 
Silveira 1, Ltda 

Várzea de Palma 
Jequitaí KM 30, S/N 
- Varzea da Palma 
entrance, Minas 

Gerais (Brazil) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 315 - (317) (2) Brazilian real 

Usina de energia 
fotovoltaica Leo 
Silveira 2, Ltda 

Várzea de Palma 
Jequitaí KM 30, S/N 
- Varzea da Palma 
entrance, Minas 

Gerais (Brazil) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 112 - (114) (2) Brazilian real 

Usina de energia 
fotovoltaica Leo 
Silveira 3, Ltda 

Várzea de Palma 
Jequitaí KM 30, S/N 
- Varzea da Palma 
entrance, Minas 

Gerais (Brazil) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 112 - (113) (1) Brazilian real 

Usina de energia 
fotovoltaica Leo 
Silveira 4, Ltda 

Várzea de Palma 
Jequitaí KM 30, S/N 
- Varzea da Palma 
entrance, Minas 

Gerais (Brazil) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 188 - (190) (2) Brazilian real 

Usina de energia 
fotovoltaica Leo 
Silveira 5, Ltda 

Várzea de Palma 
Jequitaí KM 30, S/N 
- Varzea da Palma 
entrance, Minas 

Gerais (Brazil) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 188 - (190) (2) Brazilian real 

Usina de energia 
fotovoltaica Leo 
Silveira 6, Ltda 

Várzea de Palma 
Jequitaí KM 30, S/N 
- Varzea da Palma 
entrance, Minas 

Gerais (Brazil) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 188 - (190) (2) Brazilian real 
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Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total 
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

Usina de Energia 
Fotovoltaica 

Graviola I, S.A. 

PC Hercuilano 
Carvalho, 86, 64760-
00 Centro São João 

do Piauí (Brazil) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited - - (67) (67) Euro 

Usina de Energia 
Fotovoltaica 

Graviola II, S.A. 

PC Hercuilano 
Carvalho, 86, 64760-
00 Centro São João 

do Piauí (Brazil) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited - - (62) (62) Euro 

Usina de Energia 
Fotovoltaica 

Graviola III, S.A. 

PC Hercuilano 
Carvalho, 86, 64760-
00 Centro São João 

do Piauí (Brazil) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited - - (66) (66) Euro 

Usina de Energia 
Fotovoltaica 

Graviola IV, S.A. 

PC Hercuilano 
Carvalho, 86, 64760-
00 Centro São João 

do Piauí (Brazil) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited - - (66) (66) Euro 

USINA DE ENERGIA 
FOTOVOLTAICA 
PEDRANÁPOLIS, 

LTDA 

Rod Chaffi Marao 
km 9; S/N 

Pedranápolis (Brazil) 

Development services office, 
management of solar and photovoltaic 

projects, supervision of electrical 
contraction works, among other 

activities. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited - - (215) (215) Euro 

USINA DE ENERGIA 
FOTOVOLTAICA DE 

ARAXA LTDA 

ROD MG-428 
(ARAXA-FRANCA); 

DONA BEJA. ARAXÁ- 
MG. 38183-666. 

(Brazil) 

Development services office, 
management of solar and photovoltaic 

projects, supervision of electrical 
contraction works, among other 

activities. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited - - (298) (298) Euro 
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Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total 
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

POWERTIS BRASIL 
DESENVOLVIMENTO 

DE PROJETOS DE 
ENERGIA E 

PARTICIPAÇOES 
LTDA 

Rua Doutor Barreto, 
nº 423, Quadra 

1000, Lote 00008, 
Loteamento 40, 

Jardim Aeroporto, 
Bairro Pitangueiras, 
Lauro de Freitas, BA, 

CEP 42.701-310 
(Brazil) 

Search and development of greenfield 
projects 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited - - (241) (241) Brazilian real 

USINA DE ENERGIA 
FOTOVOLTAICA 

SOLATIO VARZEA 
LTDA. 

Est. Municipal 
Várzea da Palma ao 

Distrito Pedra de 
Santana KM 22, S/N, 
zona Rural, Várzea 

de Palma, CEP 
29.260-000 (Brazil) 

Exploitation and implementation of 
solar energy 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited - - (52) (52) Brazilian real 

USINA DE ENERGIA 
FOTOVOLTAICA 
BELVEDERE SPE 

LTDA 

RODOVIA RURAL 
AREA BR 496 KM 9 

S/N FAZENDA 
BELVEDERE (Brazil) 

Exploitation and implementation of 
solar energy 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited - - (4) (4) Brazilian real 

POWERTIS, SRL 
VIA VENTI 

SETTEMBRE,1. 
00187 ROME (Italy) 

Development services office, 
management of solar and photovoltaic 

projects, supervision of electrical 
contraction works, among other 

activities. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 100 - 162 262 Euro 

AMBRA SOLARE 
UNO SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  
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Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total 
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

AMBRA SOLARE DOS 
SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  

AMBRA SOLARE 
TRES SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  

AMBRA SOLARE 
CUATRO SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  

AMBRA SOLARE 
CINCO SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  

AMBRA SOLARE SEIS 
SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  

AMBRA SOLARE 
SIETE SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  

AMBRA SOLARE 
OCHO SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: J
O

S
E

 F
R

A
N

C
IS

C
O

 M
O

R
A

LE
S

 T
O

R
R

E
S

 (
N

IF
: 2

24
35

19
0R

)
F

IR
M

A
D

O
 p

or
: F

E
R

N
A

N
D

O
 C

A
B

A
LL

E
R

O
 D

E
 L

A
 S

E
N

 (
N

IF
: 1

18
13

93
1G

)
F

IR
M

A
D

O
 p

or
: M

A
R

IN
A

 M
O

R
E

N
O

 D
O

LE
R

A
 (

N
IF

: 4
84

53
57

8F
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: M
A

R
IA

 S
IC

IL
IA

 S
A

LV
A

D
O

R
E

S
 (

N
IF

: 0
74

96
77

6H
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: S
IL

V
IA

 A
M

A
T

E
R

A
T

S
U

 D
IA

Z
 D

E
 L

A
S

P
R

A
 M

O
R

A
LE

S
 (

N
IF

: 4
86

98
10

4C
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: M
A

R
C

O
S

 S
A

E
Z

 N
IC

O
LA

S
 (

N
IF

: 3
48

15
03

9P
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: N
U

R
IA

 A
LI

Ñ
O

 P
E

R
E

Z
 (

N
IF

: 0
31

03
66

8W
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: R
A

U
L 

M
O

R
A

LE
S

 T
O

R
R

E
S

 (
N

IF
: 3

47
85

10
6K

)
V

er
si

ón
 im

pr
im

ib
le

 c
on

 in
fo

rm
ac

ió
n 

de
 fi

rm
a 

ge
ne

ra
do

 d
es

de
 V

A
LI

D
e 

(h
ttp

://
va

lid
e.

re
ds

ar
a.

es
)

F
ir

m
a 

vá
lid

a.



 

42 
 

Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total 
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

AMBRA SOLARE 
NUEVE SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  

AMBRA SOLARE DIEZ 
SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  

AMBRA SOLARE 
ONCE SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  

AMBRA SOLARE 
DOCE SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  

AMBRA SOLARE 
TRECE SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  

AMBRA SOLARE 
CATORCE SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  

AMBRA SOLARE 
QUINCE SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  
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Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total 
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

AMBRA SOLARE 
DIECISEIS SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  

AMBRA SOLARE 
DIECISIETE SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  

AMBRA SOLARE 
DIECIOCHO SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  

AMBRA SOLARE 
DIECINUEVE SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  

AMBRA SOLARE 
VEINTE SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  

LUMINORA CATANIA 
SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 49.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  

LUMINORA 
TUPPETO 1 SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 49.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: J
O

S
E

 F
R

A
N

C
IS

C
O

 M
O

R
A

LE
S

 T
O

R
R

E
S

 (
N

IF
: 2

24
35

19
0R

)
F

IR
M

A
D

O
 p

or
: F

E
R

N
A

N
D

O
 C

A
B

A
LL

E
R

O
 D

E
 L

A
 S

E
N

 (
N

IF
: 1

18
13

93
1G

)
F

IR
M

A
D

O
 p

or
: M

A
R

IN
A

 M
O

R
E

N
O

 D
O

LE
R

A
 (

N
IF

: 4
84

53
57

8F
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: M
A

R
IA

 S
IC

IL
IA

 S
A

LV
A

D
O

R
E

S
 (

N
IF

: 0
74

96
77

6H
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: S
IL

V
IA

 A
M

A
T

E
R

A
T

S
U

 D
IA

Z
 D

E
 L

A
S

P
R

A
 M

O
R

A
LE

S
 (

N
IF

: 4
86

98
10

4C
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: M
A

R
C

O
S

 S
A

E
Z

 N
IC

O
LA

S
 (

N
IF

: 3
48

15
03

9P
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: N
U

R
IA

 A
LI

Ñ
O

 P
E

R
E

Z
 (

N
IF

: 0
31

03
66

8W
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: R
A

U
L 

M
O

R
A

LE
S

 T
O

R
R

E
S

 (
N

IF
: 3

47
85

10
6K

)
V

er
si

ón
 im

pr
im

ib
le

 c
on

 in
fo

rm
ac

ió
n 

de
 fi

rm
a 

ge
ne

ra
do

 d
es

de
 V

A
LI

D
e 

(h
ttp

://
va

lid
e.

re
ds

ar
a.

es
)

F
ir

m
a 

vá
lid

a.



 

44 
 

Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total 
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

LUMINORA 
TUPPETO 2 SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 49.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  

LUMINORA 
TUPPETO 3 SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 49.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  

LUMINORA 
RIPIZZATA SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 49.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  

LUMINORA 
SPARPAGLIATA SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 49.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  

LUMINORA 
SANTELIA 1 SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 49.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  

LUMINORA 
SANTELIA 2 SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 49.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  

LUMINORA 
CAVALIERE SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 49.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  
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Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total 
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

LUMINORA BARBA 
SRL 

ROME (RM) VIA 
VENTI SETTMBRE 1 
CAP 00187 (Italy) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 49.00% Unaudited 10 - - 10 Euro  

 

December 31, 2019 1 

 

Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total  
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

Soltec Energías 
Renovables, S.L.U. 

C/ Gabriel 
Campillo S/n P.i. 
La Serreta 30500 

- Molina De 
Segura - Murcia 

(Spain) 

Sale of solar trackers and their 
installation and maintenance in those 
cases in which the customer requires 

it. 

Soltec 
Power 

Holdings, 
S.A. 

100% - 
Deloitte, 

S.L. 
 

824  14,342  2,394  17,560  Euros 

Powertis, S.A.U. 
C/ Príncipe De 

Vergara 43 - 6th 
Floor (Madrid) 

The promotion and execution of 
projects of electric energy production 

facilities using photovoltaic solar 
energy, purchase and sale, transfer 

and/or acquisition for its own 
account of shares and/or 

participations in entities of all kinds, 

Soltec 
Power 

Holdings, 
S.A. 

100% - 
Deloitte, 

S.L. 
2,000  - (1,531) 469  Euros 

 
1 In the case of subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the euro, the information has been translated into euros using the accounting principles for the translation of 

financial statements in foreign currencies. 

2 Retained earnings" includes the aggregate impact of the items "Other members' contributions", "Prior years' losses", "Profit for the year" and "Adjustments for changes in 
value". 
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Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total  
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

whether or not they have legal 
personality 

Soltec Energie 
Rinnovabili S.r.L. 

Viale A. Gramsci, 
20. Firenze (Italy) 

Commercialization and management 
of renewable energy equipment 
based on supply and installation 

works. 

Soltec 
Energías 

Renovables, 
S.L.U. 

- 100% 
Unaudited 

 
10  85  (4) 91  Euros 

Soltec America L.L.C. 

3050 Osgood 
Court. Fremont 

(California - 
United States) 

Commercialization and management 
of renewable energy equipment 
based on supply, installation and 

maintenance works. 

Soltec 
Energías 

Renovables, 
S.L.U. 

- 100% 
Deloitte 

USA 
3  - (4,572) (4,569) U.S. dollar 

Soltec Chile S.p.A. 

Av. Bosque Norte 
0134 7th Floor. 
Comuna de las 

Condes (Santiago 
de Chile - Chile) 

Commercialization and management 
of renewable energy equipment 
based on supply, installation and 

maintenance works. 

Soltec 
Energías 

Renovables, 
S.L.U. 

- 100% 
Deloitte 

Chile 
1  992  (2,905) (1,912) Chilean peso 

Soltec Brasil 
Industria, Comercio 

e Servicos de 
Energías Renovaveis 
LTDA (Soltec Brasil) 

Rua Dr. Barreto, 
483, Lauro de 
Freitas, Bahia 
State (Brazil)  

Commercialization and management 
of renewable energy equipment 
based on supply, installation and 

maintenance works. 

Soltec 
Energías 

Renovables, 
S.L.U. 

- 100% 
Deloitte 

Brazil 
20,200  4,288  (1,635) 22,873  Brazilian real 

Soltec Energías 
Renovables, S.A.C. 

Avenida 
República de 

Panamá Nº 3576, 
Lima (Peru) 

Commercialization and management 
of renewable energy equipment 
based on supply, installation and 

maintenance works. 

Soltec 
Energías 

Renovables, 
S.L.U. 

- 99,67% 
Deloitte 

Peru 
240  123  (214) 149  New sun 

Solar Trackers Soltec 
SA de CV 

Oxford 30. Juarez 
(Mexico) 

Commercialization and management 
of renewable energy equipment 
based on supply, installation and 

maintenance works. 

Soltec 
Energías 

Renovables, 
S.L.U. 

- 100% 
Deloitte 
Mexico 

3  1,459  (2,095) (633) Mexican peso 
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Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total  
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

Soltec Australia, PTY 
LTD. 

300 Barangaroo 
Avenue, Level 24, 

Three 
International 

Towers, 
Barangaroo NSW 
2000 (Australia) 

Marketing and management of 
renewable energy equipment. 

Soltec 
Energías 

Renovables, 
S.L.U. 

- 100% 
Deloitte 
Australia 

1  17  (65) (47) 
Australian 

dollar 

Soltec Argentina, 
S.R.L. 

Avenida del 
Libertador 498, 
3rd Floor, 1001. 

Autonomous City 
of Buenos Aires 

(Argentina) 

Marketing and management of 
renewable energy equipment. 

Soltec 
Energías 

Renovables, 
S.L.U. 

- 95% 
Deloitte 

Argentina 
2  8  13  23  

Argentine 
peso 

Soltec Innovations, 
S.L. 

C/ Gabriel 
Campillo, s/n 

Polígono 
Industrial La 

Serreta, Molina 
de Segura (Spain) 

Technical engineering services and 
activities related to technical advice. 

Soltec 
Energías 

Renovables, 
S.L.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - (27) (24) Euro 

Soltec Trackers PVT 
LTD. 

303, 3rd Floor, 
Tower 1 DLF 

Corporate Park, 
DLF Phase - 3, 

Gurgaon, 
Haryana 122002 

(India) 

Commercialization and management 
of renewable energy equipment 
based on supply and installation 

works. 

Soltec 
Energías 

Renovables, 
S.L.U. 

- 100% 
Deloitte 

India 
479  18  46  543  Indian Rupee 

Soltec France, S.L. 

6, place de la 
madeleine, 

75008, Paris 
(France) 

Marketing and management of 
renewable energy equipment. 

Soltec 
Energías 

Renovables, 
S.L.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - 2,172  2,175  Euro 
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Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total  
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

Soltec Trackers 
Colombia SAS 

Calle 93 B, NO 
19-35 Office 201, 

Bogotá 
(Colombia) 

Marketing and management of 
renewable energy equipment. 

Soltec 
Energías 

Renovables, 
S.L.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 1  - 16  17  
Colombian 

peso 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - (7) (4) Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER UNO SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - (31) (28) Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER DOS SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - (30) (27) Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER TRES SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - (30) (27) Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER CUATRO SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - (27) (24) Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER CINCO SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - (23) (20) Euro 
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Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total  
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER SEIS SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - (10) (7) Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER SIETE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - (4) (1) Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER OCHO SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - (6) (3) Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER NUEVE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - (20) (17) Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER DIEZ SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  (1) (21) (19) Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER ONCE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  (1) (15) (13) Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER DOCE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  (1) (11) (9) Euro 
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Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total  
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER TRECE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  (1) (10) (8) Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER CATORCE 

SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  (1) (15) (13) Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER QUINCE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  (1) (36) (34) Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER DIECISEIS 

SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - (8) (5) Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER SEVENTEEN 

SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - (10) (7) Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER DIECIOCHO 

SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - (8) (5) Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER DIECINUEVE 

SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - (8) (5) Euro 
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Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total  
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER VEINTE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - (5) (2) Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER VEINTIUNO 

SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 51% Unaudited 3  - (2) 1  Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER VEINTIDOS 

SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - (1) 2  Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER VEINTITRES 

SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  (1) - 2  Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER 

VEINTICUATRO SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  (1) - 2  Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER 

VEINTICINCO SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  (1) - 2  Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER VEINTISEIS 

SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  (1) - 2  Euro 
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Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total  
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER VEINTISIETE 

SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - - 3  Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER 

VEINTIOCHO SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - - 3  Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER 

VEINTINUEVE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - - 3  Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER TREINTA SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  (1) - 2  Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - (4) (1) Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
UNO SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - (249) (246) Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
DOS SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - (185) (182) Euro 
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Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total  
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
TRES SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - (194) (191) Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
CUATRO SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - (12) (9) Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
CINCO SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  (1) (14) (12) Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
SEIS SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 51% Unaudited 3  (1) (1) 1  Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
SIETE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  (1) (8) (6) Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
OCHO SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - - 3  Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
NUEVE SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  (1) - 2  Euro 
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Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total  
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
DIEZ SL. 

Calle Príncipe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

(Spain) 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, installation, 
repair and maintenance of facilities 

related to renewable energies. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 3  - - 3  Euro 

USINA DE ENERGIA 
FOTOVOLTAICA DE 

ARAXA LTDA 

ROD MG-428 
(ARAXA-

FRANCA); DONA 
BEJA. ARAXÁ- 

MG. 38183-666. 
(Brazil) 

Development services office, 
management of solar and 

photovoltaic projects, supervision of 
electrical contraction works, among 

other activities. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 2  - (122) (120) Brazilian real 

Powertis Leo Silveira 
1, Ltda. 

ESTRADA VARZEA 
DE PALMA 

JEQUITAI KM 30 
(Brazil) 

Development services office, 
management of solar and 

photovoltaic projects, supervision of 
electrical contraction works, among 

other activities. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 2  - (90) (88) Brazilian real 

Powertis Leo Silveira 
2, Ltda. 

ESTRADA VARZEA 
DE PALMA 

JEQUITAI KM 30 
(Brazil) 

Development services office, 
management of solar and 

photovoltaic projects, supervision of 
electrical contraction works, among 

other activities. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 2  - (51) (49) Brazilian real 

Powertis Leo Silveira 
3, Ltda. 

ESTRADA VARZEA 
DE PALMA 

JEQUITAI KM 30 
(Brazil) 

Development services office, 
management of solar and 

photovoltaic projects, supervision of 
electrical contraction works, among 

other activities. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 2  - (49) (47) Brazilian real 

Powertis Leo Silveira 
4, Ltda. 

ESTRADA VARZEA 
DE PALMA 

JEQUITAI KM 30 
(Brazil) 

Development services office, 
management of solar and 

photovoltaic projects, supervision of 
electrical contraction works, among 

other activities. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 2  - (80) (78) Brazilian real 
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Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 2 

Total  
Equity 

Functional 
currency 

Powertis Leo Silveira 
5, Ltda. 

ESTRADA VARZEA 
DE PALMA 

JEQUITAI KM 30 
(Brazil) 

Development services office, 
management of solar and 

photovoltaic projects, supervision of 
electrical contraction works, among 

other activities. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 2  - (79) (77) Brazilian real 

Powertis Leo Silveira 
6, Ltda. 

ESTRADA VARZEA 
DE PALMA 

JEQUITAI KM 30 
(Brazil) 

Development services office, 
management of solar and 

photovoltaic projects, supervision of 
electrical contraction works, among 

other activities. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 2  - (79) (77) Brazilian real 

POWERTIS BRASIL 
DESENVOLVIMENTO 

DE PROJETOS DE 
ENERGIA E 

PARTICIPAÇOES 
LTDA 

Rua Doutor 
Barreto, nº 423, 

Quadra 1000, 
Lote 00008, 

Loteamento 40, 
Jardim 

Aeroporto, Bairro 
Pitangueiras, 

Lauro de Freitas, 
BA, CEP 42.701-

310 (Brazil) 

Search and development of 
greenfield projects 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited - - (2) (2) Brazilian real 

POWERTIS, SRL 

VIA VENTI 
SETTEMBRE,1. 
00187 ROMA, 

(ITALY) 

Development services office, 
management of solar and 

photovoltaic projects, supervision of 
electrical contraction works, among 

other activities. 

Powertis, 
S.A.U. 

- 100% Unaudited 10  - (32) (22) Euro 
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Appendix II - Companies over which significant influence is maintained (thousands of euros) 

December 31, 2020  

Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 1 

Total Equity 
Functional 
currency 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER UNO SL. 

Calle Principe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, 
installation, repair and 

maintenance of facilities related 
to renewable energies. 

Powertis, S.A.U. - 35.00% Unaudited 3  - 120  122  Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER TRES SL. 

Calle Principe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, 
installation, repair and 

maintenance of facilities related 
to renewable energies. 

Powertis, S.A.U. - 35.00% Unaudited 3  - 47  50  Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER CUATRO SL. 

Calle Principe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, 
installation, repair and 

maintenance of facilities related 
to renewable energies. 

Powertis, S.A.U. - 35.00% Unaudited 3  - 54  56  Euro 

 
1 Retained earnings" includes the aggregate impact of the items "Other members' contributions", "Prior years' losses", "Profit for the year" and "Adjustments for changes in value". 
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Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 1 

Total Equity 
Functional 
currency 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER CINCO SL. 

Calle Principe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, 
installation, repair and 

maintenance of facilities related 
to renewable energies. 

Powertis, S.A.U. - 35.00% Unaudited 3  - 66  689 Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER NUEVE SL. 

Calle Principe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, 
installation, repair and 

maintenance of facilities related 
to renewable energies. 

Powertis, S.A.U. - 35.00% Unaudited 3  - 39  42  Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER DIEZ SL. 

Calle Principe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, 
installation, repair and 

maintenance of facilities related 
to renewable energies. 

Powertis, S.A.U. - 35.00% Unaudited 3  (1) 29  32  Euro 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER QUINCE SL. 

Calle Principe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, 
installation, repair and 

maintenance of facilities related 
to renewable energies. 

Powertis, S.A.U. - 35.00% Unaudited 3  (1) 4  7  Euro 
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Company name Address Activity 
Holding 

company 
Direct Indirect Auditor 

Share 
Capital 

Share 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 1 

Total Equity 
Functional 
currency 

AMBER SOLAR 
POWER DIECISEIS 

SL. 

Calle Principe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, 
installation, repair and 

maintenance of facilities related 
to renewable energies. 

Powertis, S.A.U. - 35.00% Unaudited 3  - 12  15  Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
DOS SL. 

Calle Principe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, 
installation, repair and 

maintenance of facilities related 
to renewable energies. 

Powertis, S.A.U. - 35.00% Unaudited 3  - 291  293  Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
TRES SL. 

Calle Principe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, 
installation, repair and 

maintenance of facilities related 
to renewable energies. 

Powertis, S.A.U. - 35.00% Unaudited 3  - 98  101  Euro 

LUMINORA SOLAR 
CUATRO SL. 

Calle Principe de 
Vergara, n 43. 
28001 Madrid 

Production and sale of renewable 
energies. Construction, 
installation, repair and 

maintenance of facilities related 
to renewable energies. 

Powertis, S.A.U. - 35.00% Unaudited 3  - 45  48  Euro 
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MANAGEMENT REPORT  
for the year ended December 31, 2020 
 
SOLTEC POWER HOLDINGS, S.A.  
 

Soltec Power Holdings, S.A. (hereinafter "Soltec" or the "Company") is the head of a group of companies 

operating in the renewable energy sector, particularly in the photovoltaic sector.  

Today, Soltec is one of the world's leading manufacturers specialized in the development of integrated solutions 

for photovoltaic energy projects. Our portfolio of services ranges from the design and manufacture of solar 

trackers to the development of renewable energy solar parks.  

In the 21st century, humanity finds itself in an unprecedented situation. Industrial development and population 

growth have put the planet at risk. Humanity is consuming natural resources at a rapid rate and energy needs 

have so far been met primarily by fossil fuels. Over the past 150 years, the carbon dioxide resulting from burning 

these fuels for transportation, buildings and industry has accumulated in the planet's atmosphere. As a result, 

our atmosphere is retaining more heat from the sun than ever before (greenhouse effect) and for the first time 

in the planet's history, one species (humans) is changing the climate (global warming). The planet is facing 

previously unknown risks. Experts predict rising sea levels, more extreme weather (droughts and floods, episodes 

of extreme cold and heat, the disappearance of species, mass migrations, famine, ...).  

Fortunately, humans are both the cause of the problem and the only ones who can reverse this serious situation. 

For the first time, man has the technology to decarbonize the planet. This technology is being developed by 

companies such as Soltec, which specializes in photovoltaic solar energy. Soltec was born with the mission to 

create a clean and sustainable world based on efficient photovoltaic energy production. To achieve this, since its 

inception Soltec has been committed to leading the global photovoltaic energy market, offering reliable solutions 

through the latest technology. Soltec encourages its suppliers, customers, and employees to share this vision 

and is committed to developing environmental and sustainability actions that disseminate these values.  

The Company was incorporated in Murcia (Spain) on December 2, 2019. Our main activity has consisted of 

holding all the shares of the companies Soltec Energías Renovables, S.L.U. and Powertis, S.A.U. and indirectly the 

companies that depend on these shares.  

On December 23, 2019, by agreement between the partners of the Company, Soltec Energías Renovables,            

S.L.U. (Grupo Sefrán and Valueteam) and the shareholders of Powertis, S.A.U. (Grupo Sefrán, Valueteam and an 

individual) a non-monetary contribution was made to the company Soltec Power Holdings, S. A. corresponding 

to 100% of the shares of Soltec Energías Renovables, S.L.U. and 100% of the shares of Powertis, S.A.U. These 

contributions were recorded in the Company's shareholder register.A. corresponding to 100% of the shares of 

Soltec Energías Renovables, S.L.U. and 100% of the shares of Powertis, S.A.U. These contributions were 

registered in the commercial register on December 31, 2019.  
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The non-monetary contribution involved a capital increase of 296 million euros. The detail of the shares issued 

by both companies, the amount at which they were issued and their distribution according to the percentage of 

participation of each of the shareholders is as follows: 

Shareholder 

No. of shares 

issued for 

contribution 

Soltec 

Energías 

Renovables, 

S.L.U. 

No. of shares 

issued for 

contribution 

Powertis, 

S.A.U. 

Amount at 

which shares 

are issued 

(Euros) 

Soltec 

Energías 

Renovables, 

S.L.U. (Euros) 

Powertis, 

S.A.U. 

(Euros) 

Total 

(Euros) 

       

Valueteam 3,600,000 855,000 19.75 71,100,000 16,886,250 87,986,250 

Sefrán 8,400,000 1,995,000 19.75 165,900,000 39,401,250 205,301,250 

Individual - 150,000 19.75 - 2,962,500 2,962,500 

Total 12,000,000 3,000,000 19.75 237,000,000 59,250,000 296,250,000 

 

The incorporation of the Group's parent company, Soltec Power Holdings, S.A., in 2019 involved the 

reorganization of these businesses into a single parent company, considering that the aforementioned 

businesses were majority-owned by the Sefrán Group. Both subsidiaries had been carrying out their operating 

activities prior to the date of integration.  

The purpose of this reorganization was to provide the Soltec group with an optimal corporate structure that 

would allow it to initiate various corporate operations, including the launch of a public offering of shares. 

During the 2020 fiscal year and as a result of the Company's IPO process, the following relevant events have 

occurred:     

On October 6, 2020, the Company's General Shareholders’ Meeting approved the split of the number of the 

Company's shares by reducing their par value from 1 to 0.25 euros per share, at a ratio of 4 new shares for each 

old share, with no change in the amount of capital stock. 

On October 27, 2020, the resolution adopted on October 13, 2020 by the General Shareholders’ Meeting, 

consisting of a capital increase of 150 million euros by means of cash contributions, with waiver of pre-emptive 

subscription rights, through an offer for subscription of Company shares and a request for admission to trading 

on the stock exchange, was made public. 

On October 28, the Company's IPO took place, prior to which the capital stock was increased through the 

issuance and flotation of 31,146,717 new ordinary shares of the Company of the same class and series with a par 

value of EUR 0.25 per share and a share premium of EUR 4.57 applicable to the 30,881.767 newly issued ordinary 

shares subscribed for in the qualified investor tranche and in the non-qualified investor tranche (excluding the 

employee and commercial sub-tranches) and a nominal value of EUR 0.25 per share and an issue premium of 

EUR 4.09 applicable to the 264,950 newly issued ordinary shares subscribed for in the employee and commercial 

sub-tranche. Consequently, the total nominal amount of the issue amounts to EUR 7,786,679 and the share 

premium is increased by EUR 142,213,321. All the shares have been fully paid up. 

In addition, the majority shareholder (Sefrán) exercised its right to sell or green shoe the shares it held by placing 

an additional 3,115 thousand shares on the market, equivalent to 3.41% of the total volume of company shares.  

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: J
O

S
E

 F
R

A
N

C
IS

C
O

 M
O

R
A

LE
S

 T
O

R
R

E
S

 (
N

IF
: 2

24
35

19
0R

)
F

IR
M

A
D

O
 p

or
: F

E
R

N
A

N
D

O
 C

A
B

A
LL

E
R

O
 D

E
 L

A
 S

E
N

 (
N

IF
: 1

18
13

93
1G

)
F

IR
M

A
D

O
 p

or
: M

A
R

IN
A

 M
O

R
E

N
O

 D
O

LE
R

A
 (

N
IF

: 4
84

53
57

8F
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: M
A

R
IA

 S
IC

IL
IA

 S
A

LV
A

D
O

R
E

S
 (

N
IF

: 0
74

96
77

6H
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: S
IL

V
IA

 A
M

A
T

E
R

A
T

S
U

 D
IA

Z
 D

E
 L

A
S

P
R

A
 M

O
R

A
LE

S
 (

N
IF

: 4
86

98
10

4C
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: M
A

R
C

O
S

 S
A

E
Z

 N
IC

O
LA

S
 (

N
IF

: 3
48

15
03

9P
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: N
U

R
IA

 A
LI

Ñ
O

 P
E

R
E

Z
 (

N
IF

: 0
31

03
66

8W
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: R
A

U
L 

M
O

R
A

LE
S

 T
O

R
R

E
S

 (
N

IF
: 3

47
85

10
6K

)
V

er
si

ón
 im

pr
im

ib
le

 c
on

 in
fo

rm
ac

ió
n 

de
 fi

rm
a 

ge
ne

ra
do

 d
es

de
 V

A
LI

D
e 

(h
ttp

://
va

lid
e.

re
ds

ar
a.

es
)

F
ir

m
a 

vá
lid

a.



 

-3- 
 

In relation to these capital increases, the Company has recorded the incremental expenses associated with them 

with a credit to reserves, net of the tax effect, amounting to 7,886 thousand euros. 

Following this transaction, the share capital of the Parent Company at December 31, 2020 amounts to 22,847 

thousand euros, represented by 91,387 thousand shares with a par value of 0.25 euros each, fully subscribed. 

1. BUSINESS PERFORMANCE AND RESULTS  

The following is an understanding of key financial and non-financial indicators.  

FINANCIAL INDICATORS  

- At the end of the 2020 financial year, total assets accumulate an amount of 249,678 thousand euros 

(102,936 thousand euros at the end of the 2019 financial year). At December 31, 2020 this figure is mainly 

represented by the value of the investments, which is included under the heading "Long-term investments 

in group companies and associates", the total amount of which is 227,876 thousand euros. The remaining 

amount relates mainly to the headings "Deferred tax assets" in the amount of 6,395 thousand euros, "Trade 

and other receivables" in the amount of 1,629 thousand euros of "Short-term investments in group 

companies and associates" with 11,542 thousand euros and "Cash and cash equivalents" with an amount of 

2,012 thousand euros. As of December 31, 2019, total assets were mainly represented by the value of the 

investments included under the heading "Long-term investments in group companies and associates", the 

total amount of which was 102,876 thousand euros.  

- At December 31, 2020, equity amounted to 244,193 thousand euros. This amount is made up of share 

capital, amounting to 22,847 thousand euros, represented by 91,387 thousand shares with a par value of 

0.25 euro, fully subscribed and paid up prior to the preparation of these financial statements. Also included 

is the share premium, which accumulates a value of 230,090 thousand euros, arising from the capital 

increase carried out on October 28, 2020 and from the difference between the price of the 2019 transaction 

and the amount at which the net assets contributed by Soltec Energías Renovables, S.L.U. and Powertis, 

S.A.U. contributed by Grupo Sefrán, majority shareholder of the Company, are recorded. Similarly, the 

amount of equity also includes under "Reserves" the expenses incurred in making the cash and non-cash 

contributions in 2019 amounting to Euros 74 thousand and the expenses incurred in issuing equity 

instruments, net of taxes, amounting to Euros 7,960 thousand, both of which reduce reserves. Finally, the 

amount of equity is reduced by the result for the year, which in 2020 accumulated losses of 557 thousand 

euros and by the negative results of previous years in the amount of 225 thousand euros. At December 31, 

2019, equity amounted to 102,637 thousand euros. This amount consisted of share capital amounting to 

15,060 thousand euros, represented by 15,060 thousand shares with a par value of 1 euro, fully subscribed 

and paid up prior to the preparation of these financial statements. Also included was the share premium, 

which accumulated a value of 87,802 thousand euros arising from the aforementioned price difference. 

Finally, the amount of equity was reduced by the result for the year, which in 2019 accumulated a loss of 

225 thousand euros. 

- At the end of the 2020 fiscal year, the Company's liabilities classified in the long term have a balance of 

3,556 thousand euros corresponding to debts with group companies (no amount at the end of the 2019 
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fiscal year). With respect to short-term liabilities, it has a balance of 1,929 thousand euros recorded, 

corresponding mainly to third-party and group trade payables (299 thousand euros at year-end 2019). 

- At year-end 2020, the tax consolidation group of which the Company is the Parent Company, has generated 

tax loss carryforwards amounting to 25,582 thousand in the current year. In this context, as mentioned 

above, the Company has recorded in the balance sheet the deferred tax asset associated with the 

aforementioned tax loss carryforwards in the amount of 6,395 thousand euros (no amount at the end of 

2019). 

 NON-FINANCIAL INDICATORS  

In relation to non-financial indicators, the Company's activity, by its nature, does not have a significant 

environmental impact that influences its net worth, financial situation, or results. Therefore, no specific 

disclosures are included in this Management Report with respect to environmental issues.  

2. FORECAST AND BUSINESS PLAN FOR 
2021  

The Company's directors consider that there are no reasonable doubts about the going concern of the Company 

and that positive results will be obtained in the following years, considering the design of the business plans of 

the portfolio companies. The business plans have a growth perspective based on five fundamental pillars: 

investment in innovation, lasting agreements, geographic expansion, commitment to sustainability, financing, 

and integration.  

3. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT 
ACTIVITIES  

The Company, on an individual level, does not carry out research and development activities. Such activity is 

carried out by companies within the Soltec Group, of which we are the parent company.  
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4. ACQUISITIONS OF TREASURY STOCK - 
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

There were no transactions involving treasury stock during the year, nor were there any financial 

instruments at year-end that were not disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. In the 2021 

financial year, prior to the preparation of these financial statements, treasury stock was acquired as detailed 

in the note on subsequent events in this management report.  

5. RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES  

Soltec Power Holdings, S.A. is committed to managing the financial risks that affect us. This management is 

centralized in the financial management of the group of which the Company is the parent company, which 

has established the necessary mechanisms to control the exposure to these risks.  

Principal risks and uncertainties for the Soltec Group in fiscal 2020: COVID-19. 

Despite advances in virus prevention techniques, in particular with the success demonstrated by the 

vaccine, due to the uncertainties regarding the potential effects of this extraordinary health emergency 

situation in the future, the consequences of COVID-19 for the Soltec Group's operations are uncertain and 

will depend to a large extent on the evolution of the vaccination plan established by the different 

governments worldwide and the evolution of the pandemic in the coming months. Thus, at the date of 

preparation of these financial statements, the potential impact on the Company in the coming months is 

uncertain and it is not possible to reliably assess the consequences on the future operations of the Soltec 

Group and its ability to recover the value of its assets in the short term. 

However, the Company's management has made an assessment with the best available information of the 

economic, social and labor impacts that the pandemic caused by COVID-19 is having on the Soltec Group to 

date, analyzing the effects and possible consequences in the fiscal year 2021, despite the current 

uncertainty about its consequences. 

a.  Operational risk 

Based on the evaluation of the development of the activity carried out by the management in 2020 

after the emergence of COVID-19, to date, the Soltec Group, of which the Company is the parent 

company, has been able to maintain the development of the projects committed with customers 

without significant delays in the collection of trade accounts that could affect the liquidity of the Soltec 

Group, its operating cycle and therefore the Company's ability to recover its debtor balances and the 

investment in its subsidiaries. Likewise, there have been no significant delays in the process of supplying 

materials by suppliers, and all contracts in force have been carried out in accordance with the previously 

established conditions. 
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Although the business continuity risk has not been affected, the Soltec Group has experienced certain 

impacts depending on the business segment: 

- Industrial segment (subsidiary Soltec Energías Renovables, S.L.U.): there have been 

certain delays in the commencement of project works by third party clients; during the first 

half of the year 2020 these have been mainly due to delays in the processing processes as a 

result of the pandemic, and in the last quarter of the year there has also been a substantial 

increase in the acquisition price of photovoltaic solar modules which has caused some clients 

to decide to postpone the commencement of the same. The Soltec Group's management 

expects that these orders will commence as the prices of this component return to more 

normal values. 

Although these issues do not represent a problem of operations, they have affected the turnover 

and the result for the year 2020, although the Company's directors consider that this net turnover 

amount will be recovered in the following year and therefore will not affect the Company's ability 

to recover the value of its investee. 

- Project development segment (subsidiary Powertis, S.A.U.): during 2020, the 

subsidiaries of Powertis, S.A.U. have continued with the development of the solar projects, 

although they have been delayed due to the stoppage suffered by the administration as a result 

of COVID-19 in the main countries in which they operate. 

The delays suffered, in the opinion of the directors, are of a merely transitory nature and do not 

significantly alter the fulfillment of the long-term business plan of the Company's subsidiaries. 

b.  Credit risk 

Credit risk consists of the risk that a debtor will become insolvent in relation to the applicable 

contractual obligations and that the Company will incur a capital loss. 

In general, the Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents in financial institutions with high credit 

ratings. In addition, the subsidiaries have sufficient liquidity to meet their receivables and debit 

balances with the Company. 

c.  Liquidity risk 

This refers to the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in divesting a financial instrument 

sufficiently quickly without incurring significant additional costs or the risk associated with not having 

liquidity at the time when payment obligations have to be met. 

To ensure liquidity and to be able to meet all payment commitments arising from its activity, the 

Company has the cash shown in its balance sheet. During the 2020 financial year, the Company carried 

out a capital increase (see note 7), which resulted in a significant increase in available short-term 

resources and a cash inflow net of issuance costs of 139 million euros.  

d.  Impairment of assets 

Considering all the aforementioned factors and the information currently available, the Company's 

management and directors have not made a substantial modification to the business plan of its 

subsidiaries and therefore do not expect them to have a relevant impact on the impairment of 

investments in group companies, nor on the deferred tax assets recorded in the current year. 
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Finally, it should be noted that the Group's directors and management are constantly monitoring the 

evolution of the situation to successfully deal with any financial and non-financial impacts that may arise as 

a result of COVID-19. 

In addition to these risks, which the Company is working to mitigate, there are other macroeconomic, legal, 

political and social variables whose evolution is uncertain, and which may affect the Company's 

performance.  

6. ENVIRONMENTAL AND PERSONNEL 
ISSUES  

Given the activity in which the Company engages, there are no environmental liabilities, expenses, assets, 

provisions or contingencies that could be significant in relation to the Company's equity, financial position 

and results. Additionally, there are no circumstances related to greenhouse gas emission rights.  

As of December 31, 2020, the average number of personnel employed during the year, distributed by 

category, was as follows: 

  
Average number of personnel 

2020 2019 

      

Department Director 4 - 

Total 4 - 

 

The distribution by gender at the end of fiscal year 2020, broken down by category, is as follows: 

  

Personnel at closing 

31/12/2020 31/12/2019 

Men Women Total Men Women Total 

              

Department Director 4  3  7  - - - 

Total 4  3  7  - - - 

7. AVERAGE PAYMENT PERIOD  

In 2020, the Company's average payment period was 48 days. 
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8. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS  

During 2021 the Company has purchased 393,000 own shares up to the date of formulation of the financial 

statements amounting to 3,611 thousand euros. 

There have been no additional significant subsequent events since December 31, 2020 until the date of 

preparation of these financial statements.  

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: J
O

S
E

 F
R

A
N

C
IS

C
O

 M
O

R
A

LE
S

 T
O

R
R

E
S

 (
N

IF
: 2

24
35

19
0R

)
F

IR
M

A
D

O
 p

or
: F

E
R

N
A

N
D

O
 C

A
B

A
LL

E
R

O
 D

E
 L

A
 S

E
N

 (
N

IF
: 1

18
13

93
1G

)
F

IR
M

A
D

O
 p

or
: M

A
R

IN
A

 M
O

R
E

N
O

 D
O

LE
R

A
 (

N
IF

: 4
84

53
57

8F
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: M
A

R
IA

 S
IC

IL
IA

 S
A

LV
A

D
O

R
E

S
 (

N
IF

: 0
74

96
77

6H
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: S
IL

V
IA

 A
M

A
T

E
R

A
T

S
U

 D
IA

Z
 D

E
 L

A
S

P
R

A
 M

O
R

A
LE

S
 (

N
IF

: 4
86

98
10

4C
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: M
A

R
C

O
S

 S
A

E
Z

 N
IC

O
LA

S
 (

N
IF

: 3
48

15
03

9P
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: N
U

R
IA

 A
LI

Ñ
O

 P
E

R
E

Z
 (

N
IF

: 0
31

03
66

8W
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: R
A

U
L 

M
O

R
A

LE
S

 T
O

R
R

E
S

 (
N

IF
: 3

47
85

10
6K

)
V

er
si

ón
 im

pr
im

ib
le

 c
on

 in
fo

rm
ac

ió
n 

de
 fi

rm
a 

ge
ne

ra
do

 d
es

de
 V

A
LI

D
e 

(h
ttp

://
va

lid
e.

re
ds

ar
a.

es
)

F
ir

m
a 

vá
lid

a.



 
 

1/49 

 

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: J
O

S
E

 F
R

A
N

C
IS

C
O

 M
O

R
A

LE
S

 T
O

R
R

E
S

 (
N

IF
: 2

24
35

19
0R

)
F

IR
M

A
D

O
 p

or
: F

E
R

N
A

N
D

O
 C

A
B

A
LL

E
R

O
 D

E
 L

A
 S

E
N

 (
N

IF
: 1

18
13

93
1G

)
F

IR
M

A
D

O
 p

or
: M

A
R

IN
A

 M
O

R
E

N
O

 D
O

LE
R

A
 (

N
IF

: 4
84

53
57

8F
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: M
A

R
IA

 S
IC

IL
IA

 S
A

LV
A

D
O

R
E

S
 (

N
IF

: 0
74

96
77

6H
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: S
IL

V
IA

 A
M

A
T

E
R

A
T

S
U

 D
IA

Z
 D

E
 L

A
S

P
R

A
 M

O
R

A
LE

S
 (

N
IF

: 4
86

98
10

4C
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: M
A

R
C

O
S

 S
A

E
Z

 N
IC

O
LA

S
 (

N
IF

: 3
48

15
03

9P
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: N
U

R
IA

 A
LI

Ñ
O

 P
E

R
E

Z
 (

N
IF

: 0
31

03
66

8W
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: R
A

U
L 

M
O

R
A

LE
S

 T
O

R
R

E
S

 (
N

IF
: 3

47
85

10
6K

)
V

er
si

ón
 im

pr
im

ib
le

 c
on

 in
fo

rm
ac

ió
n 

de
 fi

rm
a 

ge
ne

ra
do

 d
es

de
 V

A
LI

D
e 

(h
ttp

://
va

lid
e.

re
ds

ar
a.

es
)

F
ir

m
a 

vá
lid

a.



 
 

1/49 

 

ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR LISTED COMPANIES 

TRANSLATION FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY 
 
IDENTIFICATION OF USER 

 

Ending date of reference financial period ended December 31, 2020  

 

CIF: A05556733 

 

Registered Name: SOLTEC POWER HOLDINGS, S.A. 

 

Registered office: C/ GABRIEL CAMPILLO CONTRERAS S/N, 30500 MOLINA DE SEGURA, MURCIA 
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A. CAPITAL STRUCTURE 

 

A.1 Complete the following table on the company’s share capital: 

 

Date of last change Share capital (€) Number of shares Number of voting rights 

27/10/2020 22,846,679.25 91,386,717 91,386,717 

 

 
Indicate whether there are different classes of shares with different rights attaching thereto: 

[ ] Yes 

[√] No 
 

A.2 Provide details of direct and indirect holders of significant shareholdings in the company at 

year end, excluding directors: 

 

Name or corporate name of 

shareholder 

% shares carrying voting rights 
% of voting rights through financial 

instruments 
% of total voting 

rights 
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect 

JOSÉ FRANCISCO 

MORENO RIQUELME 0.00 42.27 0.00 0.00 42.27 

SANTANDER ASSET 

MANAGEMENT, S.A., 

SGIIC 
0.00 3.44 0.00 0.00 3.44 

SCHROEDERS PLC 0.00 3.22 0.00 0.00 3.22 
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Breakdown of indirect holding: 

 

Name or company name of 
the indirect holder 

Name or company name 
of the direct holder 

% voting rights attributed 

to shares 

% voting rights through 

financial instruments 
total % of voting rights 

JOSÉ FRANCISCO 

MORENO RIQUELME 

GRUPO CORPORATIVO 

SEFRAN S.L. 
42.27 0.00 42.27 

SCHROEDERS PLC 

SCHROEDER 

INVESTMENT 

MANAGEMENT 

SWITZERLAND AG 

0.01 0.00 0.01 

SCHROEDERS PLC 

SCHROEDER 

INVESTMENT 

MANAGEMENT NORTH 

AMERICA LIMITED 

0.07 0.00 0.07 

SCHROEDERS PLC 

SCHROEDER 

INVESTMENT 

MANAGEMENT 

LIMITED 

3.14 0.00 3.14 

 

 

Most significant movements 

SANTANDER ASSET MANAGEMENT, S.A., SGIIC Purchase of shares above the threshold of "significant shareholding" 
in the company 28/10/2020. 
 
SCHRODERS PLC Purchase of shares above the threshold of "significant shareholding" in the company 10/11/2020. 
 
José Francisco Moreno Riquelme Purchase of shares above the threshold of "significant shareholding" in the 
company 27/11/2020. 

 

A.3 Complete the following tables on the members of the company's board of directors who hold 

voting rights over shares of the company: 
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Name or corporate name of 

director 

% of shares carrying voting 

rights 

% voting rights through 

financial instruments % of total voting rights 

% voting rights that can be 

transmitted through  

financial instruments 

Direct Indirect Direct Indirect Direct Indirect 

MR. RAÚL MORALES TORRES 
0.01 19.58 0.00 0.00 19.59 0.00 0.00 

MR. JOSÉ FRANCISCO 

MORALES TORRES 
0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.00 0.00 

 

Total percentage of voting rights held by the Board of Directors 19.60 

 

 

Breakdown of indirect holding: 

 

Name or corporate 

name of director 

Name or corporate 

name 

social of the direct 

holder 

% voting rights 

attributed to shares 

% voting rights through 

financial instruments 

total % of voting 

rights 

% of voting rights 

that can 

be transmitted 

through financial 

instruments 

No data           

 

 

A.4 Indicate, if applicable, any family, commercial, contractual or corporate relationships between 

significant shareholders, to the extent they are known to the company, unless they are 

insignificant or result from the ordinary course of business, except those that are included in 

Section A.6: 

 

Related name or corporate name Type of relationship Brief description 

No data   

 

 

A.5 If applicable, state the commercial, contractual or corporate relationships between significant 

shareholders and the company and/or its group, unless they are insignificant or result from the 

ordinary course of business: 

 

Related name or corporate name Nature of relationship Brief description 

MR. RAÚL MORALES TORRES Corporate 
Raúl Morales Torres is a significant shareholder and Chief 

Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors. 

 

 

A.6 Describe the relationships, unless insignificant for the two parties, between significant 

shareholders or shareholders represented on the Board and the directors, or their 

representatives, in the case of proprietary directors. 
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Explain, where appropriate, how the significant shareholders are represented. Specifically, state 

those directors appointed to represent significant shareholders, those whose appointment was 

proposed by significant shareholders, or those linked to significant shareholders and/or 

companies in its group, specifying the nature of such relationships or ties. In particular, mention 

the existence, identity and position of directors, or their representatives, as the case may be, of 

the listed company, who are, in turn, members of the Board of Directors or their representatives 

of companies that hold significant shareholdings in the listed company or in group companies of 

these significant shareholders. 

 

Name or corporate name of the 

director or representative 

Name or corporate name of 

related significant shareholder 

Name of the group company of 

the significant shareholder 
Description of relationship / 

position 

No data       

 

 

A.7 State whether any shareholders’ agreements affecting the company pursuant to Articles 530 

and 531 of the Ley de Sociedades de Capital (Spanish Corporate Enterprises Act) have been 

reported to the company. If so, briefly describe them and list the shareholders bound by the 

agreement: 

 

[ ] Yes 

[√] No 

 

State whether the company is aware of any concerted actions among its shareholders. If so, 

provide a brief description: 

 

[ ] Yes 

[√] No 

 

If any of the abovementioned agreements or concerted actions have been modified or 

terminated during the year, please specify expressly: 

 

NA 

 

A.8 State whether any individual or company exercises or may exercise control over the company 

in accordance with Article 5 of the Ley de Mercados de Valores (“Spanish Securities Market 

Act”). If so, please identify them: 

 

[ ] Yes 

[√] No 

 

A.9 Complete the following tables on the company's treasury shares: 

 

At year end: 

 

Number of direct shares Number of indirect shares (*) Total % of share capital 

    0.00 
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(*) Through: 

 

Name or corporate name of the direct 

owner of the shareholding 
Number of direct shares 

No data  

 

Explain any significant changes during the year: 

 

Explain any significant changes 

Nothing to highlight 

 

A.10 Describe the terms and conditions and the duration of the authority currently in force given by 

the General Shareholders’ Meeting to the Board of Directors to issue, repurchase, or dispose 

of treasury shares. 

 

  

"The General Shareholders' Meeting, in its resolution of October 6, 2020, decided to empower the Board 
of Directors of the Company so that, to the fullest extent required by law and with express powers of 
substitution in favor of the Chief Executive Officer or any other director or proxy of the Company, to 
develop, formalize, execute and settle, as the case may be, the Executive Incentive Plan, which was 
approved by the General Shareholders' Meeting in the same act; adopting such resolutions and signing 
such documents, public or private, as may be necessary or convenient for its full effect, with the power 
even to correct, rectify, amend or supplement this resolution, and in general, to adopt such resolutions 
and carry out such actions as may be necessary or merely convenient for the successful completion of 
this resolution and the implementation, execution and liquidation of the Incentive Plan, including, by 
way of example and without limitation, the following powers: 
[...] 
(G) Draw up, sign and present as many communications and complementary documentation as may be 
necessary or convenient before any authority or body for the purposes of the implementation, execution 
or liquidation of the Incentive Plan. 
(H) To carry out any action, declaration or management before any agency or authority to obtain any 
authorization or verification necessary for the implementation, execution or liquidation of the Incentive 
Plan. 
(I) Drafting, signing, granting and, as the case may be, certifying any type of document related to the 
Incentive Plan, including, but not limited to, signing and modifying any contracts with entities that 
provide any services necessary or convenient for the development of the Incentive Plan. 
(J) To draft and publish all necessary or convenient announcements. 
(K) And, in general, to carry out as many actions and sign as many documents as may be necessary or 
convenient for the validity, effectiveness, implementation, development, execution, liquidation and 
successful completion of the Incentive Plan and of the previously adopted agreements. 
This agreement is made with no time limitation other than that deriving from the term of the Incentive 
Plan. 
Since the Incentive Plan consists of compensation to executives in the form of the Company's own 
shares,  
(K) includes a power for the Board of Directors to implement a plan to repurchase the Company's own 
shares in order to execute and settle the Incentive Plan. 
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A.11 Estimated free float: 

 

 % 

Estimated free float 31.00 

 

 

A.12 State whether there are any restrictions (bylaw, legislative, or of any other nature) placed on 

the transfer of shares and/or any restrictions on voting rights. In particular, state the existence 

of any type of restriction that may inhibit a takeover attempt of the company through 

acquisition of its shares on the market, and those systems for the prior authorisation or 

notification that may be applicable, under sector regulations, to acquisitions or transfers of the 

company’s financial instruments. 

 

[ ] Yes 

[√] No 

 

A.13 State whether the shareholders acting at a general shareholders’ meeting have approved the 

adoption of measures to neutralise a takeover bid pursuant to the provisions of Law 6/2007. 

 

[ ] Yes 

[√] No 

 

If applicable, explain the measures adopted and the terms under which these restrictions will 

cease to apply: 

 

A.14 State whether the company has issued securities that are not traded on a regulated EU market. 

 

[ ] Yes 

[√] No 

 

If applicable, list the different classes of shares, if any, and the rights and obligations attaching to 

each class of shares: 

 

B. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING 

 

B.1 Indicate and, as applicable, describe any differences between the quorum established by the 

Spanish Corporate Enterprises Act (or “LSC” according to its acronym in Spanish) for General 

Shareholders’ Meeting and that set by the company. 

 

[ ] Yes 

[√] No 

 

B.2 State whether there are any differences in the company’s manner of adopting corporate 

resolutions and the manner for adopting corporate resolutions described by the LSC and, if so, 

explain: 

 

[ ] Yes 

[√] No 

 

B.3 State the rules for amending the company’s Bylaws. In particular, indicate the majorities 

required to amend the bylaws and any provisions in place to protect shareholders’ rights in the 

event of amendments to the bylaws. 
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The rules for amending the bylaws and the majorities required to do so do not differ from 

those established in the Spanish Corporate Enterprises Act. 

 

B.4 Give details of attendance at General Shareholders’ Meetings held during the year of this 

report and the two previous years: 

 

 Attendance data 

Date of general meeting % physically 
present 

% present by proxy Electronic voting Other Total 

28/07/2020 100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 

Of which, free float 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

 

 

B.5 Indicate whether any item on the agenda of the General Shareholders’ Meetings during the 

year has not been approved by the shareholders for any reason: 

 

[ ] Yes 

[√] No 

 

B.6 Indicate whether the Bylaws contain any restrictions requiring a minimum number of shares 

to attend General Shareholders’ Meetings, or on distance voting: 

 

[ ] Yes 

[√] No 

 

B.7 Indicate whether it has been established that certain decisions other than those established by 

Law exists that entail an acquisition, disposal or contribution to another company of essential 

assets or other similar corporate transactions that must be subject to the approval of the 

General Shareholders’ Meeting. 

 

[ ] Yes 

[√] No 

 

B.8 State the address and method for accessing the company’s website to find information on 

corporate governance and other information regarding General Shareholders’ Meetings that 

must be made available to shareholders through the company’s website. 

 

https://soltecpowerholdings.com/corporate-governance/board-of-directors/ 

 

https://soltecpowerholdings.com/shareholders-and-investors/ 

 

C. STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY’S MANAGEMENT 

 

C.1 Board of Directors: 

 

C.1.1 Maximum and minimum number of directors established in the Bylaws and the 

number set by the General Shareholders Meeting: 
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Maximum number of directors 15 

Minimum number of directors 5 

Total number of directors set by the General 
Shareholders’ Meeting 

7 

 

C.1.2  Complete the following identifying the members of the Board: 

 

Name or corporate 
name of director 

Representative 
Director 
category 

Position on the 
Board 

First 
appointment 

date 

Last 
appointment 

date 

Election 
procedure 

MR. RAÚL MORALES 
TORRES 

  Executive 
CHAIRMAN-
MANAGING 
DIRECTOR 

06/10/2020 06/10/2020 

RESOLUTION AT 
GENERAL 
SHAREHOLDERS' 
MEETING 

MR. MARCOS SÁEZ 
NICOLÁS 

  
External 
proprietary 
director 

DIRECTOR 06/10/2020 06/10/2020 

RESOLUTION OF 
AT GENERAL 
SHAREHOLDERS' 
MEETING 

MR. JOSÉ FRANCISCO 
MORALES TORRES 

  
External 
proprietary 
director 

DIRECTOR 06/10/2020 06/10/2020 

RESOLUTION AT 
GENERAL 
SHAREHOLDERS' 
MEETING 

MS. MARINA MORENO 
DÓLERA 

  
External 
proprietary 
director 

DIRECTOR 06/10/2020 06/10/2020 

RESOLUTION AT 
GENERAL 
SHAREHOLDERS' 
MEETING 

MS. NURIA ALIÑO PÉREZ   Independent DIRECTOR 06/10/2020 06/10/2020 

RESOLUTION AT 
GENERAL 
SHAREHOLDERS' 
MEETING 

MR. FERNANDO 
CABALLERO DE LA SEN 

  Independent 
INDEPENDENT 

COORDINATING 
DIRECTOR 

06/10/2020 06/10/2020 

RESOLUTION AT 
GENERAL 
SHAREHOLDERS' 
MEETING 

MS. MARÍA SICILIA 
SALVADORES 

  Independent DIRECTOR 06/10/2020 06/10/2020 

RESOLUTION AT 
GENERAL 
SHAREHOLDERS' 
MEETING 
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Total number of directors 7  

 

 

State if any directors, whether through resignation, dismissal, or any other reason, have left the 

Board during the period subject to this report: 

 

Name or 
corporate name 

of director 

Director 
category at time 

of leaving 

Date of last 
appointment 

Date director 
left 

Specialized 
committees of 

which he/she was 
a member 

Indicate 
whether the 
director left 

before the end 
of term 

No data           

 

 

Cause of termination, if before the end of the term of office and other observations; information on 
whether the director has sent a letter to the other members of the board and, in the case of termination 
of non-executive directors, explanation or opinion of the director who has been removed by the general 

meeting. 

There have been no resignations or dismissals during the period under review.  

 
 

C.1.3  Complete the following tables regarding the members of the Board and their 

categories: 

 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 

Name or corporate 

name of director 

Position held in the 

company's organization 

chart 

Profile 

MR. RAÚL 

MORALES TORRES 
Chief Executive Officer 

Raúl Morales is the founder and CEO of Soltec. For more than a decade, he has led Soltec 

to be one of the largest manufacturers and suppliers of single-axis solar trackers. With vast 

experience in the solar photovoltaic industry, Morales combines his passion for renewable 

energy with a commitment to driving productivity through innovation and attracting 

talent. 

 

 

Total number of executive directors 1 

% of total board 14.29 
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EXTERNAL PROPRIETARY DIRECTORS 

Name or corporate name of 
director 

Name or corporate name of 
the significant shareholder 
represented, or which has 

proposed their appointment 

Profile 

MR. JOSÉ FRANCISCO MORALES 
TORRES 

VALUETEAM S.L. 

José Francisco M. Torres is the founder of Seguidores Solares Planta 50 
S.L., dedicated to the production of photovoltaic energy and specialist 
advisor to companies in the renewable sector. He is an economist and 
has 42 years of experience in the tax and accounting sector. His 
extensive experience makes him a good candidate to be an advisor to 
Soltec Power Holdings. 

MR. MARCOS SÁEZ NICOLÁS 
SEFRAN GRUPO CORPORATIVO 

S.L. 

Marcos Sáez is CEO of Zukán S.L.U. During his more than 20 years of 
experience, Sáez has worked as CFO of Soltec for 14 years, where he 
managed to give a great boost to the company's sales. He has also 
worked as a consultant or CFO for the companies of Grupo Corporativo 
Sefran S.L. 

MS. MARINA MORENO DOLERA 
SEFRAN GRUPO CORPORATIVO 

S.L. 

Marina Moreno has more than 5 years of experience in positions of 
responsibility in financial departments. Moreno has worked at Soltec 
as a financial analysis collaborator and remains as an advisor to Zukán 
S.L.U. on organizational and sustainability aspects. At Zukán she has 
also worked in the operations, logistics, production and financial 
departments. 

 

Total number of proprietary directors 3 

% of the Board 42.86 

 

 

EXTERNAL INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

Name or corporate name of 
director 

Profile 

MR. FERNANDO CABALLERO DE 
LA SEN 

Fernando Caballero is General Manager responsible for AON's Risk Consulting 
Services and Solutions in Spain. He is also in charge of coordinating the AGCR 
initiatives in LATAM and Portugal and has more than 8 years of experience with 
the big four accounting and consulting firms. Caballero is also a proactive member 
of the Institute of Internal Auditors in Spain. 

MS. MARIA SICILIA SALVADORES 

Maria Sicilia is the Director of Strategy at Enagás, a world leader in gas 
infrastructures, which is part of the IBEX35. She has worked at Iberdrola 
Renovables as head of regulatory affairs and market analysis and foresight for 
renewable energies in 23 countries and as Deputy Director General of Energy 
Planning at the Ministry of Industry, Energy and Tourism of the Government of 
Spain. 

MS. NURIA ALIÑO PÉREZ 

Nuria Aliño has extensive experience in investment banking with more than 20 
years working in developed and developing markets. She has worked as a 
Managing Director at BBVA Corporate and Investment Banking and in 2016 she 
joined the World Bank Group. Currently, she works as specialist in Global Digital 
Finance in IFC- World Bank and is focus on its digital transformation.  

 

Total number of independent directors 3 

% of the Board 42.86 
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State whether any independent director receives from the company or any company in the group any 

amount or benefit other than compensation as a director or has or has had a business relationship with 

the company or any company in the group during the past year, whether in his or her own name or as a 

significant shareholder, director or senior executive of a company that has or has had such a relationship. 

 

If applicable, include a statement by the Board explaining why it believes that the director in question can 

perform his or her duties as an independent director. 

 

Name or corporate name of 
director 

Description of the relationship Statement of the Board 

No data     

 

 

OTHER EXTERNAL DIRECTORS 

State any other external advisor and the reason why they cannot be considered proprietary or independent and its relationship with either the 
company, the directors or its shareholders: 

Name or corporate name of 
director 

Reasons 
Company, or director with which there is 

a relationship  
Profile 

No data       

 

Total number of independent directors NA 

% of the Board NA 

 

State, if applicable, any changes in category that have occurred during the period for each director: 

 

Name or corporate name of director Date of change Previous category Current category 

No data       

 

 

C.1.4 Complete the following table with information on the number of female directors at the closing of the 

past four years, as well as the category of each. 

 

 
Number of female directors % of directors for each category 

Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2020 2019 2018 2017 

Executives  NA NA NA 0.00 NA NA NA 

Proprietary 1 NA NA NA 33.33 NA NA NA 

Independent 2 NA NA NA 66.67 NA NA NA 

Other External  NA NA NA 0.00 NA NA NA 

Total 3 NA NA NA 42.86 NA NA NA 

 

 

C.1.5 State whether the company has diversity policies in relation to its Board of Directors on such questions 

as age, gender, disability and training and professional experience. In accordance with the definition 

set out in the Accounts Audit Act, small and medium-sized entities, will have to report at least the policy 

they have implemented in relation to gender diversity. 

 

[ ] Yes 

[ ] No 

[√] Partial policies 
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If so, describe these diversity policies, their objectives, the measures, and way in which these have been 

applied and the results over the year. Also, indicate the specific measures taken by the Board of Directors 

and the appointments and remuneration committee to diverse presence of directors. 

 

If the company does not apply a diversity policy, explain the reasons why. 

 

Description of the policies, objectives, measures and how they have been implemented, as well as the 
results achieved. 

The constitution of the company's governing body was carried out in full compliance with the CNMV's 
Good Governance Recommendations regarding the minimum percentage of female directors, a 
percentage that is met and exceeded with the current composition of the Board (42.86%). Although there 
is no policy expressly drafted by the company, the Board has set itself the objective of achieving this result 
during the 2021 financial year. 

 

 

C.1.6 Explain the measures taken, if any, by the appointments committee to ensure that selection procedures 

do not contain hidden biases which impede the selection of female directors, and that the company 

deliberately seeks and includes women who meet the target professional profile among potential 

candidates, and which makes it possible to achieve a balance between men and women. 

 

Explanation of measures 

Due to the public listing in the last quarter of 2020, the Committee has not had the opportunity to 
implement measures in this regard. However, it is important to note that the company's internal culture 
has imposed a high level of gender diversity on both the Board and in Senior Management. Currently, and 
from the time of its formation, the composition of the Board includes 42.83% of female directors and a 
large presence of women among the company's senior management. There is no implicit bias preventing 
the inclusion of women in the aforementioned positions. The Appointments and Remuneration 
Committee will develop the aforementioned measures during the 2021 financial year. 

 

In the event that there are few or no female directors in spite of any measures adopted, explain the reasons 

that justify such a situation: 

 

Explanation of reasons 

There are many female directors and senior managers. 

 

 

C.1.7 Explain the conclusions of the appointments committee regarding verification of compliance addressed 

to the appropriate composition of the Board of Directors. 

 

Given the recent constitution of the ARC, on October 6, 2020, the Commission is drafting internal 

procedures to carry out the implementation of the CNMV (Spanish Securities and Exchange Commission)’s 

Guide 1/2019. 

In this regard, one of the ARC's missions for the 2021 fiscal year is to approve a recruitment policy to 

encourage the Company to have a significant number of female senior managers, although the Company 

already has many women at the head of key areas of the company's businesses. 
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C.1.8 Explain, when applicable, the reasons for the appointment of any proprietary directors at the request 

of shareholders with less than a 3% equity interest: 

 

Name or corporate name of shareholder name of shareholder Reason 

No data   

 

State whether the Board has failed to meet any formal requests for presence on the board received from 

shareholders whose equity interests is equal to or higher than that of others at whose request proprietary 

directors have been appointed. Where applicable, explain why these requests have been ignored: 

 

[ ] Yes 

[√] No 

 

C.1.9 State the powers delegated by the Board of Directors, as the case may be, to directors or Board 

committees: 

 

Name or corporate name of 
director or committee 

Brief description 

MR RAÚL MORALES TORRES 

As Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Raúl Morales 
has been delegated all the powers attributed 
to the Company's governing body that are not 
of a non-delegable nature, and which have not 
been reserved to the full Board by law, the 
Company's bylaws or the Board of Directors 
Regulations. 

 

 

C.1.10 Identify, where appropriate, any members of the Board who are also directors, representatives of 

directors or officers in other companies that belong to the group of the listed company: 

 

Name or corporate name of 
director 

Corporate name of the group company Position 
Does the Director 

have executive 
functions? 

MR RAÚL MORALES TORRES Soltec Energías Renovables S.L. Sole Administrator YES 

MR RAÚL MORALES TORRES Powertis S.A. 
Member of the Board of 
Directors 

NO 

MR RAÚL MORALES TORRES Soltec Innovations S.L. Sole Administrator YES 

 

C.1.11 List, where appropriate, any legal-person directors or representatives of legal-person directors of your 

company, who are members or representatives of legal-person members of the Board of Directors of 

other companies listed on official securities markets other than group companies, who have 

communicated that status to the company: 

 

Name or corporate name of 
director 

Name of listed company Position 

No data     
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C.1.12 Indicate and, where applicable, explain whether the company has established rules on the maximum 

number of boards on which its directors may hold positions, identifying, where appropriate, where this 

is regulated: 

 

[√] Yes 

[ ] No 

 

Explanation of the rules and identification of the document where it is regulated. 

Directors may not sit on more than four Boards in addition to the Board of Directors of the Company. 

 

C.1.13 State the overall remuneration of the Board of Directors: 

 

Board remuneration in financial year (thousand euros) 76 

Amount of vested pension interests for current directors (thousand euros)   

Amount of vested pension interests for former members (thousand euros)   

 

C.1.14 Identify senior management staff who are not executive directors and their total remuneration accrued 

during the year: 

 

Name or corporate name Position(s) 

MS. ADA DE PAULA LAX PUIZ Chief Marketing Officer 

MR. EDUARDO DE SAN NICOLÁS JUÁREZ Chief Strategy Officer 

MR. JOSÉ FRANCISCO NÚÑEZ JIMÉNEZ Chief Financial Officer 

MS. MERITXELL PÉREZ DE CASTRO ACUÑA Investor Relations Director 

MR. PABLO OTÍN PINTADO Business Unit General Manager Powertis 

MR. SERGIO LÓPEZ OÑA Business Unit General Manager Soltec Industrial 

MS. SILVIA AMATERATSU DÍAZ DE LASPRA MORALES Chief Legal Officer 

 

 

Number of women in Senior Management 3 

Percentage over the total members of Senior Management 42.85 

 

Total senior management remuneration (thousand euros) 652 

 

C.1.15 State whether the regulations of the Board of Directors have been amended during the financial year: 

 

[ ] Yes 

[√] No 

 

C.1.16 Specify the procedures for selection, appointment, re-election, and removal of directors. List the 

competent bodies, steps to follow and criteria applied in each procedure. 

The Board Members shall be appointed by the General Shareholders' Meeting or by the Board of Directors 

by co-optation, following a report from the Appointments and Remuneration Committee or, in the case 

of independent Board Members, at the proposal of the latter, in accordance with the provisions contained 

in the applicable regulations, the Company Bylaws and the Board of Directors Regulations. The Board of 

Directors shall endeavour to ensure that the selection of candidates is made by persons of recognized 

solvency, competence and experience, and shall be extremely rigorous in relation to those persons called 
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upon to fill the positions of independent Board Members. Before proposing the re-election of directors 

to the general meeting of shareholders, the board of directors shall evaluate, with the abstention of the 

parties concerned, the quality of the work and dedication to the position of the directors proposed during 

the previous term of office. 

Directors shall leave their commitments when the term for which they were appointed has elapsed and 

when so decided by the general meeting of shareholders in exercise of the powers conferred upon it by 

law or the bylaws. 

It is expected that during the 2021 fiscal year the Company will develop the director selection policy in 

accordance with the Governance Plan approved in 2021. 

 

C.1.17 Explain the extent to which the annual assessment of the Board has given rise to significant changes in 

its internal organization and to procedures applicable to its activities: 

 

Description of changes 

Not applicable due to the short time the Board has been operating. 

 

Describe the assessment process and the areas assessed by the Board of Directors with the help, if any, of 

external advisors, regarding the operation and composition of the Board and its committees and any other 

area or aspect that has been assessed. 

 

Description of the assessment process and the assessed areas 

NA 

 

 

C.1.18 Describe, in those years in which the external advisor has participated in the assessment, the business 

relationships that the external advisor or any group company maintains with the company or any other 

company in its group. 

 

N/A. The company plans to carry out this assessment at the end of the 2021 fiscal year. 

 

C.1.19 Indicate the circumstances under which directors are required to resign. 

 

(i) When they cease to hold the executive positions with which their appointment as Board Member 

was associated. 

(ii) When they are involved in any of the cases of incompatibility or prohibition provided by law or 

by the bylaws. 

(iii) When they are seriously reprimanded by the board of directors for having breached their 

obligations as directors. 

(iv) When their continuance on the Board of Directors may jeopardize or damage the interests, credit 

or reputation of the Company or when the reasons for which they were appointed cease to exist, 

including, without limitation, when there are significant changes in their professional situation or in the 

conditions under which they were appointed to the Board. 

(v) When they are indicted or prosecuted in criminal proceedings or are the subject of disciplinary 

proceedings for serious or very serious misconduct conducted by the supervisory authorities. 

(vi) In the case of proprietary directors (i) when the shareholder they represent sells its entire 

shareholding interest or reduces it significantly and, (ii) in the corresponding number, when such 
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shareholder reduces its shareholding interest to a level that requires a reduction in the number of 

proprietary directors. 

(vii) When, due to acts attributable to the director, his continuance on the Board of Directors causes 

serious damage to the Company's assets or reputation, in the opinion of the Board of Directors. 

(viii) When they sit on more than four boards of directors of other companies (other than the 

Company). 

 

C.1.20 Are qualified majorities, other than those established by law, required for any specific decision? 

 

[ ] Yes 

[√] No 

 

If so, describe the differences. 

 

C.1.21 Explain whether there are any specific requirements, other than those relating to directors, to be 

appointed as chairman of the Board of Directors: 

 

[ ] Yes 

[√] No 

 

C.1.22 State whether the Bylaws or the Regulations of the Board establish any limit as to the age of directors: 

 

[ ] Yes 

[√] No 

 

C.1.23 State whether the Bylaws or the Regulations of the Board establish any term limits for independent 

directors other than those required by law: 

 

[ ] Yes 

[√] No 

 

C.1.24 Indicate whether the Bylaws or the Regulations of the Board establish specific proxy rules for votes at 

Board meetings, how they are to be delegated and, in particular, the maximum number of proxies that 

a director may hold, as well as whether any restriction has been established regarding the categories 

of directors to whom proxies may be granted beyond the restrictions imposed by law. If so, briefly 

describe such rules. 

 

In accordance with the Board Regulations, the directors shall make every effort to attend the meetings of 

the Board of Directors and, when they are unable to do so in person, they shall grant their proxy in writing 

and on a special basis for each meeting to another member of the Board of Directors, including the 

appropriate instructions and informing the Chairman of the Board of Directors thereof. In the case of non-

executive directors, they may only be represented by another member of the board of directors in the 

same capacity. Non-attendance of board members at meetings of the board of directors shall be 

quantified in the annual corporate governance report. 

 

C.1.25 Indicate the number of meetings held by the Board of Directors during the year, and if applicable, the 

number of times the Board met without the chairman present. Proxies granted with specific instructions 

shall be counted as attendance. 

 

Number of Board meetings 3 

Number of board meetings without the chairman 0 
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Indicate the number of meetings held by the coordinating director with the other directors, where there 

was neither attendance nor representation of any executive director: 

 

Number of meetings 0 

 

Indicate the number of meetings held during the year by the different Board Committees: 

 

Number of meetings held by the Audit Committee 1 

Number of meetings held by the Sustainable Development Committee 0 

Number of meetings held by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee 0 

 

 

C.1.26 Indicate the number of meetings held by the Board of Directors during the year and the data on 

attendance by its members. 

 

Number of meetings with on-site attendance of at least 80% of directors. 3 

% of on-site attendance over total votes during the year 100.00 

Number of meetings with on-site attendance or representations by proxy 
made with specific instructions of all directors 

3 

% of votes cast with on-site attendance and representations by proxy made 
with specific instructions of all directors 

100.00 

 

C.1.27 State whether the individual and consolidated financial statements submitted to the Board for approval 

are previously certified: 

 

[ ] Yes 

[√] No 

 

Identify, where applicable, the person(s) who certified the individual and consolidated financial statements 

of the company for their preparation by the Board: 

 

C.1.28 Explain any measures, if any, established by the Board of Directors to prevent the individual and 

consolidated financial statements prepared by the Board from being submitted to the General 

Shareholders’ Meeting without being in accordance with accounting standards. 

 

The Board of Directors has delegated the supervision of the Company's financial and non-financial 

information to the Audit Committee and internal control mechanisms have been established, given that 

all financial and non-financial information proposed for approval by the Board is favorably reported and 

in advance by the Audit Committee. Likewise, the company's internal audit function, as part of its action 

plan, reviews the periodic financial and accounting information prior to its consolidation. 

 

C.1.29 Is the secretary of the Board also a director? 

 

[ ] Yes 

[√] No 

 

If the secretary is not a director, fill in the following table: 
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Name or company name of the secretary Representative 

MS. SILVIA AMATERATSU DÍAZ DE LASPRA MORALES   

 

C.1.30 State, if any, the specific measures established by the company to ensure the independence of its 

external auditors, as well as, where appropriate, the measures established to ensure the independence 

of financial analysts, investment banks, and rating agencies, including how legal provisions have been 

implemented in practice. 

 

Independence of the external auditors 

Points 14v and 14 vi of the Regulations of the Board of Directors establish the relations with the auditors 

to receive information on those matters that may jeopardize their independence, for examination by the 

Audit Committee, and any other matters related to the process of auditing the accounts and, where 

appropriate, the authorization of services other than those prohibited in the terms contemplated in the 

applicable regulations, as well as those other communications contemplated in the legislation on the 

auditing of accounts and in the remaining auditing standards. In any case, the audit committee shall 

receive annually from the auditors written confirmation of their independence from the Company and 

entities related to it, directly or indirectly, as well as detailed and individualized information on the 

additional services of any kind rendered and the corresponding fees received from these entities by the 

external auditor or by the persons or entities related to it, in accordance with the provisions of the 

legislation on auditing of accounts. 

In this regard, a report shall be issued annually, prior to the audit report, expressing an opinion as to 

whether the independence of the auditors or audit firms is compromised. This report shall, in any case, 

express an opinion on the provision of the additional services referred to in the preceding paragraph, 

individually considered and as a whole, other than the statutory audit and in relation to the independence 

regime or to the regulatory audit regulations. 

The Audit Committee's activity report includes an assessment of the independence of the external 

auditor, verifying that there are no grounds for incompatibility or abstention, as well as prohibitions, and 

that any threat to its independence has been correctly identified and assessed. 

Independence of financial analysts, investment banks and rating agencies 

The principles underlying the company's relationship with financial analysts and investment banks are 

based on transparency, simultaneity and non-discrimination, and always in strict compliance with the 

regulations governing the securities markets. Likewise, the company pays special attention not to 

compromise or interfere with the independence of financial analysts with respect to the services provided 

by investment banks, in accordance with the internal codes of conduct established by them and aimed at 

separating their analysis and advisory services. 

 

C.1.31 Indicate whether the Company changed its external auditor during the year. If so, identify the incoming 

auditor and outgoing auditor: 

 

[ ] Yes 

[√] No 

 

If there has been any disagreement with the outgoing auditor, provide an explanation thereof: 

 

[ ] Yes 

[√] No 

 

C.1.32 State whether the audit firm provides any non-audit services to the company and/or its group and, if 

so, the fees paid, and the corresponding percentage of total fees invoiced to the company and/or its 

group: 
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[√] Yes 

[ ] No 

 
 Company Group companies Total 

Amount invoiced for non-audit services (thousand euros) 345 13 358 

Amount of non-audit services / total amount invoiced by the audit firm (in %) 59.79 2.07 29.71 

 

 

C.1.33 State whether the auditor’s report on the annual accounts for the preceding year contains a qualified 

opinion or reservations. If so, indicate the reasons given to shareholders by the chairman of the Audit 

Committee to explain the content and scope of such qualified opinion or reservations. 

 

[ ] Yes 

[√] No 

 

C.1.34 State the number of consecutive years the current audit firm has been auditing the individual and/or 

consolidated annual accounts of the company. Likewise, state the number of years audited by the 

current audit firm as a percentage of the total number of years that the annual accounts have been 

audited: 

 

  Individual Consolidated 

Number of consecutive years 1 6  

 
 Individual Consolidated 

Number of years audited by current audit firm/Number of years the 
company or its group have been audited (%) 

100.00 43.00 

 

 

C.1.35 Indicate and, if applicable, give details of any procedure whereby directors have the information 

necessary to prepare the meetings of the governing bodies with enough time: 

 

[√] Yes 

[ ] No 

 

Description of the procedure 

The company sends the notices to the Board of Directors as far in advance as possible and in any case 
exceeding the minimum limit of three days established in the Board Regulations. Once the notices have 
been sent to the board or the committees, the company or the chairmen organize working meetings to 
identify all those aspects that require a higher level of information than that sent, or so that the directors 
can ask clarifying questions or request additional information to that provided. At all times, the company 
promotes contact between the board members and the company's senior management, so that the board 
members have a direct contrast between the information to be approved and the internal management. 
The board regulations provide the option for all board members to request specific advice for the 
performance of their duties. In addition, the Board of Directors ensures fluid advice and information 
through the Secretary and the legal counsel. 

 

 

 

 

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: J
O

S
E

 F
R

A
N

C
IS

C
O

 M
O

R
A

LE
S

 T
O

R
R

E
S

 (
N

IF
: 2

24
35

19
0R

)
F

IR
M

A
D

O
 p

or
: F

E
R

N
A

N
D

O
 C

A
B

A
LL

E
R

O
 D

E
 L

A
 S

E
N

 (
N

IF
: 1

18
13

93
1G

)
F

IR
M

A
D

O
 p

or
: M

A
R

IN
A

 M
O

R
E

N
O

 D
O

LE
R

A
 (

N
IF

: 4
84

53
57

8F
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: M
A

R
IA

 S
IC

IL
IA

 S
A

LV
A

D
O

R
E

S
 (

N
IF

: 0
74

96
77

6H
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: S
IL

V
IA

 A
M

A
T

E
R

A
T

S
U

 D
IA

Z
 D

E
 L

A
S

P
R

A
 M

O
R

A
LE

S
 (

N
IF

: 4
86

98
10

4C
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: M
A

R
C

O
S

 S
A

E
Z

 N
IC

O
LA

S
 (

N
IF

: 3
48

15
03

9P
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: N
U

R
IA

 A
LI

Ñ
O

 P
E

R
E

Z
 (

N
IF

: 0
31

03
66

8W
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: R
A

U
L 

M
O

R
A

LE
S

 T
O

R
R

E
S

 (
N

IF
: 3

47
85

10
6K

)
V

er
si

ón
 im

pr
im

ib
le

 c
on

 in
fo

rm
ac

ió
n 

de
 fi

rm
a 

ge
ne

ra
do

 d
es

de
 V

A
LI

D
e 

(h
ttp

://
va

lid
e.

re
ds

ar
a.

es
)

F
ir

m
a 

vá
lid

a.



ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR LISTED COMPANIES 

TRANSLATION FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY 

 

21/49 

 

C.1.36 State whether the company has established rules whereby directors must provide information and, if 

applicable, resign, in circumstances that may damage the company’s standing and reputation. If so, 

provide details: 

 

[√] Yes 

[ ] No 

 

Explain the rules 

The directors must place their position at the disposal of the board of directors and formalize, if the board 
deems it appropriate, the corresponding resignation in the following cases: 
(i) When they cease to hold the executive positions with which their appointment as Board Member was 
associated. 
(ii) When they are involved in any of the cases of incompatibility or prohibition provided by law or by the 
bylaws. 
(iii) When they are seriously reprimanded by the board of directors for having breached their obligations 
as directors. 
(iv) When their continuance on the Board of Directors may jeopardize or damage the interests, credit or 
reputation of the Company or when the reasons for which they were appointed cease to exist, including, 
without limitation, when there are significant changes in their professional situation or in the conditions 
under which they were appointed to the Board. 
(v) When they are indicted or prosecuted in criminal proceedings or are the subject of disciplinary 
proceedings for serious or very serious misconduct conducted by the supervisory authorities. 
(vi) In the case of proprietary directors (i) when the shareholder they represent sells its entire shareholding 
interest or reduces it significantly and, (ii) in the corresponding number, when such shareholder reduces 
its shareholding interest to a level that requires a reduction in the number of proprietary directors. 

 

C.1.37 State whether any member of the Board of Directors has notified the company that he or she has been 

tried or notified that legal proceedings have been filed against him or her, for any offences described in 

Article 213 of the Corporate Enterprises Act: 

 

[ ] Yes 

[√] No 

 

C.1.38 List the significant agreements entered into by the company that come into force, are amended or are 

terminated in the event of a change of control of the company following a takeover bid, and their 

effects. 

 

NA 

 

C.1.39 Identify individually for directors, and generally in other cases, and provide detail of any agreements 

made between the company and its directors, executives or employees containing compensation or 

golden parachute clauses in the event of resignation or dismissal or termination of employment without 

cause following a takeover bid or any other type of transaction. 

 

Number of beneficiaries 1 

Beneficiary Description of the agreement 

Chief Executive Officer 

In the event of a restructuring of the company or change of ownership that implies a change of control, 
whatever its form, the Chief Executive Officer, if he/she chooses to leave his/her position, shall be entitled 
to receive an indemnity equal to twice the amount of the last total annual compensation received, which 
shall include fixed compensation, variable compensation, long-term incentive plans and all rights and 
benefits that may have been established. 
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State if these contracts have been communicated to and/or approved by the management bodies of the 

company or its group. If so, specify the procedures, expected events and nature of the bodies responsible 

for their approval or for communicating this: 

 

  Board of Directors General Shareholders’ Meeting 

Body authorizing the clauses √   

 

  Yes No 

Are these clauses notified to the General Shareholders’ Meeting? √   

 

 

C.2 Committees of the Board of Directors 

 

C.2.1. Give details of all committees of the Board of Directors, their members and the proportion of 

executive, proprietary, independent and other external directors that comprise them: 

 

Audit Committee 

Name Position Category 

MR. FERNANDO CABALLERO DE LA SEN CHAIRMAN Independent 

MR. JOSÉ FRANCISCO MORALES TORRES MEMBER Proprietary 

MS. NURIA ALIÑO PÉREZ MEMBER Independent 

 

% of executive directors 0.00 

% of proprietary directors 33.33 

% of independent directors 66.67 

% of other external 0.00 

 

Explain the functions, including, where appropriate, functions other than those provided for by law, 

exercised by this committee, and describe the rules and procedures it follows for its organization and 

function. For each one of these functions, briefly describe its most important actions during the year and 

how it has exercised in practice each of the functions attributed thereto by law, in the bylaws or other 

corporate resolutions. 

 

• Report to the general meeting of shareholders on matters within its competence and, in 

particular, on the outcome of the audit. 

• To supervise the effectiveness of the internal control of the Company and its group, the internal 

audit and the financial and non-financial risk management systems, as well as to discuss with the 

auditor the significant weaknesses of the internal control system detected in the course of the 

audit, all of this without infringing its independence. 

• Supervise the process of preparation and presentation of regulated and non-financial 

information and submit recommendations or proposals to the Board of Directors. 

• Propose to the Board of Directors, for submission to the General Shareholders' Meeting, the 

selection, appointment, re-election or replacement of the auditors, in accordance with the 

applicable regulations, as well as the terms and conditions of their engagement, and to obtain 

regularly from him information on the audit plan and its execution, in addition to preserving his 

independence in the exercise of his functions. 

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: J
O

S
E

 F
R

A
N

C
IS

C
O

 M
O

R
A

LE
S

 T
O

R
R

E
S

 (
N

IF
: 2

24
35

19
0R

)
F

IR
M

A
D

O
 p

or
: F

E
R

N
A

N
D

O
 C

A
B

A
LL

E
R

O
 D

E
 L

A
 S

E
N

 (
N

IF
: 1

18
13

93
1G

)
F

IR
M

A
D

O
 p

or
: M

A
R

IN
A

 M
O

R
E

N
O

 D
O

LE
R

A
 (

N
IF

: 4
84

53
57

8F
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: M
A

R
IA

 S
IC

IL
IA

 S
A

LV
A

D
O

R
E

S
 (

N
IF

: 0
74

96
77

6H
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: S
IL

V
IA

 A
M

A
T

E
R

A
T

S
U

 D
IA

Z
 D

E
 L

A
S

P
R

A
 M

O
R

A
LE

S
 (

N
IF

: 4
86

98
10

4C
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: M
A

R
C

O
S

 S
A

E
Z

 N
IC

O
LA

S
 (

N
IF

: 3
48

15
03

9P
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: N
U

R
IA

 A
LI

Ñ
O

 P
E

R
E

Z
 (

N
IF

: 0
31

03
66

8W
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: R
A

U
L 

M
O

R
A

LE
S

 T
O

R
R

E
S

 (
N

IF
: 3

47
85

10
6K

)
V

er
si

ón
 im

pr
im

ib
le

 c
on

 in
fo

rm
ac

ió
n 

de
 fi

rm
a 

ge
ne

ra
do

 d
es

de
 V

A
LI

D
e 

(h
ttp

://
va

lid
e.

re
ds

ar
a.

es
)

F
ir

m
a 

vá
lid

a.



ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR LISTED COMPANIES 

TRANSLATION FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY 

 

23/49 

 

• Establish the appropriate relationships with the auditors to receive information on those issues 

that may jeopardize their independence, for examination by the audit committee, and any other 

issues related to the process of auditing the accounts. 

• Issue annually, prior to the statutory audit report, a report expressing an opinion as to whether 

the independence of the auditors or audit firms is compromised. This report shall, in any case, 

express an opinion on the rendering of the additional services referred to in the preceding 

paragraph, individually considered and as a whole, other than the statutory audit and in relation 

to the independence regime or to the regulatory audit regulations. 

• Report, in advance, to the Board of Directors on all matters provided for in the Law, in the 

Company's bylaws and in the Regulations of the Board of Directors and, in particular, on: (i) the 

financial information that the Company must periodically make public; (ii) the creation or 

acquisition of interests in special purpose entities or entities domiciled in countries or territories 

that are considered tax havens and (iii) transactions with related parties. 

• Supervise the Company's internal audit activity, supervising the internal audit plan and verifying 

that the main financial and non-financial risk areas of the business have been considered in said 

plan. 

• In relation to the information and internal control systems: (a) supervise the preparation process 

and the integrity of the financial information relating to the Company and, where appropriate, 

the group; (b) ensure the independence of the unit that assumes the internal audit function, 

propose the selection, appointment, reappointment and removal of the head of the internal 

audit service, ; receive periodic information on the execution of the annual work plan, and (c) 

establish and supervise a mechanism that allows employees or other persons related to the 

company, such as directors, shareholders, suppliers, contractors or subcontractors, to report, 

confidentially or anonymously, any potentially significant irregularities, including financial, 

accounting or any other type of irregularities related to the company that they may notice within 

the Company or its group. This mechanism must guarantee confidentiality and, in any case, 

provide for cases in which communications may be made anonymously, respecting the rights of 

the whistle-blower and the reported party. 

• In relation to the external auditor: (a) in the event of resignation, to examine the circumstances 

that may have caused it; (b) to ensure that its compensation does not compromise its quality or 

independence; (c) to supervise that the Company communicates through the CNMV the change 

of auditor and accompanies it, if applicable, with a statement on the possible existence of 

disagreements with the outgoing auditor and their content; (d) to ensure that the external 

auditor is not removed from the Board of Directors; (e) to ensure that the external auditor's 

remuneration does not compromise its quality or independence; (f) to ensure that the external 

auditor's independence is not compromised; (e) to ensure that the Company and the external 

auditor comply with current regulations on the provision of non-audit services, the limits on the 

concentration of the auditor's business and, in general, other regulations on auditor 

independence. Ensure that the annual accounts that the Board of Directors submits to the 

General Shareholders' Meeting are prepared in accordance with accounting regulations and that 

in those cases in which the auditor has included a qualification in its audit report, the Chairman 

of the Audit Committee clearly explains to the General Shareholders' Meeting the Audit 

Committee's opinion on the content and scope of such qualification. 

To summon any employee or officer of the Company, and even order them to appear without 

the presence of any other officer. 

 

• Review that the financial and non-financial information published on the Company's corporate 

website is permanently updated. 

• Periodically evaluate the need for an independent area for risk control and management.  
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• Define the procedure for the selection of the auditor. 

For additional information, please refer to the annual report of the audit committee, which will be 

published on the company's website. 

 

Identify the directors who are members of the audit committee and have been appointed taking into 

account their knowledge and experience in accounting or audit matters, or both, and state the date that 

the chairman of this committee was appointed. 

 

Name of director with experience 
MR. JOSÉ FRANCISCO MORALES TORRES / MS. 
NURIA ALIÑO PÉREZ 

Date of appointment of the chairman in 
office 

06/10/2021 

 

 

Sustainable Development Commission 

Name Position Category 

MS. NURIA ALIÑO PÉREZ CHAIRMAN Independent 

MS. MARIA SICILIA SALVADORES MEMBER Independent 

MS. MARINA MORENO DÓLERA MEMBER Proprietary 

 

% of executive directors 0.00 

% of proprietary directors 33.33 

% of independent directors 66.67 

% of other external directors 0.00 

 

Explain the functions, including, where appropriate, functions other than those provided for by law, 

exercised by this committee, and describe the rules and procedures it follows for its organization and 

function. For each one of these functions, briefly describe its most important actions during the year and 

how it has exercised in practice each of the functions attributed thereto by law, in the bylaws or other 

corporate resolutions. 

 

• Supervision of compliance with the Company's corporate governance rules and internal codes of 

conduct, as well as ensuring that the corporate culture is aligned with its purpose and values. 

• Supervision of the application of the general policy regarding the communication of economic-

financial, non-financial and corporate information as well as communication with shareholders 

and investors, proxy advisors and other stakeholders. Likewise, the way in which the Company 

communicates and relates with small and medium-sized shareholders shall be monitored. 

• Evaluation and periodic review of the corporate governance system and the company's 

environmental and social policy, so that they fulfill their mission of promoting the social interest 

and take into account, as appropriate, the legitimate interests of other stakeholders. 

• Monitoring that the company's environmental and social practices are in line with the strategy 

and policy. 

• Monitoring and evaluation of the relationship processes with the different stakeholders. 

• To monitor the Company's performance in the area of corporate reputation and report thereon 

to the Board of Directors when appropriate. 
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• Report, prior to its approval, the annual corporate governance report and the Company's 

statement of non-financial information. To this end, obtaining the necessary reports, as the case 

may be, from the audit committee and the appointments and remuneration committee in 

relation to the sections of said report that fall within its competencies. 

• Reporting on proposed amendments to the Board of Directors Regulations and the Code of 

Ethics. 

• Issue the reports and develop the actions that, in its area of competence, correspond to it, 

additionally, in accordance with the corporate governance system or as requested by the board 

of directors or its chairman. 

• Assume the functions attributed to him/her in the code of ethics. 

 

Appointments and Remuneration Committee 

Name Position Category 

MS. MARIA SICILIA SALVADORES CHAIRMAN Independent 

MR. FERNANDO CABALLERO DE LA SEN MEMBER Independent 

MS. NURIA ALIÑO PÉREZ MEMBER Independent 

 

% of executive directors 0.00 

% of proprietary directors 0.00 

% of independent directors 100.00 

% of other external directors 0.00 

 

 

Explain the functions, including, where appropriate, functions other than those provided for by law, 

exercised by this committee, and describe the rules and procedures it follows for its organization and 

function. For each one of these functions, briefly describe its most important actions during the year and 

how it has exercised in practice each of the functions attributed thereto by law, in the bylaws or other 

corporate resolutions. 

 

• Evaluate the skills, knowledge and experience required on the board of directors. To this end, it 

shall define the functions and skills required of the candidates to fill each vacancy and evaluate 

the time and dedication necessary for them to effectively perform their duties, taking into 

account a previously prepared competency matrix defining the most appropriate functions, skills, 

knowledge and experience for the same. 

• Analyze the other occupations of each director of the Company, ensuring that the directors 

devote sufficient time in practice and, if this is not the case, propose appropriate measures. 

• Establish a representation target for the underrepresented gender on the board of directors and 

develop guidance on how to achieve this target. 

• To submit to the Board of Directors proposals for the appointment of independent directors for 

appointment by cooptation or for submission to the decision of the General Shareholders' 

Meeting, as well as proposals for the re-election or removal of such directors by the General 

Shareholders' Meeting. 

• Report the proposals for appointment of the remaining directors for their appointment by 

cooptation or for their submission to the decision of the general meeting of shareholders, as well 

as the proposals for their re-election or removal by the general meeting of shareholders. 

• To report on proposals for the appointment, reappointment and removal of management 

personnel and the basic conditions of their contracts. 
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• Examine and organize the succession of the chairman of the board of directors and the chief 

executive of the Company and, if appropriate, make proposals to the board of directors so that 

such succession occurs in an orderly and planned manner, consulting with the presiding director 

of the Company, and involving the coordinating director, if any, and provided that he is not a 

member of the appointments and compensation committee. 

• Propose to the Board of Directors the remuneration policy for directors and general managers 

or those who perform their duties as executive personnel reporting directly to the Board of 

Directors, Executive Committees or Chief Executive Officers, as well as the individual 

remuneration and other contractual conditions of the executive directors, verifying and ensuring 

their observance. 

• Ensuring compliance with the Company's compensation policy. 

• Periodically review the remuneration policy applied to directors and senior managers, including 

share-based compensation systems and their application, and ensure that their individual 

remuneration is proportionate to that paid to other directors and senior managers. 

• Propose to the board of directors a policy for the selection of directors and, where appropriate, 

senior management, which should include the following measures that encourage the company 

to have a significant number of senior managers. 

• Ensure that possible conflicts of interest do not impair the independence of the external advice 

provided to the Commission. 

• Verify the information on remuneration of directors and senior management contained in the 

various corporate documents, including the annual compensation report. 

For additional information, please refer to the annual report of the Appointments and Remuneration 

Committee, which will be published on the company's website. 

C.2.2. Complete the following table with information regarding the number of female directors who were 

members of Board committees at the close of the past four years: 

 

 
Number of female directors 

Year 2020 Year 2019 Year 2018 Year 2017 

Number % Number % Number % Number % 

Audit Committee 1 33.33 NA NA NA NA NA NA 

Sustainable Development Committee 3 100.00 NA NA NA NA NA NA 

Appointments and Remuneration Committee 2 66.67 NA NA NA NA NA NA 

 

 

C.2.3. Indicate, where appropriate, the existence of regulation of the committees of the board, the place 

where they are available for consultation, and the modifications that have been made during the year. 

In turn, it will be indicated if an annual report on the activities of each committee has been voluntarily 

prepared. 

 

The committees, their composition, functions and organization are regulated in the Regulations 

of the Board of Directors. The three committees have prepared annual activity reports for the 

year 2020. 

 

D. LINKED OPERATIONS AND INTRAGROUP OPERATIONS 

 

D.1 Explain, where appropriate, the procedure and competent bodies for the approval of transactions with 

related parties and intercompany. 
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The approval of transactions with related parties and intra-group transactions requires a prior favorable 

report from the Audit Committee and subsequent approval by the full Board of Directors, which is a non-

delegable power. 

The Audit Committee shall issue an annual report, attached to the Financial Statements, on the related-

party and intragroup transactions submitted for analysis by the Committee itself. For the 2021 financial 

year, the company plans to develop an internal procedure that complements the regulations for the 

management by the audit committee of related-party transactions. 

 

D.2 Detail those significant transactions, by their amount or relevance because of their subject matter, carried 

out between the company or entities of their group, and the significant shareholders of the company. 

 

Name or corporate name of 
significant shareholder 

Name or corporate name of the 
company or its group company 

Nature of the 
relationship 

Type of transaction 
Amount 

(thousand 
euros) 

GRUPO CORPORATIVO SEFRAN, S.L. Soltec Power Holdings S.A. Contractual 
Financing 

agreements: loans 
2,650 

GRUPO CORPORATIVO SEFRAN S.L. Soltec Power Holdings S.A. Contractual Interest paid 1,201 

 

Nothing to highlight 

 

D.3 State any transactions that are significant because of their amount or relevant because of their subject 

matter, carried out between the company or its group companies, and the directors or managers of the 

company: 

 

Name or corporate 
name of directors or 

officers 

Name or company 
name of the 

company or group 
entity 

Link 
Nature of the 

operation 
Amount (thousands 

of euros) 

No data       NA 

 

Nothing to highlight 

 

D.4 Report any material transactions carried out by the company with other entities belonging to the same 

group, provided that these are not eliminated in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements 

and do not form part of the company’s ordinary business activities in terms of their purpose and conditions. 

 

In any case, list any intragroup transaction conducted with entities in countries or territories which are 

considered tax havens: 

 

Corporate name of the entity in 
your group 

Brief description of the operation Amount (thousands of euros) 

No data   NA 

 

There were no unusual transactions or transactions outside the normal course of business with relevant 

related companies during 2020 other than those disclosed in point D3 above. 
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D.5 List any material transactions between the company or its group companies and other related parties, not 

recorded under the previous items. 

 

Name of related party Brief description of transaction Amount (thousand euros) 

No data   NA 

 

 

D.6 List the mechanisms in place to detect, determine and resolve potential conflicts of interest between the 

company and/or its group and its directors, senior management or significant shareholders. 

 

The Regulations of the Board of Directors expressly establish a mechanism for identifying and resolving 

conflicts, which is detailed in Article 29. However, the company plans to develop a more detailed procedure 

on this matter in its 2021 governance plan. 

 

D.7 Indicate whether the company is controlled by another entity within the meaning of Article 42 of the Code 

of Commerce, whether listed or not, and has, directly or through its subsidiary companies, business 

relationships with such entity or any of its subsidiaries (other than those of the listed company) or carries 

out activities related to those of any of them. 

 

[ ] Yes 

[√] No 

 

E. RISK CONTROL AND MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS 

 

E.1 Explain the scope of the Company's Risk Control and Management System, including the system for 

managing tax risks. 

 

Soltec Group's risk management is linked to the responsible development and growth of the Group's 

companies with the objective of maintaining its relevant position and leadership in the global photovoltaic 

energy market. 

The main objective of risk management is to identify, define and quantify all business risks in order to apply 

optimal mitigating measures to eliminate or reduce the probability and/or severity of identified threats, as 

well as to take advantage of opportunities, allowing the Soltec Group to develop its business and grow in a 

sustainable manner, making informed and consistent decisions. 

Risk management is an inherent activity in each and every process of the Soltec Group, where all departments 

of the Group's companies collaborate in the daily control of risks. Additionally, in a second line of control, 

there is a risk management department, with periodic committees, which effectively monitors and 

systematizes the activity. As a third line of control, there is an internal audit department to ensure the correct 

operation of the Group's companies. 

In the tax area, in 2020 the company obtained certification from Aenor for compliance with the UNE 19602 

standard, so that risk control in tax matters is optimal. 

In addition, the company has been certified in 2020 for compliance with the UNE 19601 standard on the 

prevention of criminal risks. 

The company plans, through the committees and with the prior approval of the board, to implement internal 

procedures that provide transparency in risk management in the company, this being an essential matter for 

the company. 
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E.2 Identify the company's bodies responsible for creating and executing the Risk Control and Management 

System, including the system for managing tax risks: 

 

Board of Directors: In accordance with the provisions of the LSC, risk management is a non-delegable matter 
attributed to the full Board of Directors. 
 
Audit Committee: As established in the Board Regulations, risk management is a matter of responsibility of 
the Audit Committee, in accordance with Article 14.4 (ii) of the aforementioned text. 
 
Risk Management Committee The Risk Management Committee consists of a permanent internal body of an 
informative and executive nature that will discuss and reach agreements in relation to risk management and 
insurance at corporate level, in offers and in projects, as well as other issues of a strategic nature in relation 
to risk management with the objective of guaranteeing the sustainability of Soltec. In addition, it will ensure 
the creation of mechanisms that promote risk management in all company processes with the aim of 
guaranteeing Soltec's sustainability and solvency. 
 
Investment Committee: The Investment Committee is a permanent internal body of an informative and 
executive nature that will discuss and reach agreements regarding investment initiatives at the corporate 
level, with the objective of seeking the profitable growth of the company. It will also oversee the creation of 
mechanisms to ensure that the decision-making processes, as far as investments are concerned, have policies 
and procedures that contribute to the achievement of Soltec's strategic objectives. 
 
Safety Committee: Among others, risk management related to safety issues. 
 
Business Development Committee: Among others, risk management related to business development issues. 
 
Operations Committee: Among others, risk management related to ongoing project issues. 
 
Talent Committee: Among others, risk management related to human resources matters. 
 
Tax compliance body: Created within the framework of the tax compliance program, it is composed of three 
members from the tax and financial area of the company, and its purpose is to ensure and supervise 
compliance with the company's tax obligations. 
 

E.3 State the primary risks, including tax compliance risks, and those deriving from corruption (with the scope 

of these risks as set out in Royal Decree Law 18/2017), to the extent that these are significant, which may 

affect the achievement of business objectives. 

The main operational, strategic and regulatory risks affecting the Group are related to the uncertainty in the 
demand for products and services in a changing environment, affected by the global pandemic Covid-19, the 
difficulties in adapting to the different regulatory environments together with political and social instabilities, 
as well as potential regulatory changes, the growing competitiveness in the photovoltaic industry and 
specifically in the solar tracker industry, with impacts on the reduction of solar tracker prices, potential 
regulatory non-compliance at the operational level, information security related to product R&D, as well as 
potential problems arising from natural disasters, system failures and/or supply interruptions. 

In relation to financial risks, the main risks are related to market risks (exchange rate and interest rate), 
liquidity, obtaining the necessary guarantees to be able to contract and execute projects and customer credit. 

Corruption risks are adequately controlled through a legal and tax compliance risk management system. 

E.4 Identify whether the entity has a risk tolerance level, including tolerance for tax compliance risk. 

Yes, risk management quantifies all business risks by defining tolerance levels, including tax risk. 
The company is currently in the process of updating the risk map, in which this point will be more precisely 
defined. 
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E.5 Identify which risks, including tax compliance risks, have materialized during the year. 

1. Uncertainty associated with the demand for products and services in a changing environment 
affected by a pandemic. 

2. Potential problems resulting from system failures and/or supply interruptions. 

3. Growing competitiveness of the industry. 

4. Reduction of solar tracker prices. 

5. Security of product R&D-related information. 

6. Potential operational non-compliance and/or increased costs. 

7. Liquidity. 

8. Customer credit. 

9. Obtaining the necessary guarantees to be able to contract/execute projects. 

10. Market (exchange rate/interest rate). 

E.6 Explain the response and monitoring plans for all major risks, including tax compliance risks, of the 

company, as well as the procedures followed by the company in order to ensure that the Board of Directors 

responds to any new challenges that arise. 

 

Operation of the control systems corresponding to each of the risks listed in the previous section: 

1. Adequate. Among others, the following control systems are included: commercial follow-up with 
major clients; prospecting for new clients; follow-up on opportunities due to regulatory changes and 
budget allocation; and local presence in key countries. 

2. Adequate. These include, among others, the following control systems: diversification of suppliers 
both in terms of companies and geographically; local presence in key countries. 

3. Adequate. Among others, the following control systems are included: investment in R&D&I; 
diversification with new products; study of synergies and new business lines; continuous 
improvement systems; local presence in key countries; agreements with key players within the 
industry. 

4. Adequate. Among others, the following control systems are included: local presence in key countries; 
supplier price optimization; design optimization through investment in R&D&I; establishment of 
framework agreements with suppliers; monitoring of raw material price fluctuations. 

5. Adequate. These include, among others, the following control systems: ISO 27001 certification; 
designation of a security manager; implementation of access control at headquarters; performance 
of a security audit; non-competition covenants for key personnel. 

6. Adequate. These include, among others, the following control systems: local presence in key 
countries; local legal and tax advice; monitoring of local design regulation updates; transfer to the 
client with regulation of change of law clauses and variations; requirement of clear project 
specifications to clients. 

7. Adequate. Among others, the following control systems are included: framework agreements with 
financing entities; review of new financing formulas; framework agreements with suppliers/clients; 
review of project cash flow prior to signing the contract, in accordance with the payment conditions 
of the client and suppliers; analysis of the maximum risk of non-payment; monitoring of the cash 
flow of projects under execution. 

8. Adequate. Among others, the following control systems are included: transfer to the 
insurance/financial market; transfer to clients requesting the issuance of letters of credit/other types 
of guarantees; review of project cash flow prior to signing the contract, in accordance with the 
client's payment conditions and to suppliers; analysis of the maximum risk of non-payment; 
monitoring of the cash flow of projects under execution. 
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9. Adequate. Among others, the following control systems are included: framework agreements with 
entities; financing/insurance companies; active monitoring of the status of guarantees issued and of 
the overall position; negotiation with clients; strengthening of the balance sheet. 

10. Adequate. Among others, the following control systems are included: hedging contracts; monitoring 
of rate fluctuations; agreements with suppliers in the same currency as the main contract; 
framework agreements with financing entities. 

 
F. INTERNAL RISK CONTROL AND MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROCESS OF PUBLISHING 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION (ICFR) 

 

Describe the mechanisms comprising the system of Internal Control over Financial Reporting (ICFR) of 

your company. 

 

F.1 Company's control environment. 

 

Specify at least the following components with a description of their principal features: 

 

C.1.1 The bodies and/or departments that are responsible for (i) the existence and maintenance of an 

adequate and effective ICFR; (ii) their implementation; and (iii) their supervision. 

The Internal Control over Financial Reporting system, hereafter ICFR or SCIIF, is part of the internal control 

system of Soltec Power Holdings and is configured as a system designed to provide reasonable assurance 

on the reliability of financial reporting. The Group's ICFR was designed during the second half of 2020 and 

finalized in November 2020. The accounting closing of December 2020 was the first one carried out under 

the quality standards required by the design of Soltec's ICFR, so that during the 2021 financial year the 

relevant reviews will be carried out to ensure the correct development and optimal operation of the 

designed system. 

Soltec Power Holding's model of ICFR responsibilities is articulated through the following bodies and/or 

functions that develop, maintain, and supervise the process of preparing the Group's financial 

information: 

• The Board of Directors is responsible for determining the risk control and management policy, 

including tax risks, and the supervision of internal information and control systems, as set forth 

in Article 5.4 (xii) of the Board of Directors Regulations. Being ultimately responsible for ensuring 

an internal control environment that favours the generation of reliable, complete and timely 

financial information. These functions have been delegated to the Audit Committee in 

accordance with Article 14.5(ii) of the Board of Directors Regulations. 

•  The Audit Committee's responsibilities include supervising the effectiveness of the internal 

control of the Company and its group, the internal audit and the financial and non-financial risk 

management systems (including operational, technological, legal, social, environmental, 

political, reputational and corruption-related risks), ensuring that the policies and systems 

established for internal control are effectively applied in practice, and discussing with the auditor 

any significant weaknesses in the internal control system detected in the course of the audit, all 

this without infringing the auditor's independence. 

Likewise, to supervise the preparation process and the integrity of the financial information 

relating to the Company and, if applicable, to the group, reviewing compliance with regulatory 

requirements, the appropriate delimitation of the scope of consolidation and the correct 

application of accounting criteria as established in Article 14.5(ix) of the Board of Directors' 

Regulations. 

For the development of these functions, the Audit Committee has an Internal Audit Department. 
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• The Finance Department is responsible for the design, implementation, execution and 

monitoring of the ICFR. 

• Internal Audit, which reports to the Audit Committee, is responsible for evaluating and improving 

the efficiency of processes and monitoring internal control within the organization. One of the 

main functions of Internal Audit is to ensure the proper functioning of the ICFR. For this function, 

Internal Audit perform the following tasks: 

o Perform periodic reviews to ensure that documentation is updated in accordance with 

the Annual Audit Plan. 

o Design and execute, based on the scope of review agreed in the audit planning phase, 

tests on general controls, technological controls and process controls. 

o It shall issue reports on the reviews carried out on the ICFR, and in accordance with the 

Annual Audit Plan. 

o Verify the correct implementation of the corrective actions identified on the ICFR 

according to the Annual Audit Plan. 

The objectives, management, review and other particularities of the ICFR are regulated in three internal 

policies: 

o ICFR Policy Soltec Group. 

o ICFR monitoring procedure. 

o ICFR risk management procedure. 

 

C.1.2 Whether the following components exist, especially in connection with the financial reporting process: 

 

The departments and/or mechanisms in charge of: (i) the design and review of the organizational 

structure; (ii) clearly defining the lines of responsibility and authority, with an appropriate distribution of 

tasks and functions; and (iii) assurance that adequate procedures exist for proper communication 

throughout the company. 

 

The design and review of the organizational structure, as well as the definition of the lines of 

responsibility, is the responsibility of the Human Resources Department, under the Group's Strategy 

Department, which defines the lines of distribution of tasks and organizational functions of the Group. 

Likewise, it is the responsibility of the Board of Directors, through the Appointments and Remuneration 

Committee, as established in the various sections of article 15 of the Board of Directors' Regulations, to 

evaluate the skills, knowledge, availability and experience required on the Board of Directors, To submit 

to the board of directors proposals for the appointment of independent directors and to propose to the 

board of directors the remuneration policy for directors and general managers or those who perform their 

duties as executive personnel reporting directly to the board of directors, executive committees or 

managing directors, as well as the individual remuneration and other contractual conditions of the 

executive directors, verifying and ensuring their observance. 

Code of conduct, the body approving it, degree of dissemination and instruction, principles and values 

covered (stating whether it makes specific reference to record keeping and financial reporting), body in 

charge of reviewing breaches and proposing corrective actions and sanctions. 

The purpose of SOLTEC POWER HOLDINGS S.A.'s Code of Conduct is to establish the guidelines and action 

guidelines for all its administrators, managers and workers in their daily performance, with regard to the 

relations it maintains with all its stakeholders, with a transparent, effective and efficient management of 

resources, being honest with customers, suppliers, institutions, and being socially and environmentally 

responsible. 
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This Code of Conduct forms part of and is the basis for the Corporate Compliance Program implemented 

in the Group to prevent, avoid and detect the commission of criminal offenses in the business 

environment in compliance with the provisions of the Criminal Code and the Tax Compliance program. 

The Group's Code of Conduct is based on the definition of the Group's Mission, Vision, Values and 

Principles, and stands as a guide for action to ensure proper performance in the professional performance 

of its employees, adapting and accommodating to the legislation in force in the country where the Group 

carries out its activities, as well as with the Internal Policies and Protocols. During 2020 Soltec obtained 

the UNE 19601 certifications for the Criminal Compliance Management System, which includes Soltec's 

code of conduct. 

Whistleblowing channel, which makes it allows reporting any irregularities of a financial or accounting 

nature to the audit committee, as well as possible breaches of the code of conduct and irregular activities 

at the organization, stating whether reports made through this channel are confidential. 

There is a whistleblower channel open to all employees, or anyone who has dealings with the company, 

which allows them to confidentially report any irregularity or breach of the code of conduct to the 

Compliance Body. The means of communication is via e-mail. In the event that the irregularity is of an 

accounting or financial nature, the compliance body would bring this circumstance to the attention of the 

audit committee. 

Training and refresher programs for personnel involved in the preparation and review of financial 

information, as well as in the evaluation of ICFR, which address, at least, accounting rules, auditing, 

internal control and risk management. 

The Human Resources Department, which reports to the Strategy Department, oversees managing and 

planning all matters related to training programs and other support elements to meet the training needs 

of employees. In coordination with the departments reporting to the Finance Department, Human 

Resources identifies and analyzes the specific training needs of the personnel involved in the preparation 

and review of financial information, considering as main subjects those related to accounting, internal 

control and risk management aspects. The Financial Management has a budget to allocate to training 

depending on the needs, regulatory changes and accounting updates that occur. 

F.2 Risk assessment in financial reporting.  

Please report at least: 

F.2.1 Indicate what are the key features of the risk identification process, including error and fraud risk, with 

regard to: 

If the process exists and is documented. 

The risk identification process is documented in the Global Risk Management Policy whose main function 

is to identify, define and quantify all business risks to apply the optimal mitigating measures to eliminate 

or reduce the probability and/or severity of identified threats, as well as to take advantage of 

opportunities, allowing the Soltec Group to develop its business and grow in a sustainable manner, making 

informed and consistent decisions. 

There is also a Risk Committee, which is a permanent internal body of an informative and executive nature 

that will discuss and reach agreements in relation to risk management and insurance at the corporate 

level, in offers and projects, as well as other strategic issues related to risk management to ensure the 

sustainability of Soltec. In addition, it will ensure the creation of mechanisms that promote risk 

management in all the company's processes with the aim of guaranteeing Soltec's sustainability and 

solvency. This committee is made up of members of the company's senior management. 

Soltec has implemented a risk procedure in the analysis of bids where it is mandatory to perform a risk 

analysis of potential contracts of Soltec Power Holdings S.A. and its subsidiaries in the bidding and/or 

negotiation phase. 
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Soltec is in the process of obtaining a standardized and functional risk map that will be updated 

periodically and will include all financial and operational risks. 

The management of ICFR risks is documented in the ICFR Risk Management Procedure. 

Internal Audit works closely with the risk management area incorporating a continuous exchange of 

information and accommodating the requirements of this area to the annual audit plan. 

If the process covers all financial reporting objectives (existence and occurrence, completeness, valuation, 

presentation, disclosure and comparability, and rights and obligations), and if it is updated and how often. 

The risk management process is reviewed annually while the bid risk management process identifies, 

monitors and finally mitigates the risks identified in each of the bids presented by Soltec to its customers. 

All risks related to the financial reporting processes have controls in place to ensure that the financial 

information adequately meets the existence, occurrence, completeness, valuation, presentation, 

disclosure and comparability requirements for which the ICFR was designed. 

A specific process is in place to define the scope of consolidation, with reference to the possible existence 

of complex corporate structures, special purpose vehicles, holding companies, etc. 

The consolidation perimeter of the Soltec Group is reviewed at each monthly closing. The Administration 

Department is responsible for analyzing the companies that are incorporated and those that cease to form 

part of this perimeter. Both the incorporation and acquisition of companies, as well as their sale or 

dissolution, are subject to internal authorization processes that clearly identify all entries and exits from 

the scope of consolidation. 

Whether the process addresses other types of risk (operational, technological, financial, legal, 

reputational, environmental, etc.) insofar as they may affect the financial statements. 

The objective is to obtain a comprehensive view of them, designing an efficient response system aligned 

with the company's business objectives, which is accomplished by reviewing the risks on offer that involve 

the most significant risks for the company. The risk map to be implemented in 2021 will increase the 

control, scope, monitoring and visibility of corporate risks at group level. 

What governing body of the company is responsible for overseeing the process. 

The financial reporting process is the ultimate responsibility of the Board of Directors. Risk management 

also reports directly to the Audit Committee. 

F.3 Control of activities. 

Please inform, indicating its main characteristics, if the Company has at least: 

F.3.1 Procedures for reviewing and authorizing the financial information and description of ICFR to be 

disclosed to the securities markets, stating who is responsible in each case and the documentation 

describing the flow of activities and controls (including those addressing the risk of fraud) for each type 

of transaction that may materially affect the financial statements, including procedures for the closing 

of accounts and for the separate review of critical judgements, estimates, evaluations and projections. 

In accordance with the Regulations of the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee is responsible, among 

others, for reviewing the annual financial statements and the periodic information that the Board of 

Directors must provide to the markets and their supervisory bodies, always overseeing compliance with 

legal requirements and the correct application of generally accepted accounting principles in their 

preparation. 

The Regulations also state that the Audit Committee shall meet quarterly to review the periodic financial 

information to be submitted to the stock exchange authorities as well as the information that the Board 

of Directors must approve and include in its public documentation. 

The Group also maintains different accounting policies and procedures to ensure the reliability of financial 

information. Some of these policies are: 
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o Accounts Payable Procedures. 

o Accounts Receivable Procedure. 

o Accounting Manual Fixed Assets. 

o Accounting Manual Fixed Assets. 

o Leasing Manual. 

o Asset Impairment Manual. 

o On Site Administrative Control Procedure. 

o Closing of accounting periods. 

o Treasury Policy. 

o Guarantor Management Policy. 

o Project Cash Flow Policy. 

o Supplier Financial Management Procedure. 

o Exchange Rate Risk Management Procedure. 

Everything related to ICFR is regulated by different policies and procedures: 

o ICFR Policy Soltec Group 

o ICFR monitoring procedure 

o ICFR risk management procedure 

F.3.2 Internal control policies and procedures for IT systems (including secure access, control of changes, 

system operation, continuity, and segregation of duties) giving support to key processes of the company 

regarding the preparation and publication of financial information. 

Information systems play a relevant role and are an element that supports the processes of preparing the 

financial information to be reported externally, which is why they are included within the scope of action 

and configuration of the ICFR, thus defining a matrix of specific controls for IT processes. 

The Group has an IT area whose objective is to ensure security in all IT processes through daily support to 

users, systems maintenance, development of improvements, independent testing of systems. Soltec also 

has an Information Security Policy applicable to the entire group. 

In 2020, Soltec's IT area obtained the ISO 27001:2013 Information Security Standard certification. 

The Group has contingency mechanisms and procedures, both technical and operational, to guarantee 

the recovery of information systems in the event of failure or unavailability both at the central offices and 

at any of the Group's regional offices. 

F.3.3 Internal control policies and procedures for overseeing the management of outsourced activities, and 

of the appraisal, calculation or valuation services commissioned from independent experts, when these 

may materially affect the financial statements. 

Concern is maintained for activities subcontracted to third parties that could have a significant impact on 

the financial statements with the purpose of ensuring that, in key processes that may be outsourced, 

there is maximum assurance control, in relation to the security standards and the preparation of financial 

information required at Group level. 

For this reason, there are different policies and procedures that regulate and ensure the contracting 

process and the quality control of suppliers. 

o Soltec’s general purchasing terms 

o Supplier approval procedure 
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o Sourcing procedure 

o On-site purchasing procedure 

o Product validation procedure 

Likewise, the Purchasing Department maintains a series of model documents that it agrees with its 

suppliers, such as the NDAs that define the confidentiality relationship in the treatment of sensitive 

technical information by our suppliers. When the services of independent experts are engaged for work 

that supports valuations, judgments or accounting calculations, it is assured that they are firms of 

recognized prestige in the aspects consulted. 

F.4 Information and Communication 

Please inform, indicating its main characteristics, if the Company has at least 

F.4.1 A specifically assigned function for defining and updating accounting policies (accounting policy area or 

department) and resolving doubts or conflicts arising from their interpretation, maintaining fluid 

communications with those responsible for operations at the organization, as well as an up-to-date 

accounting policy manual distributed to the business units through which the company operates. 

The Finance Department, with its Administration, FP&A and Tax Departments, is responsible for keeping 

the accounting policies up to date and transmitting them to the personnel involved in the preparation of 

financial information. 

For this purpose, there is a set of accounting policies, procedures and manuals (see point F.3.1) available 

on the Group's intranet and on the Group's website available to all employees, which act as a reference 

to set the guidelines for accounting records, financial statements and annual accounts. 

F.4.2 Mechanisms for capturing and preparing financial information with consistent formats for application 

and use by all of the units of the company or the group, and which contain the main financial statements 

and notes, as well as detailed information regarding ICFR. 

All the entities that make up the Soltec Power Holding group use the same financial information reporting 

tools and applications, regardless of the information systems used for the maintenance of accounting 

records. These tools are continuously reviewed by the IT department. 

F.5 Supervision of system performance 

Please inform, indicating its main characteristics, if the Company has at least 

F.5.1 The activities of the audit committee in overseeing ICFR, as well as whether the entity has an internal 

audit function whose duties include providing support to the committee in its work of supervising the 

internal control system, including ICFR. Additionally, describe the scope of ICFR assessment made 

during the year and the procedure through which the person responsible prepares the assessment 

reports on its results, whether the company has an action plan describing possible corrective measures, 

and whether its impact on financial reporting is considered. 

Soltec Group maintains a proactive attitude in order to guarantee an updated model aligned with the 

reality of the business and the best regulatory practices. This analysis and constant monitoring of the ICFR, 

detecting possible improvements and making the corresponding changes, is carried out through the 

following actions: 

o Periodic evaluation of the design and effectiveness of controls. 

o Performing verifications and audits, according to the Audit Plan agreed for 2021, where one of 

the significant points of the scope is the review of the implementation of ICFR controls. 

o Supervision by the Audit Committee, in relation to the ultimate control over the ICFR model, 

delegated from the Board of Directors, and instrumented through the Internal Audit functions. 

o Report on the deficiencies identified, creating action plans to solve them, establishing the 

mechanisms for their follow-up and assigning the necessary resources for their fulfillment. 
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In order to guarantee an appropriate coverage of the ICFR review, an Annual Internal Audit Plan is 

established, which is approved and supervised by the Audit Committee and includes, from the 

establishment of the ICFR to its review. 

F.5.2 Whether there is a procedure by which the external auditor (as provided in the Technical Auditing 

Standards), the internal auditor and other experts may inform senior management and the audit 

committee or senior managers of the company of the significant internal control weaknesses detected 

during the review of the financial statements or any such other reviews as may have been entrusted to 

them. Information shall also be provided on whether an action plan is available for correcting or 

mitigating the weaknesses found. 

The Internal Audit function periodically communicates to senior management and the Audit Committee 

the internal control weaknesses identified in the process reviews carried out by means of reports issued 

at the end of each audit. These reports include action plans established for the mitigation of each of the 

weaknesses identified. 

The Group's auditor has direct access to the Board of Directors through the Group's Audit Committee, 

holding regular meetings to communicate the control weaknesses detected in the course of its work. 

Annually, the external auditors present a report to management and the Audit Committee detailing the 

internal control weaknesses revealed in the course of their work. 

F.6 Other relevant information 

The design of the ICFR was carried out during the second part of 2020, being finalized at the end of 

November, being completed and implemented throughout the group at the end of 2020, so that 2021 will 

be the first year of applicability and therefore of review by the external auditors. 

F.7 External auditor's report 

Report on: 

F.7.1 Whether the ICFR information submitted to the markets has been subject to review by the external 

auditor, in which case the entity shall include its report as an attachment. If not, reasons why should 

be given. 

The design of the ICFR was carried out during the second part of 2020, being finalized at the end of 

November, being completed and implemented throughout the group at the end of 2020, so that 2021 will 

be the first year of applicability and therefore of review by the external auditors. 

G. EXTENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RECOMMENDATIONS 

Indicate the degree of the company's compliance with the recommendations of the Good Governance Code 

of Listed Companies. 

In the event that any recommendation is not followed or is partially followed, a detailed explanation of 

the reasons for this should be included so that shareholders, investors and the market in general have 

sufficient information to evaluate the company's actions. General explanations will not be acceptable. 

1. That the bylaws of listed companies do not limit the maximum number of votes that may be cast by one 

shareholder or contain other restrictions that hinder the takeover of control of the company through the 

acquisition of shares on the market. 

Complies [X] Explanation [ ] 

2. That when the parent company and a subsidiary are listed on the stock market, both should publicly and 

specifically define: 

a) The respective areas of activity and possible business relationships between them, as well as 

those of the listed subsidiary with other group companies. 

b) The mechanisms in place to resolve possible conflicts of interest. 
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Complies [ ] Partially complies [ ] Explain [ ] Not applicable [X] 

3. That, during the course of the ordinary General Shareholders’ Meeting, complementary to the 

distribution of a written Annual Corporate Governance Report, the chairman of the Board of Directors 

verbally informs shareholders in sufficient detail of the most relevant aspects of the company’s corporate 

governance, and in particular: 

a) Changes taking place since the last General Shareholders’ Meeting. 

b) Specific reasons why the company did not follow one or more of the recommendations of the 

Code of Corporate Governance and, if so, the alternative rules that were followed instead. 

 

Complies [ ] Partially complies [ ] Explanation[X] 

The Chairman is expected to report to the General Shareholders’ Meeting on all details related to corporate 

governance. 

4. That the company has defined and promoted a policy of communication and contact with shareholders, 

institutional investors and proxy advisors that complies in all aspects with rules preventing market abuse 

and gives equal treatment to similarly situated shareholders. 

And that the company has made such a policy public through its web page, including information related 

to the manner in which said policy has been implemented and the identity of contact persons or those 

responsible for implementing it. 

And that, without detriment to the legal obligations regarding the dissemination of privileged 

information and other types of regulated information, the company also has a general policy regarding 

the communication of economic-financial, non-financial and corporate information through the channels 

it deems appropriate (media, social networks or other channels) that contributes to maximizing the 

dissemination and quality of the information available to the market, investors and other stakeholders. 

Complies [ ] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [X] 

It is provided for within the Corporate Governance Plan that a specific policy will be developed for all these 

issues within the 2021 fiscal year. 

5. That the Board of Directors should not propose to the General Shareholders’ Meeting any proposal for 

delegation of powers allowing the issuance of shares or convertible securities without pre-emptive rights 

in an amount exceeding 20% of equity at the time of delegation. 

And that whenever the Board of Directors approves any issuance of shares or convertible securities 

without pre-emptive rights the company immediately publishes reports on its website regarding said 

exclusions as referenced in applicable company law. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

6. That listed companies which draft any reports listed below, whether under a legal obligation or 

voluntarily, publish them on their website with sufficient time before the General Shareholders’ Meeting, 

even when their publication is not mandatory: 

a) Report on the auditor's independence. 

b) Reports on the operation of the audit committee and the appointments and remuneration 

committee. 

c) Report by the audit committee regarding related-party transactions. 

 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

7. The company reports in real time, through its website, the proceedings of the General Shareholders’ 

Meetings. 
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And that the company has mechanisms that allow the delegation and exercise of votes by telematic 

means and even, in the case of large cap companies and to the extent proportionate, attendance and 

active participation in the General Shareholders' Meeting. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

8. That the audit committee ensures that the Board of Directors presents the financial statements to the 

General Shareholders’ Meetings without qualifications or reservations and that, in the exceptional 

circumstances in which qualifications may appear, that the chairman of the audit committee and the 

auditors clearly explain to the shareholders the content and scope the said qualifications or reservations. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

9. That the company permanently maintains on its web page the requirements and procedures for 

certification of share ownership, the right of attendance at the General Shareholders’ Meetings, and the 

exercise of the right to vote or to issue a proxy. 

And that such requirements and procedures promote attendance and the exercise of shareholder rights 

in a non-discriminatory manner. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

This requirement is expected to be met at the first meeting as a listed company. 

10. That when a verified shareholder has exercised his right to make additions to the agenda or to make new 

proposals to it with sufficient time in advance of the General Shareholders’ Meeting, the company: 

a) Immediately distributes the additions and new proposals. 

b) Publishes the attendance card credential or proxy form or form for distance voting with the 

changes such that the new agenda items and alternative proposals may be voted upon under 

the same terms and conditions as those proposals made by the Board of Directors. 

c) Submits all of these items on the agenda or alternative proposals to a vote and applies the 

same voting rules to them as are applied to those drafted by the Board of Directors including, 

particularly, assumptions or default positions regarding votes for or against. 

d) Communicates a breakdown of the results of said additions or alternative proposals after the 

General Shareholders’ Meeting. 

 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ] Not applicable [ ]  

11. That, in the event the company intends to pay for attendance at the General Shareholders’ Meeting, it  

establishes in advance a general policy of long-term effect regarding such payments. 

Complies [ ] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ] Not applicable [X] 

12. That the Board of Directors completes its duties with a unity of purpose and independence, treating all 

similarly situated shareholders equally and that it is guided by the best interests of the company, which 

is understood to mean the pursuit of a profitable and sustainable business in the long term, and the 

promotion of continuity and maximisation of the economic value of the business. 

And that in pursuit of the company’s interest, in addition to complying with applicable law and rules and 

in engaging in conduct based on good faith, ethics and a respect for commonly accepted best practices, 

it seeks to reconcile its own company interests, when appropriate, with the interests of its employees, 

suppliers, clients and other stakeholders, as well as the impact of its corporate activities on the 

communities in which it operates and the environment. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ] Explanation [ ] 

13. That the Board of Directors is of an adequate size to perform its duties effectively and in a participatory 

manner, and that its optimum size is between five and fifteen members. 

Complies [X] Explanation [ ] 
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14. That the Board of Directors approves a selection policy for directors that: 

a) It is concrete and verifiable. 

b) Ensures that proposals for appointment or re-election are based upon a prior analysis of the 

needs of the Board of Directors. 

c) Favours diversity in knowledge, experience and gender. For this purpose, measures that 

encourage the company to have a significant number of female senior managers are 

considered to favour gender diversity. 

 

That the resulting prior analysis of the needs of the Board of Directors is contained in the supporting 

report from the appointments committee published upon a call from the General Shareholders’ Meeting 

submitted for ratification, appointment, or re-election of each director. 

The appointments committee will annually verify compliance with the selection policy of directors and 

explain its findings in the Annual Corporate Governance Report. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

Since the creation of the Board, these requirements have been met. However, the 2021 governance plan 

includes the development of a specific policy on these issues. 

15. That proprietary and independent directors constitute a substantial majority of the Board of Directors 

and that the number of executive directors is kept at the required minimum, considering the complexity 

of the corporate group and the percentage of equity participation of executive directors. 

And that the number of female directors should account for at least 40% of the members of the board of 

directors before the end of 2022 and thereafter, and not be less than 30% prior to that date. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

16. That the percentage of proprietary directors divided by the number of non-executive directors is no 

greater than the proportion of the equity interest in the company represented by said proprietary 

directors and the remaining share capital. 

This criterion may be relaxed: 

a) In large cap companies in which interests that are legally considered significant are minimal. 

b) In companies where a diversity of shareholders is represented on the Board of Directors 

without ties among them. 

 

Complies [X] Explanation [ ] 

17. That the number of independent directors represents at least half of the total number of directors.  

Nonetheless, when the company does not have a high level of market capitalization or if it is a large cap 

company with one shareholder or a group acting in a coordinated manner who together control more 

than 30% of the company’s capital, the number of independent directors represents at least one third of 

the total number of directors. 

Complies [X] Explanation [ ] 

18. That companies publish and update the following information regarding directors on the company 

website: 

a) Professional profile and biography. 

b) Any other Boards to which the director belongs, regardless of whether the companies are 

listed, as well as any other remunerated activities engaged in, regardless of type. 

c) Category of directorship, indicating, in the case of proprietary directors, the shareholder that 

they represent or to which they are connected. 

d) The date of their first appointment as a director of the company’s Board of Directors, and any 

subsequent re-election. 
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e) The shares and options they own. 

 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

19. That the Annual Corporate Governance Report, after verification by the appointments committee, 

explains the reasons for the appointment of proprietary directors at the proposal of the shareholders 

whose equity interest is less than 3%. It should also explain, where applicable, why formal requests from 

shareholders for membership on the Board meeting were not honoured, when their equity interest is 

equal to or exceeds that of other shareholders whose proposal for proprietary directors was honoured. 

Complies [ ] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ] Not applicable [X] 

20. That proprietary directors must resign from the Board if the shareholder they represent disposes of its 

entire equity interest. They should also resign, in a proportional manner, in the event that said 

shareholder reduces its percentage interest to a level that requires a decrease in the number of 

proprietary directors representing this shareholder. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ] Not applicable [ ] 

21. That the Board of Directors may not propose the dismissal of any independent director before the 

completion of the director’s term provided for in the Bylaws, unless the Board of Directors finds just cause 

and a prior report has been prepared by the appointments committee. Specifically, just cause is 

considered to exist if the director takes on new duties or commits to new obligations that would interfere 

with his or her ability to dedicate the time necessary for attention to the duties attendant to his post as 

a director, fails to complete the tasks inherent to his or her post, or enters into any of the circumstances 

which would cause the loss of independent status in accordance with applicable law. 

The dismissal of independent directors may also be proposed as a result of a public takeover bid, merger 

or similar transaction entailing a change in the shareholder structure of the company, provided that such 

changes in the structure of the Board are the result of the proportionate representation criteria provided 

for in Recommendation 16. 

Complies [X] Explanation [ ] 

22. That companies establish rules requiring that directors inform the Board of Directors and, where 

appropriate, resign from their posts, when circumstances arise which may damage the company’s 

standing and reputation. Specifically, directors must be required to report any criminal acts with which 

they are charged, as well as the consequent legal proceedings. 

And that should a director be indicted or tried for any of the offences set out in company law legislation, 

the Board of Directors must investigate the case as soon as possible and, based on the particular situation, 

decide whether the director should continue in his or her post. And that the Board of Directors must 

provide a reasoned written account of all these events in its Annual Corporate Governance Report. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

23. That all directors clearly express their opposition when they consider any proposal submitted to the 

Board of Directors to be against the company’s interests. This particularly applies to independent 

directors and directors who are unaffected by a potential conflict of interest if the decision could be 

detrimental to any shareholders not represented on the Board of Directors. 

Furthermore, when the Board of Directors makes significant or repeated decisions about which the 

director has serious reservations, the director should draw the appropriate conclusions and, in the event 

the director decides to resign, explain the reasons for this decision in the letter referred to in the next 

recommendation. 

This recommendation also applies in the case of the secretary of the Board of Directors, despite not being 

a director. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ] Not applicable [ ] 

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: J
O

S
E

 F
R

A
N

C
IS

C
O

 M
O

R
A

LE
S

 T
O

R
R

E
S

 (
N

IF
: 2

24
35

19
0R

)
F

IR
M

A
D

O
 p

or
: F

E
R

N
A

N
D

O
 C

A
B

A
LL

E
R

O
 D

E
 L

A
 S

E
N

 (
N

IF
: 1

18
13

93
1G

)
F

IR
M

A
D

O
 p

or
: M

A
R

IN
A

 M
O

R
E

N
O

 D
O

LE
R

A
 (

N
IF

: 4
84

53
57

8F
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: M
A

R
IA

 S
IC

IL
IA

 S
A

LV
A

D
O

R
E

S
 (

N
IF

: 0
74

96
77

6H
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: S
IL

V
IA

 A
M

A
T

E
R

A
T

S
U

 D
IA

Z
 D

E
 L

A
S

P
R

A
 M

O
R

A
LE

S
 (

N
IF

: 4
86

98
10

4C
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: M
A

R
C

O
S

 S
A

E
Z

 N
IC

O
LA

S
 (

N
IF

: 3
48

15
03

9P
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: N
U

R
IA

 A
LI

Ñ
O

 P
E

R
E

Z
 (

N
IF

: 0
31

03
66

8W
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: R
A

U
L 

M
O

R
A

LE
S

 T
O

R
R

E
S

 (
N

IF
: 3

47
85

10
6K

)
V

er
si

ón
 im

pr
im

ib
le

 c
on

 in
fo

rm
ac

ió
n 

de
 fi

rm
a 

ge
ne

ra
do

 d
es

de
 V

A
LI

D
e 

(h
ttp

://
va

lid
e.

re
ds

ar
a.

es
)

F
ir

m
a 

vá
lid

a.



ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR LISTED COMPANIES 

TRANSLATION FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY 

 

42/49 

 

24. That whenever, due to resignation or any other reason, a director leaves before the completion of his or 

her term, the director should explain the reasons for this decision in a letter addressed to all the directors 

of the Board of Directors. Irrespective of whether the resignation has been reported as a relevant fact, it 

must be included in the Annual Corporate Governance Report. 

And that, without prejudice to the disclosure of all of the above in the annual corporate governance 

report, to the extent that it is relevant for investors, the company should publish the resignation as soon 

as possible, including sufficient reference to the reasons or circumstances provided by the director. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ] Not applicable [ ]  

25. That the appointments committee ensures that non-executive directors have sufficient time in order to 

properly perform their duties. 

And that the Regulations of the Board establish the maximum number of company Boards on which 

directors may sit. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

26. That the Board of Directors meet frequently enough so that it may effectively perform its duties, at least 

eight times per year, following a schedule of dates and agenda established at the beginning of the year 

and allowing each director individually to propose items do not originally appear on the agenda. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

27. That director absences only occur when absolutely necessary and are quantified in the Annual Corporate 

Governance Report. And when absences occur, that the director appoints a proxy with instructions. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

28. That when directors or the secretary express concern regarding a proposal or, in the case of directors, 

regarding the direction in which the company is headed and said concerns are not resolved by the Board 

of Directors, such concerns should be included in the minutes, upon a request from the protesting party. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ] Not applicable [ ] 

29. That the company establishes adequate means for directors to obtain appropriate advice in order to 

properly fulfil their duties including, should circumstances warrant, external advice at the company’s 

expense. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

30. That, without regard to the knowledge necessary for directors to complete their duties, companies make 

refresher courses available to them when circumstances require. 

Complies [X] Explanation [ ] Not applicable [ ]  

31. That the agenda for meetings clearly states those matters about which the Board of Directors are to make 

a decision or adopt a resolution so that the directors may study or gather all relevant information ahead 

of time. 

When, under exceptional circumstances, the chairman wishes to bring urgent matters for decision or 

resolution before the Board of Directors which do not appear on the agenda, prior express agreement of 

a majority of the directors shall be necessary, and said consent shall by duly recorded in the minutes. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

32. That directors shall be periodically informed of changes in equity ownership and of the opinions of 

significant shareholders, investors and rating agencies of the company and its group. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

33. That the chairman, as the person responsible for the efficient operation of the Board of Directors, in 

addition to carrying out his duties required by law and the Bylaws, should prepare and submit to the 
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Board of Directors a schedule of dates and matters to be considered; should organise and coordinate the 

periodic evaluation of the Board as well as, if applicable, the chief executive of the company, should be 

responsible for leading the Board and the effectiveness of its operation; should ensure that sufficient 

time is devoted to considering strategic issues, and approve and supervise refresher courses for each 

director when circumstances so dictate. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

These functions are scheduled to be developed in 2021 

34. That when there is a coordinating director, the Bylaws or the Regulations of the Board should confer upon 

him the following competencies in addition to those conferred by law: chairman of the Board of Directors 

in the absence of the chairman and deputy chairmen, should there be any; reflect the concerns of non-

executive directors; liaise with investors and shareholders in order to understand their points of view and 

respond to their concerns, in particular as those concerns relate to corporate governance of the company; 

and coordinate a succession plan for the chairman. 

Complies [ ] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [X] Not applicable [ ] 

The company has appointed a coordinating director and is expected to carry out these functions throughout 

2021. 

35. That the secretary of the Board of Directors should pay special attention to ensure that the activities and 

decisions of the Board of Directors take into account the recommendations regarding good governance 

contained in this Good Governance Code and which are applicable to the company. 

Complies [X] Explanation [ ] 

36. The Board of Directors in full session should conduct an annual evaluation, adopting, when necessary, an 

action plan to correct weaknesses detected in: 

a) The quality and efficiency of the Board of Director’s operation. 

b) The performance and composition of its committees. 

c) Diversity of membership and competence of the Board of Directors. 

d) Performance of the chairman of the Board of Directors and the chief executive officer of the 

company. 

e) Performance and input of each director, paying particular attention to those in charge of the 

various Board committees. 

In order to perform its evaluation of the various committees, the Board of Directors will take a report 

from the committees themselves as a starting point and for the evaluation of the Board, a report from 

the appointments committee. 

Every three years, the Board of Directors will rely upon the assistance of an external advisor for its 

evaluation, whose independence shall be verified by the appointments committee. 

Any business relationships between the external advisor or any member of the advisor’s group and the 

company or any company within its group shall be specified in the Annual Corporate Governance 

Report. 

The process and the areas evaluated shall be described in the Annual Corporate Governance Report. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

37. That if there is an executive committee, the proportion of each different director category must be similar 

to that of the Board itself, and its secretary must be the secretary of the Board. 

Complies [ ] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ] Not applicable [X] 
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38. That the Board of Directors must always be aware of the matters discussed and decisions adopted by the 

executive committee and that all members of the Board of Directors receive a copy of the minutes of 

meetings of the executive committee. 

Complies [ ] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ] Not applicable [X] 

39. That the members of the audit committee, particularly its Chairman, are appointed in consideration of 

their knowledge and experience in accountancy, audit and risk management matters, and that a majority 

of its members be independent directors. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

40. That under the supervision of the audit committee, there must be a unit in charge of the internal audit 

function, which ensures that information and internal control systems operate correctly, and which 

reports to the non-executive chairman of the Board or of the audit committee. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

41. That the person in charge of the unit performing the internal audit function should present an annual 

work plan to the audit committee, reporting directly on any issues that may arise during the 

implementation of this plan, and present an activity report at the end of each year. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ] Not applicable [ ] 

42. That in addition to the provisions of applicable law, the audit committee should be responsible for the 

following: 

1. With respect to information systems and internal control: 

a) Supervise and evaluate the preparation process and the integrity of financial and nonfinancial 

information, as well as the control and management systems of financial and nonfinancial risks 

related to the company and, if applicable, to the group the company and, where appropriate, 

the group -including operational, technological, legal, social, environmental, political and 

reputational or corruption-related risks-reviewing compliance with regulatory requirements, 

the proper delimitation of the scope of consolidation and the correct application of accounting 

criteria. 

b) Ensure the independence and effectiveness of the unit charged with the internal audit 

function; propose the selection, appointment, re-election and dismissal of the head of internal 

audit; draft a budget for this department; approve its goals and work plans, making sure that 

its activity is focused primarily on material risks to the company; receive periodic information 

on its activities; and verify that senior management takes into account the conclusions and 

recommendations of its reports. 

c) Establish and supervise a mechanism that allows employees to report confidentially and, if 

appropriate, anonymously, any irregularities with important consequences, especially those of 

a financial or accounting nature, that they observe in the company. 

d) To ensure in general that the policies and systems established in the area of internal control 

are effectively applied in accounting practices. 

 

2. In relation to the external auditor: 

a) In the event that the external auditor resigns, examine the circumstances which caused said 

resignation. 

b) Ensure that the remuneration paid to the external auditor for its work does not compromise 

the quality of the work or the auditor’s independence. 

c) Ensure that the company files a relevant fact with the CNMV when there is a change of auditor, 

along with a statement on any differences that arose with the outgoing auditor and, if 

applicable, the contents thereof. 
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d) Ensure that the external auditor holds an annual meeting with the Board of Directors in plenary 

session in order to make a report regarding the tasks accomplished and regarding the 

development of its accounting and risks faced by the company. 

e) Ensure that the company and the external auditor comply with applicable rules regarding the 

provision of services other than auditing, the limits on concentration of the auditor's business, 

and all other rules regarding the auditor’s independence. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

43. That the audit committee may require the presence of any employee or manager of the company, even 

without the presence of any other member of management. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

44. That the audit committee be kept abreast of any corporate and structural changes planned by the 

company to perform an analysis and draft a report beforehand to the Board of Directors regarding 

economic conditions and accounting implications and, in particular, any exchange ratio involved. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ] Not applicable [ ] 

45. That the risk control and management policy identify at least: 

a) The different types of financial and non-financial risks (among those operational, 

technological, legal, social, environmental, political and reputational) which the company 

faces, including financial or economic risks, contingent liabilities and other off-balance sheet 

risks. 

b) A risk control and management model based on different levels, of which a specialized risk 

committee shall form part when the industry standards so provide or when the company 

deems it appropriate. 

c) Fixing of the level of risk the company considers acceptable. 

d) Measures identified to minimize identified risks in the event they occur. 

e) Internal control and information systems to be used to control and manage identified risks, 

including contingent liabilities and other off-balance sheet risks. 

 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

The company is expected to carry out a review of its risk management policy in 2021.  

46. That under the direct supervision of the audit committee or, if applicable, of a specialized committee of 

the Board of Directors, an internal control and management function should exist delegated to an internal 

unit or department of the company which is expressly charged with the following responsibilities: 

a) Ensure the proper operation of risk management and control systems and, in particular, that 

they adequately identify, manage and quantify all material risks that may affect the company. 

b) Actively participate in the creation of the risk strategy and in important decisions regarding 

risk management. 

c) Ensure that the risk management and control systems adequately mitigate risks as defined by 

policy issued by the Board of Directors. 

 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

47. That members of the appointment and remuneration committee – or of the appointments committee 

and the remuneration committee if they are separate – are chosen taking into account the knowledge, 

ability and experience necessary to perform the duties they are called upon to carry out and that the 

majority of said members are independent directors. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

48. That large cap companies have formed separate appointments and remuneration committees. 
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Complies [ ] Explanation [ ] Not applicable [X]  

49. That the appointments committee consult with the chairman of the Board of Directors and the chief 

executive of the company, especially in relation to matters concerning executive directors. 

And that any director may ask the appointments committee to consider potential candidates he or she 

considers appropriate to fill a vacancy on the Board of Directors. 

Complies [ ] Partially complies [X] Explanation [ ]  

A specific regulation for the internal operation of the Appointments and Remunerations Committee is 

expected to be implemented in 2021. 

50. That the remuneration committee exercises its functions independently and that, in addition to the 

functions assigned to it by law, it should be responsible for the following: 

a) Propose basic conditions of employment for senior management. 

b) Verify compliance with company remuneration policy. 

c) Periodically review the remuneration policy applied to directors and senior managers, 

including remuneration involving the delivery of shares, and guarantee that individual 

remuneration be proportional to that received by other directors and senior managers. 

d) Ensure that potential conflicts of interest do not undermine the independence of external 

advice rendered to the Board. 

e) Verify information regarding remuneration paid to directors and senior managers contained in 

the various corporate documents, including the Annual Report on Director Remuneration. 

 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

51. That the remuneration committee consults with the chairman and the chief executive of the company, 

especially in matters relating to executive directors and senior management. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

52. That the rules regarding composition and operation of supervision and control committees appear in the 

Regulations of the Board of Directors and that they are consistent with those that apply to mandatory 

committees in accordance with the recommendations above, including: 

a) That they are comprised exclusively of non-executive directors, with a majority of them 

independent. 

b) That their chairmen be independent directors. 

c) That the Board of Directors select members of these committees taking into account their 

knowledge, skills and experience and the duties of each committee; discuss their proposals 

and reports; and detail their activities and accomplishments during the first plenary session of 

the Board of Directors held after the committee’s last meeting. 

d) That the committees be allowed to avail themselves of external advice when they consider it 

necessary to perform their duties. 

e) That their meetings be recorded, and the minutes be made available to all directors. 

 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ] Not applicable [ ]  

53. Supervision of compliance with the company's environmental, social and corporate governance policies 

and rules, as well as internal codes of conduct, should be entrusted to one or more committees of the 

board of directors, which may be the audit committee, the nomination committee, a committee 

specializing in sustainability or corporate social responsibility, or any other specialized committee that 

The Board of Directors, in the exercise of its faculties of self-organization, has decided to create such 

specialized committee. Such committee shall be composed solely of non-executive directors, the majority 

of whom shall be independent the majority of them independent and be specifically attributed the 

minimum functions indicated in the following recommendation. 
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Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

54. The minimum functions referred to in the above recommendation are as follows: 

a) The supervision of compliance with the company's corporate governance rules and internal 

codes of conduct, also ensuring that the corporate culture is aligned with its purpose and 

values. 

b) The supervision of the application of the general policy regarding the communication of 

economic-financial, non-financial and corporate information as well as communication with 

shareholders and investors, proxy advisors and other stakeholders. Likewise, the way in which 

the entity communicates and relates to small and medium-sized shareholders shall also be 

monitored. 

c) The evaluation and periodic review of the corporate governance system and the company's 

environmental and social policy, to ensure that they fulfil their mission of promoting the social 

interest and take into account, as appropriate, the legitimate interests of other stakeholders. 

d) The supervision that the company's practices in environmental and social matters are in line 

with the chosen strategy and policy. 

e) The supervision and evaluation of the relationship processes with the different stakeholders. 

 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  

55. That sustainability policies on environmental and social matters identify and include at least: 

a) The principles, commitments, objectives and strategy regarding shareholders, employees, 

customers, suppliers, social issues, environment, diversity, fiscal responsibility, respect for 

human rights and prevention of corruption and other illegal conduct. 

b) The methods or systems for monitoring compliance with policies, associated risks and their 

management. 

c) The mechanisms for monitoring non-financial risk, including those related to ethical aspects 

and business conduct. 

d) The channels of communication, participation and dialogue with stakeholders. 

e) Responsible communication practices that avoid manipulation of information and protect 

integrity and honour. 

 

Complies [ ] Partially complies [X] Explanation [ ]  

A more detailed sustainability policy is expected to be approved in accordance with the corporate 

governance plan in 2021. 

56. That director remuneration be sufficient to attract and retain directors who meet the desired professional 

profile and to adequately compensate them for the dedication, qualifications and responsibility 

demanded of their posts, while not being so excessive as to compromise the independent judgment of 

non-executive directors. 

Complies [X] Explanation [ ] 

57. That only executive directors receive remuneration linked to corporate results or personal performance, 

as well as remuneration in the form of shares, options or rights to shares or instruments whose value is 

indexed to share value, or long-term savings plans such as pension plans, retirement accounts or any 

other retirement plan. 

Shares may be given to non-executive directors under the condition that they maintain ownership of the 

shares until they leave their posts as directors. The forgoing shall not apply to shares that the director 

may be obliged to sell to meet the costs related to their acquisition. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ]  
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58. That as regards variable remuneration, the policies incorporate limits and administrative safeguards to 

ensure that said remuneration is in line with the work performance of the beneficiaries and is not based 

solely upon general developments in the markets or in the sector in which the company operates, or 

other similar circumstances. 

And, in particular, that variable remuneration components: 

a) Are linked to pre-determined and measurable performance criteria and that such criteria take 

into account the risk undertaken to achieve a given result. 

b) Promote sustainability of the company and include non-financial criteria that are geared 

towards creating long term value, such as compliance with rules and internal operating 

procedures and risk management and control policies. 

c) Are based upon balancing short-, medium- and long-term objectives, permitting the reward of 

continuous achievement over a period of time long enough to judge creation of sustainable 

value such that the benchmarks used for evaluation are not comprised of one-off, seldom 

occurring or extraordinary events. 

 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ] Not applicable [ ]  

59. That the payment of the variable components of the remuneration is subject to sufficient verification 

that the previously established performance or other conditions have been effectively fulfilled. Entities 

shall include in the annual directors' remuneration report the criteria regarding the time required and 

methods for such verification depending on the nature and characteristics of each variable component. 

That, additionally, the entities shall consider the establishment of a reduction clause ('malus') based on 

the deferral for a sufficient period of time of the payment of a part of the variable components that 

implies their total or partial loss in the event that prior to the moment of payment, some event occurs 

that makes it advisable. 

Complies [ ] Partially complies [X] Explanation [ ] Not applicable [ ] 

No malus is foreseen. 

60. That remuneration related to company results takes into account any reservations which may appear in 

the external auditor’s report which would diminish said results. 

Complies [ ] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [X] Not applicable [ ]  

Specific clauses covering this scenario are expected to be developed during fiscal year 2021. 

61. That a material portion of variable remuneration for executive directors depends upon the delivery of 

shares or instruments indexed to share value. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ] Not applicable [ ] 

62. That once shares or options or rights to shares arising from remuneration schemes have been delivered, 

directors are prohibited from transferring ownership of a number of shares equivalent to two times their 

annual fixed remuneration, and the director may not exercise options or rights until a term of at least 

three years has elapsed since they received said shares.  

An exception is made in the case in which the director maintains, at the time of the transfer or exercise, 

a net economic exposure to the variation in the price of the shares for a market value equivalent to an 

amount of at least twice his annual fixed remuneration through the ownership of shares, options or other 

financial instruments. 

The foregoing shall not apply to shares that the director needs to dispose of to satisfy the costs related 

to their acquisition or, subject to the favourable appraisal of the Appointments and Remuneration 

Committee, to meet extraordinary situations that require it. 

 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ] Not applicable [ ] 
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63. That contractual arrangements include a clause which permits the company to seek reimbursement of 

variable remuneration components in the event that payment does not coincide with performance 

criteria or when delivery was made based upon data later deemed to be inaccurate. 

Complies [ ] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [X] Not applicable [ ]  

It is expected that clauses will be implemented during the 2021 fiscal year to cover these events. 

64. That payments made for contract termination shall not exceed an amount equivalent to two years of 

total annual remuneration and that it shall not be paid until the company has verified that the director 

has fulfilled all previously established criteria for payment. 

For the purposes of this recommendation, termination or contractual termination payments shall include 

any payments whose accrual or payment obligation arises as a consequence of or in connection with any 

payments whose accrual or payment obligation arises as a result of or in connection with the termination 

of the contractual relationship linking the director with the company, including amounts not previously 

vested in long-term savings schemes and amounts paid under post-contractual non-competition 

agreements. 

Complies [X] Partially complies [ ] Explanation [ ] Not applicable [ ] Not applicable [ ]  

 

H. FURTHER INFORMATION OF INTEREST 

1. If there is any aspect regarding corporate governance in the company or other companies in the group 

that has not been included in other sections of this report, but which is necessary in order to obtain a 

completer and more comprehensible picture of the structure and governance practices in the company 

or group, describe it briefly below. 

2. This section may also include any other information, explanation or clarification relating to previous 

sections of the report, so long as it is relevant and not redundant. 

Specifically, state whether the company is subject to any corporate governance legislation other than 

that prevailing in Spain and, if so, include any information required under this legislation that differs from 

the data requested in this report. 

3. The company may also state whether it voluntarily complies with other ethical or best practice codes, 

whether international, sector-based, or other. In such a case, name the code in question and the date the 

company began following it. It should be specifically mentioned that the company adheres to the Code 

of Good Tax Practices of 20 July 2010: 

The company is interested in raising its level of internal voluntary compliance through best practices and 

adherence to different international organizations, although given the short time it has been listed on the 

continuous market, it is still in the implementation phase of its corporate governance strategy. 

This annual corporate governance report has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company, 

at its meeting held on: 

24/03/2021 

Indicate whether there have been directors who voted against or abstained in relation to the approval of 

this report. 

[ ] Yes 

[√] No 
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FORMULATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MANAGEMENT REPORT 

 

The board of directors of Soltec Power Holdings, SA, in compliance with current commercial regulations, 

has prepared on March 24, 2021 the financial statements and the management report of Soltec Power 

Holdings, SA (hereinafter, the Company parent) and subsidiaries (hereinafter, the Group) of the year 

2020 following the format established in the EU Delegated Regulation 2019/815 of the European 

Commission. 

The members who make up the Company's board of directors hereby declare the aforementioned 

financial statements and the management report for the year 2020 signed unanimously, with a view to 

their verification by the auditors and subsequent approval by the general meeting of shareholders. 

 

Mr. Raúl Morales Torres 
President of the Board of Directors 

 Mr. Fernando Caballero de la Sen 
Member of the Board of Directors 

 

 

 

 

Ms. Nuria Aliño Pérez 
Member of the Board of Directors 

 Ms. María Sicilia Salvadores 
Member of the Board of Directors 

 

 

 

 

Mr. José Francisco Morales Torres 
Member of the Board of Directors 

 Ms. Marina Moreno Dólera 
Member of the Board of Directors 

 

 

 

 

Mr. Marcos Sáez Nicolás 
Member of the Board of Directors 

  

 

______________________________________ 

Ms. Silvia Díaz de Laspra 
Secretary of the Board 

 

 

Molina de Segura, April 15, 2021 

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: J
O

S
E

 F
R

A
N

C
IS

C
O

 M
O

R
A

LE
S

 T
O

R
R

E
S

 (
N

IF
: 2

24
35

19
0R

)
F

IR
M

A
D

O
 p

or
: F

E
R

N
A

N
D

O
 C

A
B

A
LL

E
R

O
 D

E
 L

A
 S

E
N

 (
N

IF
: 1

18
13

93
1G

)
F

IR
M

A
D

O
 p

or
: M

A
R

IN
A

 M
O

R
E

N
O

 D
O

LE
R

A
 (

N
IF

: 4
84

53
57

8F
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: M
A

R
IA

 S
IC

IL
IA

 S
A

LV
A

D
O

R
E

S
 (

N
IF

: 0
74

96
77

6H
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: S
IL

V
IA

 A
M

A
T

E
R

A
T

S
U

 D
IA

Z
 D

E
 L

A
S

P
R

A
 M

O
R

A
LE

S
 (

N
IF

: 4
86

98
10

4C
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: M
A

R
C

O
S

 S
A

E
Z

 N
IC

O
LA

S
 (

N
IF

: 3
48

15
03

9P
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: N
U

R
IA

 A
LI

Ñ
O

 P
E

R
E

Z
 (

N
IF

: 0
31

03
66

8W
)

F
IR

M
A

D
O

 p
or

: R
A

U
L 

M
O

R
A

LE
S

 T
O

R
R

E
S

 (
N

IF
: 3

47
85

10
6K

)
V

er
si

ón
 im

pr
im

ib
le

 c
on

 in
fo

rm
ac

ió
n 

de
 fi

rm
a 

ge
ne

ra
do

 d
es

de
 V

A
LI

D
e 

(h
ttp

://
va

lid
e.

re
ds

ar
a.

es
)

F
ir

m
a 

vá
lid

a.

jsanchezgonzalez
Text Box




